
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS

WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE

ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2011 - 10 A.M.

               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to recognize newly elected and re-elected public officials for

the period January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014, as follows:  Robert Duber II, Judge of

the Superior Court, Division 2; Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman,

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace; Dorothy Little, Payson Regional Justice of the Peace;

Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable; and Colt White, Payson Regional Constable.  Judge

Peter Cahill will immediately administer the Oath of Office to all officials.   (Linda Eastlick)

 

 

B Presentation by the Gila County Recycling and Landfill Management Department on the

annual program of recycling and refurbishing discarded bicycles for distribution to

disadvantaged youth in Gila County.  (Sharon Winters)

 

 

3 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila

County Library District Board of Directors.)

Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Library Service Agreement between the Gila

County Library District and the San Carlos Public Library to cooperate in the provision of

library services for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, and to match up to

$32,920.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Resource Access and Attainment Policy for the

Gila County Library District. (Jacque Griffin)

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and

reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to select one of the following projects for the Secure Rural

Schools Title II Special Projects application for 2011:  Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423

(Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin or Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to

Kellner Canyon Road) in Globe and direct staff to proceed with preparing the grant

application.  (Jacque Griffin/Steve Stratton/Steve Sanders)

 

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-01 authorizing the submission  



D Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-01 authorizing the submission

of a Grant Application for Home Investment Partnership Program funds, and Resolution No.

11-01-02 adopting housing services guidelines; and to approve the submission of the

Grant Application to the Arizona State Department of Housing, State Housing Fund, in the

amount of $330,000 for the Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project.  

(Malissa Buzan)

 

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a petition from Landmark at the Creek LLC,

to begin the process to dispose of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of

Christopher Creek Loop as shown on the attached map.  (Steve Sanders)

 

 

F Information/ Discussion/ Action to approve the purchase of parcel no. 205-14-035E and a

portion of parcel no. 205-14-035C from Jack-in-the-Box Inc. in the amount of $18,000 plus

closing fees for the Monroe Street realignment project. (Steve Stratton)

 

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to approve Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010

between the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest,

and Gila County for FY11 annual maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads in the

amount of $72,114 through September 30, 2011, and with approval for Steve Stratton, Public

Works Division Director, to sign modifications under $50,000.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management

Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project Grant Application to

the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

funds in the amount of $464,492.   (Matthew Bolinger)

 

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management

Department approval to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road

Repair Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for a grant request totalling

$350,000. (Matthew Bolinger)

 

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management

Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and

Mitigation Outreach Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $69,625 for the hire of a Flood

Mitigation Analyst for an 18-month period.  (Matthew Bolinger)

 

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management

Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project to the Arizona

Division of Emergency Management for Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the

amount of $50,000.  (Matthew Bolinger)

 

 

L Presentation of information related to Gila County Policy No. BOS-4-2005, Disclosure of

Conflicts of Interest, with a reminder to each elected official and division/department director

to communicate said policy to their employees.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

 

4 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1  



A Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1

between Gila County and CEMEX to extend the Contract, per Section 2.2, from the period

December 18, 2010, to December 17, 2011; and to provide for the purchase of 3/8" chips and

ABC, all of which are used in the Copper Region of Gila County.

 

 

B Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting

Services Contract No. 6500.505/01-2010 between Gila County and Sheldon Miller to extend

the Contract, per Article I, Activity 5, from the period January 5, 2011, to January 4, 2012, to

provide consulting services for various highway projects in Arizona and with the Arizona

Department of Transportation. 

 

 

C Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R

between Gila County and Swire Coca-Cola to extend the Contract, per Article III, from

January 12, 2011, to January 11, 2012, to provide automated vending machine services to Gila

County facilities.

 

 

D Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D

between Gila County and Kimely-Horn and Associates in the amount of $949,992 to approve

Phase II scope, design, and cost proposal per Article IX of the contract for Professional

Engineering Services on the New Bridge Over Tonto Creek project for the period November

3, 2009, through November 3, 2011.

 

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 between Gila

County and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $135,003 to extend

the Teen Pregnancy Prevention program for the period of January 1, 2011, 

through December 31, 2011.

 

 

F Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE111170001 between Gila County and the

Arizona Department of Economic Security to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner

for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2015. 

 

 

G Approval of a request for a waiver of fees submitted by Lani Hall, on behalf of the U of A Gila

County Cooperative Extension Office - 4-H Program, for the use of the Fairground’s Exhibit

Hall  and/or other areas at the Fairgrounds for all Gila County 4-H activities in 2011.

 

 

H Approval of the July 6, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.  
 

I Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Clerk of

the Superior Court.

 

 

J Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe

Regional Constable.

 

 

K Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe

Regional Constable

 

 

L Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson

Regional Constable.

 

 

M Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the  



M Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the

Recorder's Office.

 

 

N Approval of the October and November 2010 monthly departmental activity reports submitted

by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

 

O Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 21, 2010, December 28, 2010, and

January 4, 2011.

 

 

P Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of December 21, 2010, December

28, 2010, and January 4, 2011.

 

 

5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow individuals

to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board members may not discuss items that

are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute

§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to

study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and

decision at a future date.

 

 

6 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of

Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No

action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO
ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR
TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S
ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Oath of Office for newly elected or re-elected officials.

Background Information

In the November 2, 2010, General Election, the following individuals were elected to a four-year term of

office beginning January 1, 2011:  Robert Duber II, Judge of the Superior Court, Division 2; Anita

Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman, Globe Regional Justice of the Peace; Dorothy

Little, Payson Regional Justice of the Peace; Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable; and Colt White,

Payson Regional Constable.  Certificates of Election have already been issued to each newly elected

official.

Evaluation

Oaths of Office are required by ARS 38-231. Officers and employees required to take loyalty oath; form;

classification; definition

A. In order to ensure the statewide application of this section on a uniform basis, each board,

commission, agency and independent office of this state, and of any of its political subdivisions, and of

any county, city, town, municipal corporation, school district and public educational institution, shall

completely reproduce this section so that the form of written oath or affirmation required in this section

contains all of the provisions of this section for use by all officers and employees of all boards,

commissions, agencies and independent offices.

B. Any officer or employee who fails to take and subscribe to the oath or affirmation provided by this

section within the time limits prescribed by this section is not entitled to any compensation until the

officer or employee does so take and subscribe to the form of oath or affirmation prescribed by this

section.

C. Any officer or employee having taken the form of oath or affirmation prescribed by this section, and

knowingly at the time of subscribing to the oath or affirmation, or at any time thereafter during the

officer's or employee's term of office or employment, does commit or aid in the commission of any act to

overthrow by force, violence or terrorism as defined in section 13-2301 the government of this state or of

any of its political subdivisions, or advocates the overthrow by force, violence or terrorism as defined in

section 13-2301 of the government of this state or of any of its political subdivisions, is guilty of a class 4

felony and, on conviction under this section, the officer or employee is deemed discharged from the

office or employment and is not entitled to any additional compensation or any other emoluments or

benefits which may have been incident or appurtenant to the office or employment.



D. Any of the persons referred to in article XVIII, section 10, Constitution of Arizona, as amended,

relating to the employment of aliens, are exempted from any compliance with this section.

E. In addition to any other form of oath or affirmation specifically provided by law for an officer or

employee, before any officer or employee enters upon the duties of the office or employment, the officer

or employee shall take and subscribe the following oath or affirmation:

State of Arizona, County of ______________ I, _____________________

(type or print name) 

do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the

Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona, that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and

defend them against all enemies, foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially

discharge the duties of the office of ______________________ (name of office)

________________________ according to the best of my ability, so help me God (or so I do affirm).

______________________________________

(signature of officer or employee) 

F. For the purposes of this section, "officer or employee" means any person elected, appointed or

employed, either on a part-time or full-time basis, by this state or any of its political subdivisions or any

county, city, town, municipal corporation, school district, public educational institution or any board,

commission or agency of any county, city, town, municipal corporation, school district or public

educational institution. 

Conclusion

A written Oath of Office, that is signed and notarized, is what qualifies an officer under the statute to

serve in office.

Recommendation

Recognize the newly elected and re-elected public officials and provide for administration of the Oath of

Office to all officials.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to recognize newly elected and re-elected public officials for the period

January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014, as follows:  Robert Duber II, Judge of the Superior Court,

Division 2; Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman, Globe Regional Justice of the

Peace; Dorothy Little, Payson Regional Justice of the Peace; Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable;

and Colt White, Payson Regional Constable.  Judge Peter Cahill will immediately administer the Oath of

Office to all officials.  (Linda Eastlick)

Attachments

Link: Oaths of Office 2011



 

 

LOYALTY OATH OF OFFICE 
 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    : ss. 

COUNTY OF GILA ) 

 

 I, hereby do solemnly swear that I, Robert Duber II, will support the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of the State of 

Arizona; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them 

against all enemies foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge the duties of the office of Judge of the Superior Court Division 2, 

County of Gila, State of Arizona, according to the best of my ability, so help me 

God. 

 

      __________________________________ 

     Robert Duber II 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of January, 2011. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the County of Gila 

  State of Arizona 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

 

____________________ 



 

 

 

 

LOYALTY OATH OF OFFICE 
 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    : ss. 

COUNTY OF GILA ) 

 

 I, hereby do solemnly swear that I, Anita Escobedo, will support the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of the State of 

Arizona; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them 

against all enemies foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge the duties of the office of , Clerk of the Superior Court, County of 

Gila, State of Arizona, according to the best of my ability, so help me God. 

 

      __________________________________ 

     Anita Escobedo 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of January, 2011. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the County of Gila 

  State of Arizona 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

 

____________________ 



 

 

 

 

LOYALTY OATH OF OFFICE 
 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    : ss. 

COUNTY OF GILA ) 

 

 I, hereby do solemnly swear that I, Gary Goetteman, will support the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of the State of 

Arizona; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them 

against all enemies foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge the duties of the office of Globe Regional Justice of the Peace, County 

of Gila, State of Arizona, according to the best of my ability, so help me God. 

 

      __________________________________ 

     Gary Goetteman 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of January, 2011. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the County of Gila 

  State of Arizona 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

 

____________________ 



 

 

 

 

LOYALTY OATH OF OFFICE 
 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    : ss. 

COUNTY OF GILA ) 

 

 I, hereby do solemnly swear that I, Dorothy Little, will support the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of the State of 

Arizona; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them 

against all enemies foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge the duties of the office of Payson Regional Justice of the Peace, County 

of Gila, State of Arizona, according to the best of my ability, so help me God. 

 

      __________________________________ 

     Dorothy Little 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of January, 2011. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the County of Gila 

  State of Arizona 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

 

____________________ 



 

 

 

 

LOYALTY OATH OF OFFICE 
 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    : ss. 

COUNTY OF GILA ) 

 

 I, hereby do solemnly swear that I, Jesse Bolinger, will support the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of the State of 

Arizona; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them 

against all enemies foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge the duties of the office of Globe Regional Constable, County of Gila, 

State of Arizona, according to the best of my ability, so help me God. 

 

      __________________________________ 

     Jesse Bolinger 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of January, 2011. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the County of Gila 

  State of Arizona 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

 

____________________ 



 

 

 

 

LOYALTY OATH OF OFFICE 
 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    : ss. 

COUNTY OF GILA ) 

 

 I, hereby do solemnly swear that I, Colt White, will support the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and Laws of the State of 

Arizona; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them 

against all enemies foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge the duties of the office of Payson Regional Constable, County of Gila, 

State of Arizona, according to the best of my ability, so help me God. 

 

      __________________________________ 

     Colt White 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of January, 2011. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the County of Gila 

  State of Arizona 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

 

____________________ 



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Sharon Winters, Solid Waste Operations Manager

Submitted By: Sharon Winters, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Recycling & Landfill Management

Presenter's Name: Sharon Winters 

Information

Request/Subject

2010 Refurbished Bike Program Presentation

Background Information

The Recycling and Landfill Department collects bikes that have been thrown away or donated by the

public. These bikes are rebuilt by Department of Corrections inmates for distribution to agencies at

Christmas time to give to eligible children.  

Evaluation

Workshop space is provided by the Public Works Department for the bicycles, the new parts and inmate

labor are paid for by the funds collected from selling recycable products.  

The refurbished bikes are given to agencies all over Gila County, which include the following:   

In Payson they are distributed by the Fire and Public Safety Departments; Arizona Department of

Economic Secuity is also involved. 

For Miami and Hayden, the Town employees organize the gifts. 

In San Carlos, Mary Kim Titla, Tribal Liaison works with the schools in getting the bikes to children. 

Bikes are provided to the Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) program for foster children. 

For the community of Roosevelt the Secret Santa program gives the bikes away. 

The Toy Run and the American Legion include bikes in with their Adopt-A-Family and toy distribution. 

In all, over 140 bikes have been rebuilt and given way this year. 

 

Conclusion

This presentation is to provide information to the Board of Supervisors and the public about the bike

program, how is it funded and where the bikes go.

Recommendation

I recommend that this agenda item be listed for information to the Supervisors and public.

Suggested Motion

Presentation by the Gila County Recycling and Landfill Management Department on the annual program

of recycling and refurbishing discarded bicycles for distribution to disadvantaged youth in Gila County.  (Sharon Winters)

(Sharon Winters)



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Library District

Department: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Library Service Agreement with the San Carlos Public Library.

Background Information

The Gila County Library District contracts annually with the eight affiliate libraries to cooperate with the

provision of library services to the residents of Gila County.  These service agreements serve as contracts

for facilitating funding and resource sharing.  This is the eighth and final agreement for FY 2010-2011. 

It was delayed pending final agreement between the two parties regarding the addendum language, and

has now been approved by the tribal attorney and the County Attorney's Office.

Evaluation

The funding amount for the San Carlos Library has not changed from last year.  The Library District

matches up to an upper limit for city, town and tribal libraries.  Library District funding will match up to

$32,920.00 for the San Carlos Public Library operating expenses.  These funds will be distributed in two

installments: the first as soon as this agreement is approved, and the second in May 2011.

Conclusion

Approval of the Library Service Agreement will facilitate funding and resource sharing for the San

Carlos Public Library.

Recommendation

I recommend approval of the Library Service Agreement between Gila County Library District and the

San Carlos Public Library for fiscal year 2010-2011.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County

Library District Board of Directors.)

Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Library Service Agreement between the Gila County

Library District and the San Carlos Public Library to cooperate in the provision of library services for the

period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, and to match up to $32,920.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments

Link: Library Service Agreement with San Carlos Public Library for 2010-2011



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2010 TO JUNE 30, 2011

This Library Service Agreement (the "agreement") is entered into between the GILA
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS acting as the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY
DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the SAN CARLOS APACHE
TRIBE, hereinafter referred to as the "Tribe," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,
2010 to June 30, 2011.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Tribe recognize the need to cooperate in the provision
of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Tribe operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the Tribe
to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating Tribes.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Tribe as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Tribe, are the
property of the Tribe.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Tribe remain the sole
responsibility of the Tribe.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Tribe agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Tribe shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the Tribe's
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for



Library Service Agreement
2010/2011
Page 2 of4

capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.

B. The Tribe (Library) shall annually submit to the District the Arizona Public
Library Data Report as required by the State Library.

C. The Tribe shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating in
interlibrary loan services as a borrower and lender of library materials.

D. The Tribe shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions which
the District or another participating library imposes with respect to loans of
books, materials, or equipment to the Tribe library.

E. The Tribe agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any losses
and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to another
participating library or the District, which occur while these items are in the
possession and control of the Tribe.

F. The Tribe's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature(s) on this Agreement. The Tribe
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The Tribe shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. Tribe library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three of the four
quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

1. Tribe agrees not to subcontract any of its performance of the services set
forth under this agreement.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.



Library Service Agreement
201012011
Page 3 of4

C. Coordination of countywide library development.

D. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

E. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

F. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Tribe and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the Tribe. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees:
A. To match the Tribe local funds for library services, up to the amount of

$32,920.00 such amount subject to annual review.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, in November 2010 and May
2011.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Tribe agrees to
return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Tribe. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the Tribe library, by the date oftermination,
any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the Tribe library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library District and to make
reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the Tribe library any books, materials
and equipment belonging to the Tribe library which had been entrusted to the
possession or control of another participating library.

12. In the event of a dispute under this Agreement, the parties agree to make a good
faith attempt to resolve the dispute prior to taking formal action.

13. The provisions of this section shall govern and control this Agreement where
such provisions are in conflict with any other provision of the Agreement.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign



Library Service Agreement
2010/2011
Page 4 of4

immunity by the San Carlos Apache Tribe, its consent to be sued, or its consent
to the jurisdiction of any federal or state court.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

SAN CARLOS APACHE TRIBE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
As the: GILA COUNTY LIBRARY
DISTRICT

Wendsler Nosie, Sr.
Chairman

Michael A. Pastor
.Chairman

ATTEST:

~t~L
ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date 7 7 Date

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Tribe,
who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and
authority of the Tribe.

Attorney for San Carlos Apache Tribe

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Chief Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



ADDENDUM 1 to GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1,2010 TO JUNE 30, 2011

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance

1. The Tribe hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with
all federal immigration laws if applicable to Tribe's employment of its employees, and with the
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) if applicable (together the "State and Federal Immigration
Laws"). The Tribe further agrees not to subcontract any of the services provided by the Library.

2. Upon reasonable notice, the District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of Tribe and any subcontractor.

3. Any breach of Tribe's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract
subjecting Tribe to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract.

4. Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall
be the responsibility of the Tribe.

IN WITNESS THEREOF,

-;,.P10TmBE
____ -'..:.!L:./_\!l__ 'y Date "b11)/0

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Date------------------------- ----
Chairman Chairman, Board of Directors

\C5!
~~ .•..)-----

Attorney for San Carlos Apache Tribe Chief Deputy County Attorney



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Library District

Department: Library District

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information

Request/Subject

Gila County Library District Resource Access and Attainment Policy

Background Information

The Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records has recently updated the statewide policy

regarding "Resource Access and Attainment" formerly known as the Interlibrary Loan Policy. In the

past, the standard for compliance with the statewide policy was that libraries could not pass on postage

or other charges related to obtaining materials from other libraries for an individual's use. With the rapid

changes in the format materials can be obtained in, as well as with the increasing cost of postage and

usage fees, the statewide policy has been modified to allow a library to pass on the postage or other

actual costs associated with the provision of resource sharing. The State Library has asked that all county

libraries adopt the Resource Access and Attainment Policy or to modify their existing policy to provide

for uniform polices throughout the state.

Evaluation

Resource sharing through the Interlibrary Loan Process is one of the core services that public libraries

offer to their users. In the not too distant past when most information was printed through the traditional

processes, this usually meant that a library user who could not find what they were looking for in their

own library would ask for a book or magazine article, and the library staff would borrow the item from

another library. Libraries were prohibited from passing the postage costs along to the patron, since the

accepted standards were that materials should be provided at no charge to the public.  In addition to the

increases in postage costs, many journal articles are only available for a fee. These fees and costs can

place an undue burden on libraries. Research has shown that it costs somewhere between $13.50 - $29.50

per item for the entire Interlibrary Loan Process. The State Library has been using the figure of $25.00

per loan transaction. For this reason, many libraries have found that purchasing a used book and adding

it to the collection is less expensive than borrowing the title from another library. Some public libraries

had chosen to not participate in resource sharing because of the financial impact to already strapped

budgets. Since that had a net result of limiting the public's access to information, the Arizona State

Library has modified their policy to include "When materials can only be attained for a reasonable cost

through interlibrary loan the District will offer to secure the materials with the customer covering

postage costs and any fees charged by the lending library." The policy also encourages library staff to

attempt to assist the customer with finding the information requested in other locations or formats.

Conclusion

Several years ago the Library District and the affiliate libraries developed a volunteer courier system to



Several years ago the Library District and the affiliate libraries developed a volunteer courier system to

facilitate sharing resources between the libraries within the County to alleviate the postage burden on all

libraries. However, there are still many instances of customers requesting materials that are not available

within the Countywide library system. The financial burden of resource sharing has negatively impacted

all of the public libraries in Gila County. This policy allows libraries to continue to offer a core service,

while asking the customer to cover the postage costs or fees related to obtaining material that is specific

to their needs.

Recommendation

The County Librarian recommends that the Library District Board of Directors adopt the Resource

Access and Attainment Policy, which provides guidelines for interlibrary loans and access to resources.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Resource Access and Attainment Policy for the Gila

County Library District. (Jacque Griffin)

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the

Gila County Board of Supervisors)

Attachments

Link: Gila County Library District Resource Access and Attainment Policy



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT POLICY

RESOURCE ACCESS AND ATTAINMENT POLICY

Date adopted by Library District Board of Directors: January 4, 2011
Pages: 1 of 1

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines for interlibrary loan and access to resources. This policy replaces any and
all previous policies regarding interlibrary loan and access to resources.

STATEMENT OF POLICY:

The Gila County Library District (District) is committed to working with public, academic, school and special
libraries to help all county residents find the information they need and want and to attain that material.

1. The District will be an active member of AZNET (the Arizona NETwork of library catalog databases)
to facilitate the .sharing of resources among libraries.

2. The District will support the statewide database project that provides a broad range of topics
available to all residents and to all public and K-12 public and charter school libraries.

3. The District will support and participate in pilot projects allowing libraries to test new technologies to
meet customer needs, such as e-readers, and alternative means, such as purchase-on-demand.

4. The District will work with customers, at no charge, to locate materials.
5. The District will provide specific information on attaining material. The District will offer several

options to attain material including: customer purchase of low-cost materials; library purchase of
materials database and web sources, print-on-demand; and inter-library loan.

6. When materials can only be attained for a reasonable cost through inter-library loan the District will
offer to secure the materials with the customer covering postage costs and any fees charged by the
lending library.

7. The District will loan and borrow materials from other AZNET members at no charge.

Authorized Signatures:

Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney

Chairman, Library District Board of Directors



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, BOS Liaison to Eastern AZ RAC

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Library District

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin/Steve

Stratton/Steve

Sanders 

Information

Request/Subject

Project Selection for Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects application for 2011

Background Information

The Secure Rural Schools (PL-110-343) Program 2008-2011 includes provisions for Title II Special

Projects on Federal Lands.  This act authorizes the use of area Resource Advisory Committees (RACs)

as a mechanism for local community collaboration with federal land managers in recommending Title II

projects on federal lands, or that will benefit resources on federal lands.  Gila County is one of the five

eastern counties that make up the geographical area for the Eastern Arizona RAC. The

Apache-Sigreaves National Forest administers these grant funds.  As we prepare the application for the

next round of these grants, we are asking for the Board's preference regarding which project to select for

this process.

Evaluation

The  Request for Proposal process for the Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects on Federal

Lands is expected to open this month, and close in February 2011.  These are 2010 funds and we are

estimating that $432,000.00 will be available for projects in Gila County.  Title II funds may be used for

projects that improve the maintenance of existing infrastructure, implementing stewardship objectives

that enhance forest ecosystems and restoring and improving land health or water quality.

During the Gila County Board of Supervisors work session on December 7, 2010, we presented eight

projects that met the eligibility requirements for Title II  projects.  After the discussion from the work

session, we have revised the list down to the top two; Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline

Boulevard) in Tonto Basin, and Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon

Road) in Globe.  The attachment more thoroughly describes these two projects.

Both projects were identified in the Small Area Transportation Study (SATS) of 2006. Both projects will

provide for safer roads, reduce response time for emergency vehicles and reduce the road maintenance

costs.

We have not received any response from the Globe Ranger District regarding the NEPA process on

Forest Road 55.  

We have received a telephone call from the Tonto Basin Ranger District offering their support of the

Forest Road 423 project, and offering assistance with the NEPA process.

 

Conclusion

Following the selection process by the Board of Supervisors, we will develop a grant proposal and bring



Following the selection process by the Board of Supervisors, we will develop a grant proposal and bring

the official application back to the Board of Supervisors for approval, signatures and submittal

of the grant.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Board of Supervisors select one of the following projects and direct staff to

proceed with the grant process. 

Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin

Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) in Globe

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to select one of the following projects for the Secure Rural Schools Title

II Special Projects application for 2011:  Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto

Basin or Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) in Globe and direct

staff to proceed with preparing the grant application.  (Jacque Griffin/Steve Stratton/Steve Sanders)

Attachments

Link: Potential Projects for RAC

Link: Secure Rural Schools Program 2008-2011 Overview



Gila County Potential Projects for

SECURE RURAL SCHOOLS PROGRAM
TITLE II, SPECIAL PROJECTS ON FEDERAL LAND

January 4, 2011

• Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Blvd.) in Tonto Basin

This project is identified in the 2006 Gila County Small Area Transportation Study
(SATS). The project would consist of a double chip seal on the unpaved portion
(approximately 5 miles) of Cline Blvd. The existing paved portion of the road
(approximately 2.8 miles) would receive a chip seal overlay and the entire length ofthe
road would be striped. NEP A would need to be done on the road. Gila County has been
in discussions with the Tonto Basin Ranger District about the NEPA process.

Double Chip Seal 60K per mile @ 5 miles = $300,000

Chip Seal existing 2.8 miles of paved @ 30K per mile = $84,000

Double Stripe 7.8 miles (41,184 ft.x2) at .10 per ft = $8,237

Edge Line Stripe 7.8 miles (41,184 ft.x2) at .10 per ft = $8,237

Approximate cost of project $400,474

• Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon
Road)

This project is identified in the County's 2006 SATS. The project would consist of a
double chip seal on the unpaved portion (approximately 3.6 miles) of the road. NEPA
would need to be done on the road. At this time Gila County has not contacted the Globe
Ranger District about the NEP A process. We have been in discussions with the district
about the need for paving the road. Besides a double chip seal there are areas of the road
that should be re-aligned to improve geometry and sight distance. At this time it is hard to
calculate the amount of earth work required to improve sight distance and geometry.
Approximately 4100 feet of Russell Road is under County Easement and not on National
Forest Land would need to have a double chip seal to complete the project that would be
a County project prior to this work.

Double Chip Seal 60K per mile @3.6 miles $216,000

Earthwork to improve geometry and sight distance $200,000

Double Stripe 3.6 miles (19,008 ft.x2) at .10 per ft = $3,801

Edge Line Stripe 3.6 miles (19,008 ft.x2) at .10 per ft = $3,801

Approximate cost of the project $423,600



Secure Rural Schools Program, 2008-2011

Title II - Special Projects on Federal Land
• Title II projects are recommended by resource advisory committees and approved by the Secretary or designee

such as Forest Supervisor or District Ranger. Title II funds may be used for making additional investments in,
and creating additional employment opportunities through, projects that improve the maintenance of existing
infrastructure, implementing stewardship objectives that enhance forest ecosystems, and restoring and improving
land health and water quality. Projects shall enjoy broad based support with objectives that may include, but not
limited to:

o Road, trail, and infrastructure maintenance or obliteration;
o Soil productivity improvement;
o Improvements in forest ecosystem health;
o Watershed restoration and maintenance;
o Restoration, maintenance and improvement of wildlife and fish habitat;
o Control of noxious and exotic weeds; and
oRe-establishment of native species.

• At least 50 percent of all Title II funds must be used for projects that are primarily dedicated to:

o Road maintenance, decommissioning, or obliteration; or
o Restoration of streams and watersheds.

• Title II projects recommended by Resource Advisory Committees (RACs) must be within the RAC's
geographical boundary.

Submitting Title II Project Proposals
• The Act requires RACs to submit Title II project proposals to the Secretary by September 30 of each year. Most

RACs review and recommend projects throughout the year.

• Each proposed project description should include the following:

o The purpose of the project and a description of how the project will meet the purposes of the Act;
o The anticipated duration of the project;
o The anticipated cost of the project;
o The proposed source of funding for the project, whether project funds or other funds;
o Expected outcomes;
o A detailed monitoring plan; and
o An assessment that the project is to be in the public interest

Evaluation and Approval of Title II Projects
• The Secretary, or designee such as Forest Supervisor or District Ranger, may approve a project submitted by a

RAC only if the proposed project satisfies each of the following conditions:

o The project complies with all applicable Federal laws and regulations;
Secure Rural Schools Program - Title II Overview www.fs.fed.us/srshttps:llwwwnotes.fs.fed.us/wo/secure rural schools.nsf
03/05/2009



o The project is consistent with the applicable resource management plan and with any watershed or
subsequent plan developed pursuant to the resource management plan and approved by the Secretary of
Agriculture;

o The project has been recommended by the RAC in accordance with the Act;
o A project description has been submitted by the RAC to the Secretary in accordance with the Act;

• The project will improve the maintenance of existing infrastructure, implement stewardship objectives that
enhance forest ecosystems, and restore and improve land health and water quality.

• The Secretary may request that a RAC agree to use project funds to pay for any environmental review,
consultation, or compliance with applicable environmental laws required in connection with a proposed project.
If the RAC does not agree to the expenditure of funds then the Secretary shall consider the project withdrawn
from further consideration.

• A decision by the Secretary to reject a proposed project shall be at the Secretary's sole discretion. A decision by
the Secretary to reject a proposed project shall not be subject to administrative appeal or judicial review.

• Within 30 days after the Secretary's decision to reject a proposed project, the Secretary shall notify the RAC in
writing of the rejection and the reasons for rejection.

• The Secretary shall publish in the Federal Register a notice of each project approved if such notice would be
required had the project originated with the Secretary.

• Contracts, grants, and cooperative agreements with states, local governments, private and nonprofit entities,
landowners and other persons may be used to assist the Secretary in carrying out an approved project.

Use of Title II Project Funds
• After the issuance of a decision document for the project and the exhaustion of all administrative appeals and

judicial review of the project decision, the Secretary and the RAC shall enter into an agreement addressing, at a
minimum, the following:

o The schedule for completing the project;
o The total cost of the project, including the level of agency overhead to be assessed against the project;
o For a multiyear project, the estimated cost of the project for each of the fiscal years in which it will be

carried out; and
o The remedies for failure of the Secretary to comply with the terms of the agreement.

• The Secretary may decide to cover the costs of a portion of an approved project using Federal funds appropriated
or otherwise available to the Secretary for the same purposes as the project.

• As soon as the Secretary and the RAC have reached agreement with regard to a project to be funded, the
Secretary shall transfer the proper funds to the Forest Service. The Forest Service shall not begin a project until
the project funds are available.

Availability of Title II Project Funds
• Counties shall notify the Secretary of Agriculture of its allocation of funds to Title II no later than September 30

of each fiscal year. By September 30 of each fiscal, a RAC shall submit to the Secretary a sufficient number of
project proposals that if approved, would result in the obligation of at least the full amount of the project funds
reserved by the participating county in the preceding fiscal year.

• Unobligated project funds shall be available for use as part of a RAC project submission in the next fiscal year.
Any project funds not obligated by September 30,2012, will be returned to the u.S. Treasury.

Secure Rural Schools Program - Tille II Overview
03/05/2009

v1ww.fs.f8cl.us/:,rs 111Ius.;/wwwrrul~~.f~r~tJ.us!'NOlsecurerural schools.nsi 2



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Carolyn Haro, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Division: Community Services Department

Fiscal Year: 2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 4-1-2011 to 3-31-2013 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information

Request/Subject

Adoption of Resolution No. 11-01-01 & Resolution No. 11-01-02 and submittal of Application for Owner-Occupied Housing

Rehabilitation Programs to the Arizona Department of Housing

Background Information

This application is in response to the notice of funding availability for the State Housing Fund, Owner-Occupied Housing

Rehabilitation Programs.  It will enable housing rehabilitation for 7 eligible Gila County residents who are currently on a

waiting list.  This is new funding that will be used in conjuction with leveraged funds from U.R.R.D./ACAA, SW Gas/WAP,

APS/WAP, and LIHEAP/WAP  to provide the rehabilitation.

We have previously administered this grant, but there was a lapse in availability and it has been approximately 5 years since

Gila County has been awarded these funds.

Evaluation

The Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program is a grant provided to assist in providing housing rehabilitation to seven

eligible applicants within Gila County.  Funds will be used in collaboration with funding through U.R.R.D/ACAA, SW

Gas/WAP, APS/WAP and LIHEAP/WAP to provide the service.  This project is positive for both residents of Gila County as

well as businesses.  Local contractors are solicited to conduct the rehabilitation.  Rehabilitation projects will be selected from

the current waiting list of eligible applicants.

Conclusion

Both Gila County residents and business owners (contractors) potentially benefit from this grant.  It will increase home

valuation and revitalize neighborhoods.  In addition, small business owners will benefit through employment and additional

projects that would not otherwise be available to them.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the Grant Application to the State Housing Fund,

Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-01 authorizing the submission of a Grant Application for Home

Investment Partnership Program funds, and Resolution No. 11-01-02 adopting housing services guidelines; and to approve the

submission of the Grant Application to the Arizona State Department of Housing, State Housing Fund, in the amount of

$330,000 for the Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project.  

(Malissa Buzan)

Attachments

Link: Application for Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Programs

Link: Resolution No. 11-01-01 to submit OOHR application

Link: Resolution No. 11-01-02 to adopt OOHR guidelines





 
 
 
 

The State Housing Fund 

Application for  
Owner‐Occupied Housing Rehabilitation  

Programs 
 
 
 
 

State of Arizona 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

1110 West Washington Street, Suite 310, Phoenix, Arizona 85007  
 

Telephone (602) 771‐1000  Facsimile (602) 771‐1002  TTY (602) 771‐1001 
www.housingaz.com 

 

The State Housing Fund (Home and Housing Trust Fund) is a program of the Arizona Department of 
Housing (the “Department”).  For more information contact (602) 771‐1000. 

 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in the programs of 
a  public  agency.    Individuals with  disabilities who  need  the  information  contained  in  this  publication  in  an 
alternate format may contact the Department at (602) 771‐1000 or our TTY number, (602) 771‐1001 to make their 
needs  known.    Requests  should  be  made  as  soon  as  possible  to  allow  sufficient  time  to  arrange  for  the 
accommodation. 

   



 
 

State Housing Fund Application Instructions ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs – Page ii  
 

APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 
The State Housing Program Summary and Application Guide 
Because understanding the State’s Housing Program policies is key to completing a successful application, 
applicants must read the SHF Program Summary and Application Guide. The Summary and Application Guide is 
intended to serve as a tool for applicants applying for funding and contains the information necessary to evaluate 
whether a proposed project can meet all aspects of the State Housing Fund programs.   
 
Submission Deadlines 
Submission deadlines will be provided in the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA). 
 
Applications are due (must be in the possession of the Department) no later than 4:00 p.m. on the deadline 
dates noted in the NOFA.  Applications must be mailed or hand delivered to:   

Attn:  State Housing Fund 
Arizona Department of Housing 
1110 West Washington Street, Suite 310 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 

 
Funding Decisions 
The Department will make every effort to make its funding decisions within 60 days, depending on the number 
and complexity of the applications received.   
 
Two (2) copies of the completed application (original & 1 copy) 
Applicants must complete their application packages as described under Application Format, completing all 
required sections and required supporting documentation, submitting one original and one copy (2 copies total). 
Incomplete applications, application packages missing documentation or application packages not filed in the 
quantity indicated will not be accepted for review.  This application package and any subsequent revisions or 
clarifications, if approved for funding, will become part of the agreement with the Department. 

 
Application Format 
Applications must be typewritten or computer generated. Applicants are not to revise the formatting of these forms 
in any way.   A  copy of  this application  is available by US Mail, on diskette, by e‐mail, or at  the Department’s 
website:  www.housingaz.com. 
 
Application material must be:  
• 8 ½ x 11 format 
• single‐sided 
• inserted in a 3 ring binder 
• indexed and tabbed to correspond with the application checklist 
 
In instances where the tab documentation is not applicable to a project, the tab must still be included and a single 
sheet indicating “N/A” should be included in the designated space with an explanation of why the information is 
not applicable.  The tabulation format should not be altered in any way. 



 
 

State Housing Fund Application Instructions ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs – Page iii  
 

1. APPLICATION CHECKLIST AND INDEX – OWNER‐OCCUPIED HOUSING REHABILITATION 
AND OWNER OCCUPIED HOUSING EMERGENCY REPAIR 

 
TAB  Attachment    DESCRIPTION 

      Cover Letter 

      Checklist/Index (Table of Contents)  

      Application Forms 

A       Applicant Eligibility.   

B       Project Description 

C       Organizational Capacity 

D       Commitments for Financing 

E       • Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program Policies  
• Copy of the Governing Body Resolution or Motion to adopt the Program Policies. 

F       Loan Instruments 

G       Market Demand  

H       Community Revitalization 

I       Environmental Review 

J       State Housing Fund Self Score Sheet 

 
Instructions  for  completion  of  Application  Tabs  can  be  found  at  section  5  of  this 
Application form. 



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 1  

 

2. GENERAL APPLICANT AND PROJECT/PROGRAM INFORMATION 

 

2.1. Applicant Information 

Applicant: 

 
 
Gila County Division of Community Services 

Contact Name: 

 
 
Malissa Buzan 

 
Contact Title:  Community Action Housing Services Manager 

 
Mailing Address: 

5515 S. Apache Ave, Suite 200
 

 
Street Address 
(if different from 

mailing) 

Same as mailing 

 
City/State/Zip  Globe, Arizona 85501

 
Telephone  (   928 ) 425‐7631 , Ext. 8693             Facsimile (928) 425‐9468 

  
E‐mail Address 

mbuzan@co.gila.az.us

 
 

 

 
Legal Status of Applicant: 
 

  State‐Certified CHDO 
  *Non‐Profit (non‐CHDO)  
  Local Government 
  Tribal government 
  Council of Government 
  Public Housing Authority 
  State Agency 

*Private development agencies 
  General Partnership 
  Limited Partnership 
  Limited Liability Company 
  Corporation 
  Individual 

 
Federal Tax ID No.______86‐6000444__________________________________ 
 

 
*Required materials: Attach articles of incorporation, by‐laws, partnership agreement or other relevant entity 
organizational information, determination letter and Certification of Good Standing from the Arizona 
Corporation Commission.  Non‐profits must also submit a copy of a recent IRS nonprofit designation letter in 
Tab A.  

An Applicant must be an existing legal entity authorized to conduct business in Arizona.  Prior to making 
application, both governmental, and non‐profit applicants must adopt a resolution of their governing board 
authorizing the submission of an application and acceptance of the entity’s Owner Occupied Housing 
Rehabilitation or Emergency Repair Program Guidelines. 
 
   



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 2  

 

2.2. Location of Project 
 
 
 State and Federal Legislative Congressional Districts: Complete district number and name of Representative 
Federal  U.S. Representative:   Ann Kirkpatrick  Number:    District #1 

State:  Senator:   Sylvia Allen 
Representative:  Bill Konopnicki 

 
Number:  District #5 

 
Project Name:   Gila County Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation___________________________________     

Address:   5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200                 

City/Town:  Globe,                                     County:        Gila                                          Zip:    85501                   

 
Project Description: Describe the project in detail using Attachment B at Tab B. 
 

2.3. Amount of State Housing Funds Requested 
 

Use of Funds  Grant/Loan 
Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation (use this one OR use 
the Owner‐occupied Housing Emergency Repair below.  Only one per application) 

$ 300,000.00 

General Administrative Funds (up to an additional 10% 
of line 1 above) 

$  30,000.00 

 
 

2.4. Type of funding applicant is willing to accept (check all that apply): 

Check all types of funding you are willing to accept, if funded.  

Federal Funds  State Funds   

 
2.5. Type(s) of Property 

 
Check all that apply: 

  Single‐family detached    Condominium Units 

  Single‐family attached, incl. Townhouses    Manufactured Housing 
 

2.6. Relocation Information: 

 
Yes  No  Maybe 
            Will this Program involve temporary relocation of homeowners?  

If yes or maybe, costs must be reflected in the Program Budget at 3.1.2. 
 
 
 

2.7. Proposed Beneficiaries 

 Competitive Scoring: Very‐low income targeting. 
 



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 3  

 

Targeted Populations by 
Income Level 

Total Number of 
Units in Program 

% of Units in 
Program 

Number of 
State‐assisted 
Units in the 
Program 

% of State‐
assisted 
Units 

Households at or below 50% of AMI  3  20  3  20 

Households at or below 60% of AMI         

Households at or below 80% of AMI  4  80  4  80 

Other: Hshlds at or below ___% of 
AMI 

       

Total Number of Units in Program:  7  100%  7  100% 

 
 
 

2.8. Priority Population Set‐Asides 

Complete only if the Program will specifically set‐aside units for a priority population.  Set‐asides will be enforced 
through  contract provisions.  For  a definition  of qualifying populations,  see description  of priority populations 
under Definitions, in the Program Summary and Application Guide. 

 Competitive Scoring: Special Needs Populations targeting. 
 
Priority Population  No. of Units   % of Units 

Physically disabled persons (design elements must be accommodating)  3  60 

Families with children under 18 years of age  2  20 

Elderly (62 years of age and older)    2  20 

Special needs populations identified in Definitions in Program Summary and 
Application Guide 

   

Other special needs groups (must be pre‐approved by the State)      

UNITS NOT SET‐ASIDE FOR PRIORITY POPULATIONS     

Total Number of SHF Assisted Units in Program:  7  100% 

 
   



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 4  

 

2.9. Type of Assistance to Households: 

Program design includes (check all that apply. This should be reflected in your Program Policy):      

        Deferred, forgivable loans           Repayable loans 
 

2.10. Amount of Funds Invested Per Unit 

 
Maximum amount of total subsidy funding (State funds and any other public 
funding available. See Appendix E of the Program Summary and Application 
Guide; you can go lower but NOT higher) to be invested in any one unit: 

$ 90,000.00 

Maximum amount of State Housing Funds to be invested in any one unit:  $45,000.00 
 

2.11. Method to Determine “After Rehab Value”  

Describe how the after rehabilitation value of assisted units will be determined to ensure that units do not exceed 
maximum property values (95% of the FHA 203(b) insuring limits) 
 
A copy of the home assessment will be obtained from the Gila County Assessor’s Office prior to the project 

commencement.  The cost of the rehabilitation will be added to the assessed value of the property and the result 
will be the “After Rehab Value”.  The “After Rehab Value” will not exceed 95% of the FHA 203(B)  
insuring limits.  

 

2.12. Recapture Period  

If the program will include recapture provisions, please indicate required terms, including recapture period (i.e, 
repayable if property sold within 5 years of investment, etc.) 
 
If the loan amount is:    Up to $15,000, the recapture period will be 5 years;  $15,001 to $40,000 the recapture 

Period will be 10 years ;  $40,001 and above the recapture period will be 15 years. 

 

2.13. Form of Ownership to be Assisted  

Applicant must hold either:  1) fee simple title to the property; or 2) a 99 year leasehold on the property. 
 

2.14. Property Standards 

 
  Properties will meet the state’s rehabilitation standards and all applicable local codes, ordinances, 

and zoning ordinances at the time of project completion. 

  Properties will meet the state rehabilitation standards and, in the absence of a local code for new 
construction or rehabilitation, properties will meet the following (check choice below): 

    Uniform Building Code (ICBO) 

    National Building Code (BOCA) 

    Standard Building Code (SBCCI) 

    the Council of American Building Officials (CABO) one or two family code; 

    the Minimum Property Standards (MPS) in 24 CFR 200.925 or 200.926. 
 
   



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 5  

 

2.15.   Waiting List 

Applicant currently:     
  Maintains a waiting list of eligible households ** 

Number of households on waiting list  95  Average length of wait for assistance (months)  60 

 
Date waiting list 
commenced:  

07‐01‐2001

**Provide a spreadsheet of income qualified households who have applied to receive assistance and the household demographics 
including but not limited to household size, race, ethnicity, income, % AMI, etc. with the Market Demand analysis at TAB F of this 
application.  

 
  Does not maintain a waiting list 

 

2.16. Basis of Loan 

 
Describe the basis for the loan terms proposed. 
The amount of assistance over a ten year period would give the best benefit to the homeowner and also 

The Federal Government for the assistance.  

 

 
 

2.17. Program Team 

 
Complete for each project or program team member. Identify the name of the responsible party and the experience 
that they have in this role. Team members identified after the application are subject to review.   
 
 

Function  Responsible Party Experience 

Project Manager 
 
Malissa Buzan 
 

Six years experience in CDBG and HOME 
Rehabilitation programs; fourteen years in emergency 
home repairs; eight years in grant management.  

Program Coordinator 
Estelle Belarde 
 

Six years on HOME and CDBG rehabilitation programs; 
HTF programs; Weatherization and Home repairs.  

Rehabilitation Specialist 

 
Gabe Eylicio 
 
 

Twelve years experience in the 
construction/maintenance trades.  Has completed 
certifications for the WAP program; five years in CDBG, 
HTF and emergency repair programs. 

Loan Servicing Specialist 
 
B. Chris Kell 
 

__ years experience in handling title loans; 30 years 
accounting experience.  6 months in CDBG, WAP, and 
emergency repair programs. 

Fiscal Manager 

 
Bree’na York 
 

Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Sciences and Office 
Technology.   Nine years experience with CDBG, 
HOME and Emergency Repair Program fiscal 
management. 

Consultants 
 
Christine Lopez 
 

17 years experience in CDBG, HOME, and Emergency 
Repair programs.   20 years case management and social 
services experience.   



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 6  

 

Function  Responsible Party Experience 

Other: 
 
 
 

 

Other:  
 
 
 

 

 
 

2.18. Program Timeline: 

 
Projected start date   04‐01‐2011  Projected completion date 03‐31‐2013 

(Approximately 120 days after the date the of the application deadline) 

 
Applicants must provide a schedule for the Program that lists major program activities and indicates when they 
will be executed. Additional information such as contractor selection, final inspection, loan closing, etc. should be 
included when known.  
 

Program Schedule
Major Program activities:  1st quarter 2nd quarter 3rd quarter  4th quarter
  (each box represents one month) 
Execute Contract  X  X                     

Identification of Units        X  X  X  X  X  X       

ERR    X  X                   

Initiate Project Set‐Ups                X  X  X  X  X 

Rehabilitation                X  X  X  X  X 

Quarterly Program Progress reporting.      X      X      X      X 

Quarterly Performance Measurement 
Outcomes reporting 

    X      X      X      X 

Individual Project Close out                         

Contract Close out                         

                         

 
Program Schedule

Major Program activities:  5th quarter 6th quarter 7th quarter  8th quarter
  (each box represents one month) 
Rehabilitation  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X       

Quarterly Program Project Reporting      X      X      X      X 

Quarterly Performance Measurement 
Outcomes Reporting 

    X      X      X      X 

Individual Project Closeout  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X       

Contract Closeout                    X  X  X 

                         

                         



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 7  

 

 

3. BUDGET STATEMENTS 

 
3.1.1. Program Budget Sources 

Full disclosure of all financing sources available is required. Letters of Commitment must be attached at Tab C.  If after 
submittal of the application, additional financing sources are obtained, these sources must be immediately reported 
to Housing. Additionally, Housing may require a final uses and sources review  if all sources are not firm at the 
time of application.  
 
Column A  Identify all sources of program financing. 

Column B  Include here only funding sources that are firmly committed at the time of application 
submittal. 

Column C  Include here only  funding sources  that are  tentative  (including funding requested  in this 
application) that is tentative at the time of application submittal. 

Column D  Indicate whether this commitment is a grant or a loan that must be repaid. All commitment 
letters included at Tab C should clearly state the terms of repayment of any loans. 

Column E  Include date(s) other tentative funding sources were applied for.   

Column F  Include the date(s) of expected award notification for other tentative funding sources.  

 
Program Funding 

A  B C
 

D E  F

Source  Funds Committed Tentative Loan or 
grant 

Date applied  Date of 
notification 

State Housing Funds (Do NOT include general 
administrative funding). 

$300,000.00   

1. 
U.R.R.D./ACAA 
 

$14,000.00    Grant     

2.  SW Gas/WAP 
 
 

 12,000.00    Grant     

3.  APS/WAP 
 
 

 42,000.00    Grant     

4.  LIHEAP/WAP 
 
 

 14,000.00    Grant     

Total Amount of funding 
(total of columns B and C) 

$382,000.00 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 8  

 

3.1.2. Program Budget Uses 
Column A.    If a specific use of funds is not listed, indicate the type of use in “Other” box. 
Column B.    Indicate the amount of State Housing Funds being requested for this specific use. 
Column C.  Indicate amount financed by all other funding sources. 
Column D.  Indicate the total amount of columns B and C for the specified use. 
Column E.  Spell out the source(s) name for sources indicated in column C (e.g., bank loan, CDBG) 
 

A  B  C D E 
Activity   State Housing 

Funds 
Other Sources   Total All 

Sources 
Source(s) 

Site Improvements and Demolition 
On‐site         

Landscaping         

Demolition         

Rehabilitation Costs     
Direct Construction  247,202.00   82,000.00  329,202.00  URRD, APS, SWG, 

LIHEAP/WAP 
Lead Paint 
Inspection/Clearance 

    7,000.00       7,000.00   

Permits/Fees         

Other         

Professional Fees         
Arch. Design/Supervision         

Environmental Review (if 
linked to a unit) 

       

Legal Fees         

Loan Financing Fees 
Title & Recording       798.00       

Credit Reports         

Miscellaneous Soft Costs 
         

         

Temporary Relocation  
Rent or Lodging         

Meals & Misc.          

Project Specific Administration 
Rehabilitation Specialist   45,000.00       

Travel  0       

Other:   0       

Subtotal Program Project 
Costs 

300,000.00   82,000.00     

General Admin from 2.3.    30,000.00       

Totals   $330,000.00  $  82,000.00  $ 382,000.00   

 



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 9  

 

4. STATE HOUSING FUND APPLICANT AFFIDAVIT, RELEASE AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
The undersigned Applicant hereby applies to the Arizona Department of Housing, its successors and assigns (the 
“Department”),  for  a  commitment  of  State Housing  Funds.  The  undersigned  is  responsible  for  ensuring  that  the 
program will assist only qualified low income housing as described in the application, and will satisfy all applicable State 
and Federal requirements in the rehabilitation or construction to receive a commitment of State Housing Funds.  The 
Applicant represents and certifies that the application has not requested more State Housing Funds than is necessary to 
provide  the assistance described  in  this application.    In planning  this project or program,  the Applicant certifies 
that  it has provided  for and will continue  to encourage  the participation of citizens, particularly persons of  low 
income who are residents of areas in which the State Housing Funds are proposed to be used. 
 
The Applicant understands that the Department will determine the eligibility of the project or program based, at 
least in part, on the information in and submitted with the application by the Applicant and the readiness of the 
program  to  proceed,  as  presented  in  the  application.  The  Applicant  is  responsible  for  the  accuracy  of  all 
information  submitted.   Misrepresentations, mistakes  or  omissions may  be  the  basis  for  the  cancellation  of  an 
award. 
 
The Applicant understands and agrees that should the Department commit more funds than the State of Arizona 
is entitled to award in any given fiscal year (whether State or Federal), and funding is not available as awarded, 
the Department shall be held harmless by the Applicant, the Applicant’s investors and anyone else relying upon 
the commitment. 
 
The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that it will at all times cooperate with regard to request(s) for submittal of 
additional requests for information from the Department as necessary. 
 
The  Applicant  acknowledges  and  agrees  to  fully  comply  and  cooperate  with  all  monitoring  activity  of  the 
Department after the date of commitment.  The Applicant will give the State, the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, and any State authorized representative access to and the right to examine all records, books, 
papers, or documents related to the application and any resulting funding awards. 
 
By  executing  this  authorization  and  release,  the Applicant  does  hereby  authorize  the Arizona Department  of 
Housing, its successors and assigns, to obtain and furnish and release, to all proper institutions and/or agencies, 
full and complete records,  reports and/or  information pertaining  to  the Applicant and  its application under  the 
State Housing Fund program. 
 
The Applicant  agrees  In  compliance with  State  and  Federal  laws  regarding  conflict  of  interest. No  elected  or 
appointed  officer  or  employee  of  the  Applicant  may  seek  or  accept  any  gifts,  service,  favor,  employment, 
engagement, emolument or economic opportunity which would tend improperly to influence a reasonable person 
in  that position  to depart  from  the  faithful and  impartial discharge of  the duties of  that position. No officer or 
employee may use his or her position  to  secure or grant  any unwarranted privilege, preference,  exemption or 
advantage for himself or herself, any member of his or her household, any business entity in which he or she has a 
direct or  indirect  financial  interest, or any other person. No officer or employee may participate as an agent of 
Applicant in the negotiation or execution of any contract between Applicant and any private business in which he 
or she has a direct or indirect financial interest. No officer or employee of Applicant may suppress any report or 
other document because it might tend to affect unfavorably his/her financial interests. 
 
The Applicant agrees that the Arizona Department of Housing, its successors and assigns, its agents, employees, 
attorneys,  contractors and  representatives will at all  times be  indemnified and held harmless against all  losses, 
costs, damages, expenses and  liabilities of whatsoever nature or kind  (including, but not confined  to, attorneys’ 
fees,  litigation and court costs, amounts paid  in settlement, and amounts paid  to discharge  judgments, and any 
loss  from  such  judgments  or  assessments)  directly  or  indirectly  resulting  from,  arising  out  of,  or  related  to 
acceptance, consideration and approval or disapproval of the Applicant’s application for funding. 
 



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 10  

 

The Applicant hereby represents and certifies under penalty of A.R.S. 13‐2311 and 39‐161 that the information set 
forth herein, and all material  submitted by  the Applicant  to  the Department, are  to  the best of  the Applicant’s 
knowledge, true and complete and accurately describe the proposed project. The undersigned is duly authorized 
to execute this instrument on behalf of the Applicant and possesses the legal authority to apply for an allocation of 
State Housing Funds and to execute the proposed program.   
 
Further, the Applicant represents that its governing body has duly adopted or passed an official act of resolution, 
motion or  similar  action  authorizing  the  filing of  the  application,  including  all understandings  and  assurances 
required,  and  directing  and  authorizing  the  applicant’s  chief  executive  officer  and/or  other  designated  official 
representative  to act  in  connection with  the application and  to provide  such additional  information as may be 
required. 
 
The Applicant understands  that all representations made herein, and all documentation submitted,  is subject  to 
verification by the Department, and that any misrepresentations or inaccuracies, whether intentional or not, may 
subject the project to a loss of competitive scoring points or to disqualification.   For the purposes of verification, 
the Applicant and Developer hereby authorize the Department to request information on entities and individuals 
closely related to this transaction from any lender, investor, or other institution or entity named in this application. 
Such  information  includes but  is not  limited  to audits,  financial statements, credit history, copies of  income  tax 
returns, and other information deemed necessary by the Department. 
 
The Applicant has caused this document to be duly executed in its name as of this _________________ day of 
________________________________________, 20_________. 
 
 
 
Applicant Name:      Gila County Community Action Housing Services ___________________________________   
 
 
By:  ______________________________________________________________________________________________    

(Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:                                                                    ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________                                              ___________________________________ 
Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney                                      Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
                                                                                                                      of Supervisors



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 11  

 

attachments ‐ instructions 
Required attachments as specified in the Application Checklist and the Application Forms must be included and 
appropriately tabbed.  Following are detailed instructions for attachments that are not self‐explanatory or 
otherwise included in the application packet. 
 
 
Attachment  DESCRIPTION and INSTRUCTIONS 

A   Applicant Eligibility 

• An Applicant must be an existing legal entity authorized to conduct business in Arizona. Only 
an authorized representative may sign any documentation that requires the signature of the 
Applicant.  The Department will reject forms signed in the name of an entity that does not 
legally exist or by a representative without authority.  

• For Non‐Profit or governmental applicants – Provide a Resolution to Apply for Funding. See the 
sample Attachment A included at page 13 of this application form. 

• Attach articles of incorporation, by‐laws, partnership agreement or other relevant entity 
organizational information, determination letter and Certification of Good Standing from the 
Arizona Corporation Commission.  If a non‐profit attach a copy of the IRS nonprofit designation 
letter.  Provide evidence of a 501(c)(3) or (4) status in the form of an Internal Revenue Service 
Proof of Nonprofit Status.  Attach a copy of the IRS nonprofit designation letter.  Provide 
evidence of a 501(c)(3) or (4) status in the form of an Internal Revenue Service 

B   Project Description 
Provide descriptive information about the project including the number of units, the expected 
condition of the homes, specific geographic targeting, steps required to implement the project 
successfully and the expected timeline to complete the project.   (The applicant’s ability to fully 
describe the project is a key indicator of the applicant’s understanding of what is required to 
complete the project successfully.) 

C   Organizational Capacity 
Provide documented evidence of Applicant and/or Program Team experience with one or more 
of the following: 

• Written agreements with applicant outlining the responsibilities between parties. 
• Resumes. 
• 3rd party letters of recommendation. 
• Documentation of successful projects. 

D   Commitments for Financing 
• Applicants with firm commitments for financing must include commitment letter(s) from the 

source of financing.  Commitment letters must be on the letterhead of the organization 
providing the commitment.  The letterhead must include the mailing address and phone 
number of the organization.  The letter must include the name of the contact person, contact 
person phone number, eligible uses of committed funds, terms and conditions of the 
commitment, including but not limited to repayment provisions, loan period, interest rate, and 
loan‐to‐value and debt coverage ratios, expiration date of the commitment, if any, signature and 
typed title and name of authorized official.   

• If requesting State Housing Funds for projects with no other financing sources, include a copy of 
at least two denial letters from the other financing sources.   

 
 

E   Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program Policies 
• Include Program Policies, as described in Section 5.13 of the SHF Program Summary and 



 
State Housing Fund Application  ‐ Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Emergency Repair Programs– Page 12  

 

Application Guide, for Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation. 
• Include copy of Governing Body Resolution or Motion to adopt Program Policies. 

F   Loan Instruments   
Provide a copy of the Construction Contract, Deed of Trust and Promissory Notes that will be used 
to secure the rehabilitation loans. 
 

G   Market Demand 
1. Describe the market demand based on a demographic analysis of the target area, the target 
population and information on the condition of the housing stock and rehabilitation needs. Describe 
the degree to which comparable programs and services are available to the proposed service area.   
2. Provide a spreadsheet of income qualified households who have applied to receive assistance and 
the household demographics including but not limited to household size, race, ethnicity, income, % 
AMI, etc. 

H   Community Revitalization 

Provide evidence proposed project addresses an identified planning need or objective 
of the local government with one or more of the following:  

• correspondence between project principals and local government originating 
at least 9 months prior to application deadline;   

• a local governing body resolution or ordinance dated at least 9 months prior 
to application;  

• a planning document approved by the local governing body at least 9 months 
prior to application. 

• Federal Empowerment Zones or Federal Enterprise 
Communities 

• Established HUD Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy 
Areas 

• Established Colonias as designated by the United States Department of 
Agriculture or HUD 

• Geographic areas or parcels of property that are established by the local 
government as part of a comprehensive affordable housing plan. 

• Revitalization area designated by the local 
government 

  

I   Environmental Review 
• Projects must complete Attachment G “Environmental Review Determination Form”. 
• Provide Flood Plain Map where project is located detailing the flood zone. 
• Provide completed Environmental Review requirements pursuant to 24 CFR Part 

58, up to Part III HUD Appendix A 2004 

J   Complete the State Housing Fund Self Score Sheet 

   



 

 

E-1 PROJECT NARRATIVE  
 Recipient:Gila County Housing Services 
 ADOH Contract No.: CDBG, HOME, HTF, SSP, SHF 

 
 

ADOH ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW RECORD 
PROJECT NARRATIVE 

 
1. Project Title: Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation and Owner Occupied Emergency Repairs 

 
2. Project Description: (attach additional pages as necessary) Gila County proposes to use in house services 

to procure construction services from local licensed contractors to rehabilitate and/or provide emergency 
repairs to owner-occupied, single family homes throughout the County.  All work will meet Arizona State 
Rehabilitation Standards and Uniform Building Code.  The assistance wil be provided through either 1) 
deferred payment loans; or grants (emergency repair only).  These activities will meet the low and 
moderate income housing national objective.  Gila County operates a continuing housing program to 
address countywide needs.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Complete item a and b if the information is not included in the attachment. 
 
 a. Geographic Location (street names, compass direction, relation to town limit): 

Gila County, excluding flood plain areas, and Indian Reservations. 
 
 
 b. Size and/or Area (sq. ft. of building, size and length of pipe, no. of units): 

Individual homes that will be assisted are of varying sizes. 
 
 c. Existing Environmental Conditions (i.e., no sewer system, river contamination,  
  unpaved streets, residential area, fully developed): 

A majority of the homes are located in residential areas.  Some homes receiving assistance may be in 
unincorporated areas of the County and will  not be tied into a sewer sytem, but on septic systems.   
Most areas will have paved street,s although some remote areas lack paved streets.     
 

 
 d. Purpose (i.e., to improve traffic and driving conditions by widening roads): 

To improve the health, safety, energy affordability and efficiency of single family homes by providing 
rehabilitation and/or emergency repairs.  

 
e. Cost:   

Federal Funds  Source: DOE WAP $36,000.00   
Leverage/Other  Source: LIHEAP WAP $36000.00 
 

  Leverage/Other  Source:              
  

      TOTAL $72,000.00 
 
4. Map attached with project site clearly marked: Yes  



 

 

 
5. Prepared By: 
 
 Name: Malissa Buzan 

 
 

Signature: __________________________________________________________  
        



 

 
E-3.1   LEVEL OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW DETERMINATION  (2004) 
 
 

Project Name / Description: Gila County CDBG, HOME, HTF, SHF, SSP 
 
Level of Environmental Review: 
(Exempt per 24 CFR 58.34, Categorically excluded not subject to statutes per § 58.35(b), Categorically excluded subject to statutes per 
 §58.35(a), Environmental Assessment per § 58.36, or EIS per 40 CFR 1500) 
 

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS LISTED AT 24 CFR 58.6 
FLOOD INSURANCE / FLOOD DISASTER PROTECTION ACT  
1. Does the project involve the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of structures, buildings or mobile homes?   
  No.  Flood insurance is not required.  The review of this factor is completed. 
  Yes; continue.  

 
2. Is the structure or part of the structure located in a FEMA designated Special Flood Hazard Area? 
  No.  Source Document (FEMA/FIRM floodplain zone designation, panel number, date):  
       (Factor review completed). 

   Yes.  Source Document (FEMA/FIRM floodplain zone designation, panel number, date): 
        (Continue review). 

 
3.  Is the community participating in the National Insurance Program (or has less than one year passed since FEMA 

notification of Special Flood Hazards)? 
 Yes. Flood Insurance under the National Flood Insurance Program must be obtained and maintained for the 

economic life of the project, in the amount of the total project cost.  A copy of the flood insurance policy 
declaration must be kept in the Environmental Review Record.  

 No.  (Federal assistance may not be used in the Special Flood Hazards Area). 
 
COASTAL BARRIERS RESOURCES ACT 

1. Is the project located in a coastal barrier resource area? (See www.fema.gov/nfip/cobra.shtm ).  
   No.  Cite Source Documentation: 
         (This element is completed). 
  Yes. Federal assistance may not be used in such an area. 

 
AIRPORT RUNWAY CLEAR ZONES AND CLEAR ZONES DISCLOSURES 
1.  Does the project involve the sale or acquisition of existing property within a Civil Airport's Runway Clear Zone, 

Approach Protection Zone or a Military Installation's Clear Zone? 
 No. Cite SD, page:       

 
2. Project complies with 24 CFR 51.303(a)(3). 

 Yes.  Disclosure statement must be provided to buyer and a copy of the signed disclosure statement must 
be maintained in this Environmental Review Record. 

 
Prepared by (insert name and title)Malissa Buzan, Gila County Housing Services Manager 
 
 
 _______________________________________   _______________________________________   
Signature Date  
 
Responsible Entity (insert name and title)Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 ________________________________________   _______________________________________   
Signature Date  
 



 
Publication for CE Projects (no floodplain/wetlands) 

 
 
E-P.2 - NOTICE OF INTENT TO REQUEST RELEASE OF FUNDS 

 
 
Date of Notice  12-16-10 
 
Name of Responsible Entity (RE)  Gila County Housing Services 
 
Street Address  5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200 
 
City, State, Zip Code  Globe, AZ 85501 
 
Telephone number of RE Preparer Agency  (928) 425-7631 
 
On or about January 14, 2011 the Gila County Housing Services  will submit a request to the Arizona 
Department of Housing for the release of Federal funds under Title 1 of the Hosing and Community 
Development Act of  of 1974, as amended, to undertake a project known as Owner Occupied Housing 
Rehabilitation  for the purpose of providing housing rehabilitation to owner-occupied homes in Gila 
County.  
The activities proposed are Categorically Excluded under HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 58 from National 
Environmental Policy Act requirements.  For owner occupied rehabilitation projects, pursuant to 24 CFR 58.15, 
a specific review of the following items will be conducted on each proposed structure to be rehabilitated prior to 
beginning construction, and mitigation or project denial will be implemented as necessary:  Historic 
Preservation, Airport Clearzones, Explosive and Flammable Operations, Toxic/Hazardous Materials, 
Contamination, Chemicals or Gasses; and Lead Based Paint.  An Environmental Review Record (ERR) that 
documents the environmental determinations for this project is on file at Gila County Housing Services and 
may be examined or copied weekdays 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Any individual, group, or agency may submit written comments on the ERR to the Gila County Housing 
Services.  All comments received by January 1, 2011 will be considered by Gila County prior to authorizing 
submission of a request for release of funds. 
 
 

RELEASE OF FUNDS 
 
The Certifying Officer certifies to Arizona Department of Housing that Michael A. Pastor in his capacity as 
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors consents to accept the jurisdiction of the Federal Courts if an 
action is brought to enforce responsibilities in relation to the environmental review process and that these 
responsibilities have been satisfied. Arizona Department of Housing approval of the certification satisfies its 
responsibilities under NEPA and related laws and authorities, and allows Gila County to use Program funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

OBJECTIONS TO RELEASE OF FUNDS 
 
Arizona Department of Housing will consider objections to its release of funds and the Gila County 
certification received by January 18, 2011 or for a period of fifteen days following its actual receipt of the 
request (whichever is later) only if they are on one of the following bases: (a) the certification was not executed 
by the Certifying Officer of the Gila County; (b)  Gila County has omitted a step or failed to make a decision 
or finding required by HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 58; (c) the grant recipient or other participants in the 
project have committed funds or incurred costs not authorized by 24 CFR Part 58 before approval of a release 
of funds by Arizona Department of Housing; or (d) another Federal agency acting pursuant to 40 CFR Part 
1504 has submitted a written finding that the project is unsatisfactory from the standpoint of environmental 
quality.  Objections must be prepared and submitted in accordance with the required procedures (24 CFR Part 
58) and shall be addressed to Arizona Department of Housing at 1110 W. Washington Ave., Suite 310, 
Phoenix, AZ  85007.  Potential objectors should contact Arizona Department of Housing to verify the actual 
last day of the objection period. 
 
 
Name and Title of Certifying Officer: 
Michael A. Pastor 
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
        
Signature of Certifying Officer 
 

 
 
                                                                             

 
 
                                                                              

 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-01-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (HOME) FUNDS, 
CERTIFYING THAT SAID APPLICATION MEETS THE COMMUNITY’S 
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS AND THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE STATE HOUSING PROGRAMS, AND 
AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT AND 
COMPLETE THE ACTIVITIES OUTLINED IN SAID APPLICATION. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking affordable housing 
development activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Arizona is administering the State Housing Fund Program; and  

 
WHEREAS, the State Housing Fund Program requires that State Housing Funds benefit low-income 
households; and 
 
WHEREAS, the activity in the application addresses the community’s low-income population housing 
needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, a recipient of State Housing Funds is required to comply with program guidelines, State and 
Federal statutes and regulations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorize the 
submission of an application for HOME Investment Partnership Program funds to the State of Arizona for 
funding from the State Housing Fund, and authorize Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Gila County 
Board of Supervisors, to sign the application and contract or grant documents for receipt and use of these 
funds, and also authorize David Fletcher, Community Services Division Director, to take all actions 
necessary to implement and complete the activities submitted in said application; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will comply with all State 
Housing Fund Program Guidelines, State and Federal statutes and regulations applicable to the State 
Housing Fund Program (HOME program and/or State Housing Trust Fund) and the certifications 
contained in the application.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of January 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-01-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF HOUSING SERVICES 
PROGRAM GUIDELINES DATED SEPTEMBER 22, 2010, IN RELATION TO 
AN APPLICATION FOR FY 2010 STATE HOUSING FUNDS FOR HOUSING 
REHABILITATION ACTIVITIES.  
 

WHEREAS, Gila County is desirous of undertaking an Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 
Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Program is funded by the State of Arizona through its State Housing Fund Program; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the State Housing Fund Program requires that every local government requesting HOME 
Investment Partnership Program (HOME), Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), and 
Emergency Repair funds, which are used for housing rehabilitation and emergency repairs, adopt specific 
guidelines for such a program; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County has developed such Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 
(OOHRPG) guidelines, dated September 22, 2010, which have been pre-approved by the State Housing 
Fund Program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts 
such OOHRPGs, dated September 22, 2010, which shall be used to implement its State Housing Fund 
Program funded housing rehabilitation and emergency repair programs funded through its application for 
FY 2008 funds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Gila County shall utilize such OOHRPGs, without revisions except 
such authorized by the chief elected official or a person authorized in writing to approve such revisions 
via the State Housing Fund Program’s CD-1 form; with such revisions submitted to the State Housing 
Fund Program within a maximum of 10 working days of authorization. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of January 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information

Request/Subject

Gila County Public Works Engineering Department has received a petition and request from Landmark

at the Creek LLC., to vacate a portion of Christopher Creek Loop.

Background Information

Christopher Creek Loop is in the community of Christopher Creek and was formerly Arizona State

Route 260. When SR 260 was realigned around the community, the Arizona Department of

Transportation turned the road back to Gila County. Gila County accepted the road into the County's

Maintained Roadway System and renamed the road Christopher Creek Loop. When this roadway was in

ADOT's system the right-of-way varied in width from 100 to 200 feet. Now that the road is no longer in

the State Highway System and traffic has been reduced for the most part to local traffic the existing

width of the right-of-way is no longer necessary. The area requested for abandonment is adjacent to the

petitioners property, currently identified as Assessor's parcel 303-10-094A.

Evaluation

After many on-site visits between the owner's representatives and staff, an area for abandonment was

agreed upon and supported by staff.  The proposed abandonment will not have an effect on access

through the area nor  will it impact the area needed to maintain the roadway.

Conclusion

It is in the best interest of the County for the Board of Supervisors to authorize the Engineering

Department to begin the process to dispose of this unnecessary public roadway.

Recommendation

The recommendation from the Engineering Department is to approve the motion to begin the process to

dispose of an unnecesssary roadway.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a petition from Landmark at the Creek LLC, to begin

the process to dispose of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Christopher Creek Loop as

shown on the attached map.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments

Link: Petition to Vacate a Roadway

Link: Map

Link: Legal Description







Ex
tr

em
e L

an
d 

S
ur

ve
yi

ng
, I

nc
.

P
D

F 
cr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
 p

df
Fa

ct
or

y 
tri

al
 v

er
si

on
 w

w
w.

pd
ffa

ct
or

y.
co

m

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

VACATION OF RIGHT‐OF‐WAY 

LANDMARK AT THE CREEK 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF 
THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, BEING A FOUND BLM BRASS 
CAP, 

THENCE; CONTINUING SOUTH 89°31’20” WEST(C), NORTH 89°58’00” WEST 516.15 FEET (R&C), ALONG 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 19 TO A POINT, 

THENCE; NORTH 39°40’40” WEST, 137.34 FEET TO THE WESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 113 OF CHRISTOPHER 
CREEK HAVEN, PLAT THREE, AS RECORDED IN MAP 201, RECORDS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 

THENCE; NORTH 50°19’20” EAST, 180.85 FEET(C), NORTH 50°30’00” EAST, 180.85 FEET(R) TO THE 
WESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 114 OF SAID CHRISTOPHER CREEK HAVEN, PLAT THREE, AND THE TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING OF THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION. 

THENCE; NORTH 39°54’00” WEST, 9.74 FEET 

THENCE; NORTH 50°19’20” EAST, 210.00 FEET, PARALLEL WITH THE NORTHWEST LINE OF LOTS 114, 115, 
OF SAID CHRISTOPHER CREEK HAVEN, PLAT THREE, TO A POINT NORTH 39°54’00” WEST, 9.74 FEET, 
PERPENDICULAR TO THE PROLONGATION OF THE NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID CHRISTOPHER CREEK 
HAVE, PLAT THREE, BEARING NORTH 50°19’20” EAST, 217.63 FEET (M) FROM THE NORTHERLY CORNER 
OF LOT 115, OF SAID CHRISTOPHER CREEK HAVEN, PLAT THREE, 

THENCE; SOUTH 39°54’00” EAST, 9.74 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THAT TRACT 
OF LAND CONVEYED AS RIGHT‐OF‐WAY EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION IN DKT.  301, PGS. 94‐105 & A.D.O.T. 260 GI 273 H0888 01R – RESULTS OF SURVEY, 

THENCE; SOUTH 39°54’00” EAST, 7.24 FEET, 

THENCE; SOUTH 50°06’00” WEST, 210.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF SAID RIGHT‐
OF‐WAY EASEMENT AS DESCRIBED HEREIN ABOVE, BEARING SOUTH 39°34’00” EAST, 8.05 FEET FROM 
SAID WESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 114, OF SAID CHRISTOPHER CREEK HAVEN, PLAT THREE, 

THENCE; NORTH 39°54’00” WEST, 8.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

AREA CONTAINS: 3651 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.08 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

  

                             EXPIRES 9‐30‐13 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Shannon Coons, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Fiscal Year: 2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: January 4, 2011 until paperwork signed 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Request to purchase property from Jack-in-the-Box, Inc. in Globe to re-align Monroe Street at

Courthouse.

Background Information

The Monroe Street extension was adopted by resolution into the County highway January 20, 1993. For

several years Gila County has requested that Jack-in-the-Box, Inc. sell the County a portion of its

property to enable the County to realign this portion of Monroe Street at 7th Street for safety reasons.

The hill creates a blind area for both east and west bound drivers and it is a safety hazard. A project was

added to the Engineering CIP 5-year plan to reconstruct Monroe Street to make it safer.  There will

be retaining wall work involved and at 90% plans, the Engineer's estimate in Sept 2008 was $564,119

which includes a 20% contingency. The engineering contract from 2007 in the amount of $24,854 still

has $1,185.50 to be expensed for bid package contract technical specifications and special provision

documents.  To prepare for the project other expenses such as underground fiber optic had to be moved.

Total expenses to date for this project since 2007 is $42,796 out of the Transportation Half-Cent Excise

Tax Fund. 

Evaluation

Monroe Street is the main exit for employees and the public traveling west bound from the Courthouse,

Guerrero Complex and Arizona D.E.S. buildings. Left turns onto Ash Street have been prohibited for

safety reasons. The east bound side of the road has a vertical drop off of about 20' into the D.E.S.

parking lot. Before we take the appraisal and survey information to a title agency for processing the

Public Works Division wanted approval from the Gila County Board of Supervisors to proceed with the

purchase of the Jack-in-the-Box property for this road realignment. The 2 parcels affected have been

surveyed and appraised. The sale amount of $18,000 has been pre-approved by the Jack-in-the-Box

corporation as seen in the Letter of Intent dated October 18, 2010. The County thought it could just do a

Quit-Claim deed but the Gila County Attorney's office believes we should go through the Title Insurance

for a warranty deed. This amount plus closing costs will come from the Transportation Half-Cent Excise

Tax Fund.

Conclusion

In order for the Monroe Street realignment to go forward, these pieces of property are an integral part of

that project and without them the County can't realign the road. For public and employee safety the

County wants to get the project underway by next summer.



Recommendation

The Public Works Division requests that the Board approve the purchase of the

Jack-in-the-Box properties for the Monroe Street realignment in the amount of $18,000 plus closing fees.

Suggested Motion

Information/ Discussion/ Action to approve the purchase of parcel no. 205-14-035E and a portion of

parcel no. 205-14-035C from Jack-in-the-Box Inc. in the amount of $18,000 plus closing fees for the

Monroe Street realignment project. (Steve Stratton)

Attachments

Link: Appraisal

Link: Letter of Intent to Purchase

Link: Record of Survey

Link: Legal Desc of Partial Parcel

Link: Legal Desc of Entire Partial



SUMMARY APPRAISAL OF 
A PARTIAL TAKING OF 2 STRIPS 

FROM THE EXISTING JACK-IN-THE-BOX SITE 
 

 
 

LOCATED AT 
 

1402 EAST ASH STREET 
GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 

 
PREPARED FOR 

 
Mr. Steve Stratton 

Director, Gila County Public Works Division 
1400 East Ash Street 

Globe, Arizona  85501 
 

AS OF JUNE 23, 2010 
 

PREPARED BY 
 

Kurt Peer, Appraiser 
PO Box 3227 

Sierra Vista, Arizona  85636 
File No:  3074 



3074  2 

 
KURT PEER APPRAISER PO Box 3227 

Sierra Vista, Arizona  85636 

Commercial and Residential Appraisals Throughout Arizona Tel (520) 465-7074 
Fax (520) 459-0719 

kurt511@cox.net 
 
 
June 28, 2010 
 
 
 
Mr. Steve Stratton 
Director, Gila County Public Works Division 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona  85501 
 
Re: Commercial Appraisal in Summary Format of 
 A Partial Taking of Two Strips 

From the Existing Jack-in-the Box Site 
Located at 1402 East Ash Street 

 Globe, Arizona  85501 
 Appraiser’s File No. 3074 
 
Dear Mr. Stratton:   
 
Pursuant to your request, I have prepared herewith a Summary Appraisal whose purpose is to 
estimate the As Is Market Value of the fee simple interest in the above-noted subject property.  
The Market Value estimate is the “Before Acquisition” value of the entire Jack-in-the-Box site.  
Secondarily, from this stated Market Value estimate, the purpose is to then derive the Estimated 
Total Compensation Due to the Owner of the Subject, which is the “Acquisition Valuation.”  The 
function or intended use of this appraisal is for acquisition purposes (a partial taking) on the part 
of the client.  The date of inspection is June 23, 2010, which is the effective date of value.   
 
As a result of my investigation and analysis, considering all of the pertinent data affecting the 
valuation, I have estimated the Total Compensation Due to the Owner of the Subject, as of the 
effective date of valuation, to be as follows: 
 

EIGHTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($18,000) 

 
The purpose of the appraisal is to estimate the subject’s Market Value in fee simple interest.  The 
intended use of this report is to assist the client, Gila County, in a business decision regarding an 
acquisition.    
 
This appraisal has been prepared in accordance with the current edition of: 
 
Ø Title XI of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 

(FIRREA) (12 U.S.C. 3331 et seq.); and 
 



3074  3 

Ø the regulations adopted by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency pursuant to Title 
XI, including, without limitation, the current version of the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice adopted by the Appraisal Foundation. 

 
In addition, this valuation is based on the attached appraisal report and all the assumptions and 
limiting conditions contained therein.   
 
I hereby certify that I have made a personal inspection of the subject property; that my fee was 
not contingent on the value contained herein, including a minimum valuation, a specific 
valuation, or the approval of a loan; that I have no interest, present or prospective, in the subject 
property; and that I have the current licensing and the necessary experience and competency to 
perform this assignment.  Furthermore, I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, all statements and opinions contained in this report are correct, subject to the General 
Assumptions and Limiting Conditions, as well as any Extraordinary Assumptions and Limiting 
Conditions, and the Certification which are made a part of this report.   
 
I appreciate the opportunity to be of service.  If you should have any questions, please don’t 
hesitate to call.  
 
Best Regards, 
 

 
Kurt Peer 
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser 



3074  4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SUMMARY OF THE APPRAISAL        5  
INTRODUCTION TO THE APPRAISAL       6  
REGIONAL AND NEIGHBORHOOD OVERVIEW     11 
SITE ANALYSIS         15 
HIGHEST AND BEST USE ANALYSIS (BEFORE ACQUISITION)   26  
THE APPRAISAL PROCESS        27 
SALES COMPARISON APPROACH (THE BEFORE VALUE)    29 
ACQUISITION VALUATION        45 
RECONCILIATION AND FINAL VALUE ESTIMATE    47 
UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS   49 
APPRAISER’S CERTIFICATE        52 

 
 



3074  5 

SUMMARY OF THE APPRAISAL 
 
 
PROPERTY TYPE:    Vacant Land – Partial Taking   
 
ADDRESS:     1402 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona  85501 
 
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS:  See Site Analysis section of the report 
 
TOTAL SIZE OF SITE:   44,313 SF, or 1.02 acres 
 
SIZE OF TAKING    4,052 SF, or 0.093 acres 
 
ZONING:     C-2, Intermediate Commercial, City of Globe 
 
PURPOSE OF APPRAISAL:   Estimate Market Value and Acquisition Value 
 
FUNCTION OF APPRAISAL:   Acquisition (Partial Taking) 
 
PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED:  Fee Simple  
 
DATE OF VALUE:    June 23, 2010 
  
DATE OF REPORT:    July 28, 2010 
 
HIGHEST AND BEST USE: 
 
 As if Vacant:    Speculation and/or Development 
 As Is:     Continued Existing Use 
  
SITE VALUATION (BEFORE):  $199,000 
 
SITE VALUATION (AFTER/REMAINDER): $181,000 
 
ACQUISITION VALUE:   $ 18,000 
 
DAMAGES, COST TO CURE:   None 
 
SEVERANCE DAMAGES:   None 
 
SPECIAL BENEFITS:    None 
 



3074  6 

INTRODUCTION TO THE APPRAISAL 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION: 
 
Herewith is a Narrative Commercial Appraisal Report, in Summary Format, of a partial taking of 
2 non-contiguous strips , from the existing Jack-in-the-Box site, located at 1402 East Ash Street, 
in Globe, Arizona, described in further detail in the body of the report.  Appraiser is Certified 
General Real Estate Appraiser with current License in the State of Arizona, and has the 
experience and qualifications necessary to appraise the subject property.  Appraisal has been 
prepared in conformance with the current requirements of the Uniform Standards of Professional 
Appraisal Practice, and sets forth the description, analysis, and valuation estimates of the subject 
property.  Subject property was inspected by the appraiser on June 23, 2010, which is the 
effective date of value herein.   
 
PURPOSE AND FUNCTION OF THE APPRAISAL: 
 
The purpose of the appraisal is to provide an estimate of the as is Market Value of the subject 
property (the Before Acquisition Value of the entire site), and, from this Market Value estimate, 
the purpose is to then derive the Estimated Total Compensation Due to the Owner of the Subject, 
or the Acquisition Value.  The value opinions are predicated on the forthcoming definitions of 
value and property rights as utilized in this appraisal.  The function or intended use of this 
appraisal is for acquisition purposes (a partial taking) on the part of the client.  The intended user 
of the report is the prior-noted client.  This report may not be utilized for any other purpose, nor 
for any other client, than the purpose and client noted in the report, and is considered invalid if 
done.     
 
The Jack-in-the-Box site is located adjacent west of the Gila County Courthouse facilities, in 
Globe.  The Courthouse and Jack-in-the-Box sites are located on the south side of Ash Street (aka 
Highway 60).  In addition to fronting Ash Street, the Courthouse site is also accessed from the 
rear, via Monroe Street.  Monroe Street essentially runs along the south or rear side of the Jack-
in-the-Box site, and provides access to the southwest or rear portion of the Courthouse site.  As 
shown in photos, access along Monroe Street is somewhat complicated due to the topography and 
layout of the terrain and street.  Moreover, Monroe Street, which is narrow and paved for two 
opposing lanes of traffic, without center stripe, crests behind the Jack-in-the-Box site, and 
presents a visibility hazard, due to the narrowness of the road and the fact that on-coming cars 
have difficulty seeing one another at the crest, especially near sun-up or sun-down when the sun 
is at a sharp angel in the sky.  Gila County wishes to create better access here by way of 
reconfiguring and lowering Monroe Street, and in order to do this the County needs to take a 
portion of the Jack-in-the-Box site.  The portion of the Jack-in-the-Box site they need is actually 
2 non-contiguous portions or strips from the Jack-in-the-Box site, referenced herein as Strip A 
and Strip B.   Strip A, located at the southwest corner of the Jack-in-the-Box site, contains Jack-
in-the-Box’s sewer lines, while Strip B, at the southeast corner of the site, isn’t used by Jack-in-
the-Box at all but instead contains an access drive behind the Jack-in-the-Box parking lot that the 
county uses and that connects Monroe Street with the county’s parking lot.  Neither of the strips 
include any of the site improvements of the Jack-in-the-Box site, such as parking, pavement, 
landscaping, or the like.  The sewer lines go from the rear of the Jack-in-the-Box site down to 
Monroe Street, by way of Strip A.   
 
Jack-in-the-Box and the County have been in negotiations with this for a period and Jack-in-the-
Box is reportedly willing to sell these portions of their site to the County.  Such is the purpose of 



3074  7 

this appraisal.  In addition, the County has agreed to fully compensate and “make good” Jack-in-
the-Box for all of this (in addition to paying them the value for the Strips), to the extent that the 
County will at the County’s cost re-do the sewer lines.  As such, being that the county will be 
covering these costs (however they would end up taking shape), there will be no damages 
suffered by Jack-in-the-Box that the appraiser would need to consider.  The value estimated 
herein is for the Strips only.   
 
DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: 
 
“Market Value” is defined by Federal Financial Institutions Regulatory Agencies, including the 
Office of the Controller of the Currency, as:  “The most probable price which a property should 
bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and 
seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming the price is not affected by undue 
stimulus.  Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the 
passing of title from the seller to buyer under conditions whereby:  (1) buyer and seller are 
typically motivated; (2) both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he 
considers his own best interest; (3) a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; 
(4) payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements 
comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold 
unaffected by special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated 
with the sale.”   
 
PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED: 
 
The property rights being appraised herewith are those associated with the fee simple estate. 
According to the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, “fee simple estate” is defined as:  
“Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, subject only to the limitations 
imposed by the governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain, police power and escheat.”   
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
According to the Gila  County Assessor’s Office, the subject property is legally described as 
indicated in the Addenda.  There are 2 legal descriptions, broken down as to the subject’s two 
Strips, herein again noted as Strips A and B.  The legal descriptions were provided to the 
appraiser from the client, based on the Surveys of the two Strips performed at the behest of the 
client.  As noted earlier, the subject represents 2 non-contiguous Strips which are a part of the 
overall Jack-in-the-Box site.  The overall Jack-in-the-Box site itself consists of 6 separate 
delineated Assessor’s Parcels:  205-14-028B, -035C, -035E, -036A, and -036B, and 208-05-
389B.   The portion of the overall Jack-in-the-Box site which contains the 2 Strips are as follows: 
 
Strip A)   Parcel 205-14-035E in its entirety.  This parcel is described in the legal description in 
the Addenda under the label “Strip A.”    
 
This strip contains a total of 0.068 acres, or 2,945 SF, as per the legal description and the 
boundaries of the property.  Its measurements are 37.42’, 87.83’, 35.02’, and 82.17’.  This Strip 
protrudes from the southwest portion of the overall Jack-in-the-Box site, and as noted contains 
the sewer lines for the site.   
 
Strip B)   A portion of Parcel 205-14-035C.  This parcel is described in the legal description in 
the Addenda under the label “Strip B.”   
 



3074  8 

According to the Survey provided the appraiser (see Exhibit) and lega l description, this Strip is 
triangular in shape, with its sides being 50.22’, 70.00’, and 44.29’ in length.  This Strip is 1,107 
SF, or 0.025 acres, in size.  This strip is located at the southeast corner of the overall Jack-in-the-
Box site.   
 
OWNERSHIP HISTORY: 
 
A guideline of the Appraisal Institute calls for the reporting and analysis of any conveyances of 
the subject property over the 3 year period prior to the effective date of value, in addition to the 
reporting of any current listing or escrow of the subject property.   
 
According to the Gila County Assessor’s records, the current legal owner of the site which is the 
subject in this assignment is Jack in the Box, Inc.  In addition, there have been no conveyances 
involving the subject property over the prior 3 year period.   
 
SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL: 
 
The scope of the appraisal considers several factors, including the type of report (Summary 
Report vs. Self-Contained Report), the valuation approaches pertinent to and utilized in the 
assignment (Cost Approach, Sales Comparison Approach, Income Approach), and the general 
procedure the appraiser followed in preparing the report, including the inspection of the subject 
property and the data collection, analysis, and presentation.   
 
Type of Appraisal 
 
First, this is a Summary Appraisal, as requested by the client and deemed appropriate for the 
assignment at hand.  Briefly, in a Summary Appraisal, the appraiser fully and diligently performs 
the appraisal assignment, including the research, investigation, and analysis, but in the written 
report itself the data and analysis is presented in a summarized format.  Supporting 
documentation concerning the subject property itself and the research and analysis used in its 
valuation is retained in the appraiser’s file.   
 
More specifically, the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, under Standards 
Rule 2-2 (b), sets forth the following rules governing Summary Appraisal reports: 
 

1. State the identity of the client and any intended users, by name or type; 
2. State the intended use of the appraisal; 
3. Summarize information sufficient to identify the real estate involved in the appraisal, 

including the physical and economic property characteristics relevant to the transaction; 
4. State the real property interest appraised; 
5. State the type and definition of value and cite the source of the definition; 
6. State the effective date of the appraisal and the date of the report; 
7. Summarize the scope of work used to develop the appraisal; 
8. Summarize the information analyzed, the appraisal methods and techniques employed, 

and the reasoning that supports the analyses, opinions, and conclusions; exclusion of the 
sales comparison approach, cost approach, or income approach must be explained; 

9. State  the use of the real estate existing as of  the date of value and the use of the real 
estate reflected in the appraisal; and, when an opinion of highest and best use was 
developed by the appraiser, summarize the support and rationale for that opinion; 

10. Clearly and conspicuously state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical 
conditions; and state that their use might have affected the assignment results; 



3074  9 

11. Include a signed certification in accordance with Standards Rule 2-3. 
 
The above accurately sets forth the parameters the appraiser has utilized in this Summary Report.  
The other type of report, the most detailed type of appraisal, is the Self-Contained Report.  In the 
Self-Contained Report, the level of research, investigation, and analysis is similar to that of a 
Summary Report but the written report is presented with a greater level of detail, support, and 
analysis.   
 
In sum, concerning the two different types of reports, the content items and level of research and 
analysis are the same between them, but they are presented differently.  Again , in the case of the 
subject property, a Summary Report has been utilized.   
 
The Three Approaches to Value 
 
Concerning the approaches utilized, all three approaches to value were considered in the case of 
the subject property, including the Cost Approach, Sales Comparison Approach, and Income 
Capitalization Approach.  Each approach has its strengths and weaknesses depending on the 
nature of the assignment and the subject property.  The approaches which are deemed appropriate 
for the assignment are then utilized, each resulting in its own value indication.  The value 
indications from the approaches utilized are then reconciled into a final value estimate for the 
subject property in the Reconciliation section of the report.        
 
In this assignment, the Sales Comparison Approach only was utilized.  The subject is a vacant site 
and the Sales Comparison Approach is the only applicable approach in this instance.  The Sales 
Comparison Approach is germane, as buyers and sellers look to market data, in the form of recent 
sales of similar properties to the one under appraisal, and current listings of similar properties as 
well, in helping them determine a property’s value.  Moreover, the market data was supportable 
in terms of recent sales of similar properties to the subject, which gives strength and credence to 
the use of this approach.  The Income Approach was omitted in that the subject as a vacant site is 
not income-producing, and the Cost Approach was omitted in that there are no improvements to be 
valued.  Therefore, only the Sales Comparison Approach was employed.  In the Sales Comparison 
Approach, recent sales of similar vacant sites to the subject site were considered as comparable sales 
and produced a reliable market value estimate.   Moreover, in the Reconciliation section of the 
report, since only the one approach was utilized, its value indication becomes the final reconciled 
value of the subject property.   

 
Appraiser Work Methodology 
 
Concerning the procedure the appraiser followed in the course of the assignment, the appraiser 
first communicated with the client to identify and ascertain the subject property to be appraised, 
the intended use of the appraisal, and the client’s expectations concerning the assignment.   
 
As for the subject property itself, a physical inspection was performed on June 23, 2010, during 
which the appraiser took extensive photographs and notes about all aspects of the property, 
including the site size, topography, frontage, vegetation, other site characteristics, surrounding 
uses, etc.  Information such as zoning, utilities, flood zone status, and taxes and assessments were 
obtained from the appropriate governmental sources.    
 
Concerning the data utilized, all of the comparables in the assignment were physically inspected 
by the appraiser.  In addition, where appropriate, the appraiser spoke with parties knowledgeable 
about the comparables to confirm their details, and the appraiser in addition confirmed details 



3074  10 

about the comparables through such sources as county records, MLS records, etc.  All 
comparables were sought and selected based on their comparability to the subject property and 
appropriateness, and the search for them went back in time far enough to acquire the necessary 
data.      
 
The appraiser also researched the characteristics of the immediate and larger neighborhood and 
region in which the subject property is located, and especially the characteristics of the market 
such as supply and demand levels, vacancy and rental levels, potential new supply and 
development coming on line, etc, gaining such information from published sources, the internet, 
governmental agencies, and appropriate knowledgeable parties.   
 
Summary of Scope 
 
In summary, the scope of this narrative appraisal report includes the gathering and analysis of 
pertinent market information in order to apply the most applicable valuation methodology in 
accordance with the guidelines and standards of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice. 
 
 



3074  11 

REGIONAL AND NEIGHBORHOOD OVERVIEW 
 
The description portion of the appraisal report begins with a discussion and analysis of the 
subject’s location within the larger region, city, and neighborhood.  This is then followed by the 
more specific descriptive sections including those of the subject site and subject improvements.  
The regional and neighborhood discussion begins herewith.   
 
The subject property is located in central Arizona in Gila County.  The county covers some 4,750 
square miles and is a source of great mineral wealth.  Silver was the area’s first attraction, in the 
late 1800’s, with copper mining soon becoming important, and continuing to be so.  Gila 
County’s land ownership is broken down by ownership as follows: 
 
 

Owning Entity %  of Total 

U.S. Forest Service 55% 

State Government 4% 

Privately Owned 4% 

Apache Indian Reservation 37% 

Total 100% 
 
 
As noted, a considerable portion of the county belongs to the Apache Indian Tribe, with the San 
Carlos Apache Indian Reservation being located just to the east of Globe.  Also of note, only 
about 4% of the land is privately owned in Gila County, meaning only 4% of the land is available 
as a tax base and consequently, the property tax burden on the public tends to be somewhat higher 
than normal.   
 
Globe is the county seat.  The majority of the eastern part of the county belongs to the Indian 
Reservation, while most of the balance of the county (central, northern, and southern) belongs to 
the U.S. Forest Service, the Tonto National Forest, etc.  The county is located just east of the 
Phoenix metropolitan area and benefits from this proximity.   
 
There are 3 main highways traversing the county, but no freeways.  The main highway is State 
Highway 87 (the Beeline Highway) which travels north/south and providing access from the 
Phoenix metro area on the south, through Payson, and then north to Winslow on Interstate-40 
north of the county.  This highway has recently been improved to a four lane divided highway on 
the Phoenix to Payson run.  Additional highways are State Highway 60/77 (in the eastern part of 
the county, connecting Globe to the White Mountains), Highway 188 (connecting Globe to 
Payson), and Highway 260 (connecting Payson to Show Low).  Highway 260 has recently 
undergone improvement to four lanes in some portions, as the White Mountains and Show Low 
area has recently seen a boom in construction, which has increased traffic flow from Phoenix to 
Show Low, through Payson.   
 
The leading municipalities in Gila County by population are Globe-Miami and Payson.  The 
balance of the municipalities are very small, as shown on the attached map.  Many are small 
unincorporated former mining and/or ranching towns, or tourist or second home destinations, 
such as Pine and Strawberry.   The recent population figures are shown on the following table: 



3074  12 

 
Municipality – Population 1990 2000 2008 

Globe-Miami 8,080 9,422 9,923 

Payson 8,377 13,620 16,965 

Gila County 40,216 51,335 57,361 
 
The subject property is located in Globe.  Globe was founded in 1876 and incorporated in 1907 
(Miami was incorporated in 1918).  The nearest major metropolitan areas are Phoenix, about 85 
miles to the west, and Tucson, about 100 miles to the south.  Phoenix is the state capital and has been 
one of the fastest growing metropolitan areas in the country.  Principal economic activities in Globe 
are mining, ranching, manufacturing, government, and tourism.   
 
Globe and Miami are adjacent to each other, being connected by Highway 60.  Highway 60 is the 
main and in fact only east/west thoroughfare in the metropolitan area, and nearly all of the main 
commercial facilities are located thereon.  In the east portion of Globe, Highway 60 goes north to 
Show Low at its intersection with Highway 70.  Highway 70 connects Globe with Safford.   
 
The Globe/Miami area experienced noted growth in the early 1990's, after decreasing in growth 
slightly during the decade of the 1980's.  Notable commercial development took place in the 1990's, 
along Highway 60, with some dozen or so commercial sites being developed with a variety of newer, 
mainly chain uses (hotels, restaurants, grocery stores, service stations, etc.).   
 
Basically, concerning commercial development in the area, the new commercial development is 
concentrated in two locations.  One location is in the western portion of the area, mostly Miami, and 
includes a Wal-Mart/Safeway retail center, a newer Smith's food store, a handful of auto dealerships, 
and various additional commercial uses.  The other area of new commercial development is located 
in the eastern portion of Globe, and stretches basically from the Gila County Building, east about 2 
miles.  This area houses a handful of newer hotels (Days Inn, Comfort Inn), service stations, 
restaurants, a newer Dollar General store, etc .  Between these areas is an older portion of Globe, 
housing many older commercial uses and some residential uses, mobile home parks, as well as 
historic downtown Globe.     
 
Globe and Miami are located in a steep canyon in the Pinal Mountains and scenic views are afforded 
in all directions.  The elevation is about 3,500 feet, meaning the area has a milder climate than 
Phoenix, which is at about 1000 feet in elevation.  Downtown Globe retains its historic flavor, with 
many restored historic buildings found.  Educational facilities are adequate, including public and 
private schools and a community college, and the Cobre Valley Community Hospital also serves the 
area.  The Globe/San Carlos Regional Airport has a lighted 4,750 foot runway.   
 
In conclusion, Globe/Miami appears to be in a stability stage of growth, with slight increases in 
population and development.  The area has not witnessed a high amount of growth such as was seen 
in several communities in Arizona over the early part of the 2000’s, such as the White Mountains or 
Safford, for instance.  Rather, growth has been very low, but overall, there no overly detrimental or 
adverse factors regarding the subject or the immediate vicinity that would negatively impact 
marketability or value.   

 



3074  13 

STATE MAP 

 
 



3074  14 

NEIGHBORHOOD MAP 

 



3074  15 

SITE ANALYSIS 
 
 

Address/Location: The address of the Jack-in-the-Box site is 1402 East Ash Street, 
in Globe, Arizona.  This places the site on the south side of Ash 
Street (aka Highway 60), adjacent west of the Gila County 
facilities, in the eastern portion of Globe.   

APN SF* Ac Notes 

205-14-028B 20,909 0.48 Main, Improved J-B parcel 

205-14-035C 7,405 0.17 Taking (Portion) + Pkg Lot 

205-14-035E  3,049 0.07 Taking (Entire) 

205-14-036A  2,614 0.06 Parking Lot 

205-14-036B  4,792 0.11 Parking Lot 

208-05-389B 5,544 0.13 Parking Lot 

Assessor’s Parcel Numbers/ 
Site Size (Entire Site): 

 44,313 1.02  

 * per Assessor    

Strip APN SF Acres 

A 205-14-035E (entirety) 2,945 0.068 

B 205-14-035C (portion) 1,107 0.025 

Site Size (Acquisition) : 

  4,052 0.093 

 See Introductory section of the appraisal for additional 
information and discussion about the two Strips.   

Access, Frontage, Arterials: Strips are located at the rear of the Jack-in-the-Box site.  The 
overall Jack-in-the-Box site fronts and has about 300 feet of 
frontage on Ash Street, which is asphaltic paved for four 
opposing lanes of traffic, plus a two-way center turn lane, at this 
location.  The arterial is also improved with concrete curbs, 
gutters, and sidewalks, as well as street lights, at this location.   

Monroe Street: As noted, Monroe Street is asphaltic paved and conducts two 
opposing lanes of traffic, without striping.  Monroe Street crests 
behind the Jack-in-the-Box site, creating a hazard.  As shown in 
the Exhibits, Parcel 205-14-035E (Strip A) actually juts out into 
the right-of-way of Monroe Street, but Monroe Street’s right-of-
way is wider than the pavement itself; the pavement itself in 
effect ends along the southern border of Parcel 205-14-035E.   

Utilities: All utilities are available to the site (the overall Jack-in-the-Box 
site), including municipal water and sewer from the City of 
Globe, electric ity from Arizona Public Service, natural gas from 
Southwest Gas, and telephone from Qwest.   



3074  16 

Zoning: The site is zoned C-2, Intermediate Commercial, by the City of 
Globe.  The purpose of this district is “to permit most types of 
commercial activities oriented to a larger segment of population 
than the average neighborhood and includes the sale of 
commodities or performance of services.  The district is 
designed for application on highways and major streets to serve 
that traffic, but should NOT be applied along the continuous 
length of a highway or major street.  Development should be 
contiguous, grouped or clustered to prevent undesirable “strip” 
commercial development.”  A large variety of uses are 
permitted in the zone, including office, retail, and health 
services, with uses including food services, hotels, auto sales, 
and the like conditionally approved.  This zone is found along 
Highway 60 (Ash Street) in this portion of town, and for all 
practical purposes, when analyzing the value of the subject site 
as vacant, this commercial zoning designation is considered 
similar to the other commercial zoning districts found in 
Globe/Miami, including Globe’s C-3, Central Commercial, 
zoning district, which covers other portions of Highway 60 as 
well as downtown Globe.    

Topography: Generally level and at grade, dipping at the rear (where Strip A 
is) down to Monroe Street.   

Flood Hazard: According to Flood Insurance Rate Map 040007C2119D, dated 
December 4, 2007, the subject is located within Flood Zone X, 
which is not a designated flood hazard area.    

Soils and Drainage: No soils analysis was provided the appraiser, and in the absence 
of such and lacking information to the contrary and based on the 
appraiser’s inspection, it is assumed that the soils are adequate 
to support the site’s highest and best use, and that drainage is 
adequate.   However, appraiser is not an engineer and assumes 
no liability for such issues.   

Easements: From inspection and lacking information to the contrary, no 
restrictive and only typical easements such as utility easements 
are assumed in place on the site.   

Environmental Concerns: During physical inspection of the site, no hazardous materials 
were evident.  The appraiser has no knowledge of any hidden or 
unapparent conditions of the property or adverse environmental 
conditions, however, the appraiser is not an expert in this field and 
assumes no liability for such matters.  See Underlying 
Assumptions and Contingent Conditions for additional discussion.   

Site Improvements: As noted, no site improvements for the Jack-in-the-Box site are 
found on the subject Strips.  Site improvements for the Jack-in-
the-Box site include asphalt paved parking, three curb cuts onto 
Ash Street, a drive-through lane, curbing, and landscaping.   
Please see photos for details.   
 



3074  17 

Assessment and Taxes: The current/most recent assessment and real estate taxes for the 
subject (entire Jack-in-the-Box site) are as shown on the table 
below. It should be noted that once the acquisition goes through, 
the subject parcels would become government-owned, and tax-
exempt.  However, for the purposes of this appraisal, the current 
taxes and assessment on the subject parcels (all comprising the 
Jack-in-the-Box site) as they now exist are as shown on the 
table below.  It should also be noted that according to the Gila 
County Treasurer’s Office, there are no overdue taxes owing on 
any of the said parcels.   

 
 

APN ’11 Land FCV ’11 Impr FCV ’11 Total FCV ’09 Taxes 

205-14-028B $63,288 $217,196 $280,484 $6,013.26 

205-14-035C $21,825 $14,671 $36,496 $782.54 

205-14-035E $1,146 $0 $1,146 $17.84 

205-14-036A $6,000 $6,150 $12,150 $260.48 

205-14-036B $15,082 $11,418 $26,500 $568.14 

208-05-389B $23,189 $11,499 $34,688 $743.74 

Totals $130,530 $260,934 $391,464 $8,386.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3074  18 

PLAT MAP 

 



3074  19 

PLAT MAP (enlarged) 

 



3074  20 

SURVEY 

 



3074  21 

ZONING MAP 
 

 
 



3074  22 

FLOOD ZONE MAP 



3074  23 

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 

View looking W on Ash St, Jack-in-the-Box site to L 

 

 

View looking E on Ash St from point near Subj 
 



3074  24 

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 

View looking E on Monroe Street at County Buildings; Subj site to L 

 

 

View looking E from rear of Jack-in-the-Box site, showing Subj Strip B (to R 
of trees) and County Buildings behind 

 



3074  25 

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 

 

 
View of J-B site, looking NE  View of J-B site, looking E 

   

 

 

 
View looking W from County parking lot at 

J-B site 
 View of Strip B, from Monroe St. 

   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
View of Strip A, looking W towards J-B   View of Strip A, looking E to Monroe St. 

 



3074  26 

HIGHEST AND BEST USE ANALYSIS 
 

The concept of Highest and Best Use is central to the appraisal problem.  It is defined in the 
Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal as:  “The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or 
an improved property, which is physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, 
and that results in the highest value.  The four criteria that highest and best use must meet are 
legal permissibility, physical possibility, financial feasibility, and maximal productivity.”   
 
The Highest and Best Use section of the appraisal is the apex which links the first or descriptive 
section of the report with the second or valuation section.  The first section builds up to the 
highest and best use analysis, which determines the valuation methodology to be used.  Implied 
within the definition of highest and best use is the recognition of that specific use to the 
community development goals in addition to wealth maximization of the individual property 
owner.  In appraisal practice, the concept of highest and best use represents the premise upon 
which value is based.   
 
For an improved property, highest and best use is considered from two points of view, first, from 
the point of view of the site as if it were vacant.  Second, highest and best use is considered from 
the point of view of the property as it is currently improved.  For a vacant site or property, such as 
the subject property, highest and best use is analyzed from only one point of view, that being 
considering the property as vacant.  Based on the preceding, the following is set forth. 
 
Highest and Best Use, As Is/Vacant: 
 
Considering the subject site’s locational and physical characteristics as discussed in the report, as 
well as zoning and market conditions, the current highest and best use of the subject property (the 
entire site), as if vacant, is for speculation and or development purposes consistent with 
underlying zoning, that is, for commercial development purposes.     
 



3074  27 

THE APPRAISAL PROCESS 
 
The appraisal process is the systematic procedure utilized to provide an answer to the client 
concerning the market value of the real property appraised.  In it, the process is planned as to the 
collection, analysis, and presentation of the necessary data in order to arrive at an estimated value.  
Three approaches are involved and considered for use in an assignment, and all, one, or two are 
utilized depending on the assignment.  The approaches are the Cost Approach, Sales Comparison 
Approach, and Income Capitalization Approach.  Each approach has its strengths and weaknesses 
depending on the nature of the assignment and the subject property.  The approaches which are 
deemed appropriate for the assignment are then utilized, each resulting in its own value 
indication.  The value indications from the approaches utilized are then reconciled into a final 
value estimate for the subject property in the Reconciliation section of the report.  Each of the 
approaches is considered and discussed as follows.    
 
The Cost Approach is based on the principal of substitution, which states that no prudent person 
would pay more for a property than the amount it would cost to obtain a property of similar 
desirability, by way of purchasing a vacant site and constructing a building thereon.  In the Cost 
Approach, a subject’s land value is first determined, through a Sales Comparison analysis using 
as comparables recent sales of similar vacant sites to the subject site.  To the estimated site value 
is then added the estimated replacement cost new of the improvements, through such published 
sources as the Marshall Valuation Service Cost manuals.  When applicable, actual construction 
costs for a subject property are also considered, along with construction costs of similar buildings 
from builders and developers in the area.  From the estimated replacement cost new of the 
building is then deducted accrued depreciation caused by physical, functional, and exterior or 
adverse economic sources.  This results in the estimated depreciated cost new of the building, to 
which is then added the estimated land value, determined earlier, for the final value estimate via 
this approach to value.   
 
In the Sales Comparison Approach, the appraiser estimates the value of a subject property by 
comparing it with similar properties which have recently been sold, or are currently available  for 
sale.   The subject and comparables are broken down into similar units of comparison, in this case 
the price per square foot of site area.  The fundamental basis for valuation in this approach 
involves differences between the subject and comparables in their various specific characteristics.  
There are two levels of adjustment, the first involving characteristics of the market and the actual 
transaction, such as property rights conveyed, changed market conditions since the date of sale, 
financing, and conditions of sale (such as atypically motivated parties to the transactions).  The 
second level of adjustment considers the characteristics of the site itself, such as site size, 
location, utilities, zoning, surrounding uses, and the like.  Adjustments are applied to these 
characteristics, based on the appraiser’s judgment.  Downward adjustments are applied when a 
comparable’s characteristic is superior to the subject’s, and upward for when inferior.  If the 
characteristic is basically similar, no adjustment is applied.  The adjustments are then tallied and 
result in the adjusted sale price per square foot of a comparable.  This then renders the range in 
adjusted price per square foot, and from the range the appraiser makes a determination as to the 
best value indication for the subject.  This figure is then multiplied by the number of square feet 
of the subject, resulting in the final value estimate via this approach to value.   
 
The Income Capitalization Approach reflects a subject’s income-producing capabilities, and is 
based on the assumption that value is created by the expectation of benefits to be derived in the 
future.  It reflects the amount an investor would be willing to pay in anticipation of these benefits, 
which can be a single year’s income (direct capitalization, for stabilized properties) or an income 



3074  28 

stream over several years plus a reversion at the end of that period (estimated via a Discounted 
Cash Flow Analysis, when a property is either not stabilized, is proposed, or is expected to have a 
varying income stream over a period of time, and the like).   
 
For direct capitalization, the potential gross income (PGI) is first estimated, based on market rents 
or actual subject rents, from which is then deducted vacancy (again based on the market or 
subject property), resulting in the estimated effective gross income (EGI).  Expenses are then 
deducted (market/subject), resulting in the estimate of net operating income (NOI), which is then 
capitalized into a value estimate.  The estimated NOI is divided by the appropriate capitalization 
rate, determined by the appraiser through market analysis.   
 
For yield capitalization or the DCF, the estimation process is similar in that each year over the 
holding period results in an estimated NOI.  However, there are more factors involved as the 
income stream varies due to lease up, capital expenses, tenant improvements, etc.  In addition, a 
selling price or reversion is estimated at the end of the holding period.  The cash flows from each 
year of the holding period, and the estimated reversion, are discounted to a present value estimate 
via this method.   
 
In the Reconciliation section of the appraisal, the various approaches are then summarized and a 
final reconciled value estimate derived, again based on the appraiser’s judgment and considering 
the various strengths and weaknesses of the approaches utilized.   
 
Approaches Utilized 
 
In the case of the valuation of the subject property, as noted earlier in the appraisal, with the 
subject property being a vacant site, the only approach utilized in its valuation was the Sales 
Comparison Approach, and the value indication from this approach is the final reconciled value 
of the subject property.   
 
 
 



3074  29 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 
 
In the Sales Comparison Approach, the appraiser estimates the value of the subject property by 
comparing it with similar vacant properties which have recently been sold, or are currently 
available for sale.   The subject and comparables are broken down into similar units of 
comparison, in this case the price per square foot of land area.  The fundamental basis for 
valuation in this approach involves differences between the subject and comparables in their 
various specific characteristics.   
 
There are two levels of adjustment, the first involving characteristics of the market and the actual 
transaction, such as property rights conveyed, changed market conditions since the date of sale, 
financing, and conditions of sale (such as atypical motivated parties to the transactions).  The 
second level of adjustment considers the characteristics of the subject property itself, such as site 
size, location, frontage, topography, utilities, zoning, and the like.  Adjustments are applied to 
these characteristics, based on the appraiser’s judgment.  Downward adjustments are applied 
when a comparable’s characteristic is superior to the subject’s, and upward for when inferior.  If 
the characteristic is basically similar, no adjustment is applied.  The adjustments are then tallied 
and result in the adjusted unit price of a comparable.  This then renders the range in adjusted 
prices of the comparables, and from the range the appraiser makes a determination as to the best 
unit price indication for the subject.  This figure is then multiplied by the number of square feet of 
the subject, resulting in the final value estimate via this approach to value.   
 
The comparables selected for use in this approach were the most appropriate and representative 
sales for comparison purposes to the subject property.  Sale dates shown are closing dates.  
Additional closed sales and current listings were considered by the appraiser and are supportive 
of those comparables utilized.   
 



3074  30 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO 1. 
 

 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: 520 South Hill Street 
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 208-03-100A 

Sale Date: March, 2003 
Sale Price: $70,000 

Price Per SF: $2.11/SF 
Instrument: Warranty Deed (2003-005399) 

Grantor: Rhonda Hertz 

Grantee: Hawkins Companies LLC 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 33,100 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 0.76 acres 

Zoning: C-2, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Slightly rolling; needed site work 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Site located at the southeast corner of Highway 60 and Hill Street; 
signalized intersection.  Needed some site work to build up the 
site sufficiently to construct the Movie Gallery store on the site, 
which was subsequently sold in March of 2004.     

 



3074  31 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO.2 
 
 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: 1940 East Ash Street 
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 205-21-024, 025, 026 

Sale Date: June, 2004 
Sale Price: $185,000 

Price Per SF: $4.38/SF 
Instrument: Special Warranty Deed (04-010383) 

Grantor: Win Oil Company, Inc. 

Grantee: Globe DG, LLC 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 42,252 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 0.97 acres 

Zoning: C-3, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Generally level 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Generally level site with 150 feet of frontage on Highway 60/77, 
in east part of Globe.  Improved with Dollar General store, which 
was subsequently sold, in October of 2004.   

 



3074  32 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO. 3 
 
 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: Elling the Northeast Corner of Highway 60 and Chaparral Drive 
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 207-02-012M, 012U 

Sale Date: November, 2006 
Sale Price: $385,000 

Price Per SF: $1.51/SF 
Instrument: Warranty Deed (06-020139) 

Grantor: Floyd Lee Krank Trust 

Grantee: Globe Family Associates 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 255,696 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 5.87 acres 

Zoning: C-3, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Generally level, sits below the level of Highway 60 and Chaparral 
Drive 

Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Site with access off Chaparral Drive, generally level but low-
lying, was subsequently improved with multi-family apartment 
complex.  Shell/Wendy’s facility is located at the corner, which 
this site ells around.   

 
 



3074  33 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO. 4 
 
 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: 3585 East Highway 60 
City: Miami 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 206-03-053E 

Sale Date: August, 2007 
Sale Price: $165,000 

Price Per SF: $6.00/SF 
Instrument: Special Warranty Deed (07-015988) 

Grantor: O’Leary Family Trust 

Grantee: R.E. Monks Construction, Inc. 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 27,500 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 0.63 acres 

Zoning: Commercial, Miami 

Topography: Generally level and at grade 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Site located at corner of Highway 60 and Marion Street (aka Calle 
De Loma), in Miami, between downtown Miami and the Wal-
Mart Center.  Site has 275 feet of frontage on Highway 60.  Site is 
backed by railroad tracks.  Old improvements of no value have 
been demolished; buyer built a modular building for use in his 
construction business, tied to the mining industry.   

 



3074  34 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO. 5 
 

 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: 2117 West Highway 60 
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 207-01-015A 

Sale Date: June, 2001 
Sale Price: $190,000 

Price Per SF: $4.79/SF 
Instrument: Warranty Deed (01-010085) 

Grantor: Cohen, Rife & Jutzi, P.C. 

Grantee: Stephen Kleppe et ux 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 39,640 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 0.91 acres 

Zoning: C-2, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Generally level 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Site is a pad site adjacent west of the Fry’s Center in Globe, 
subsequently improved with a Sonic Restaurant.   

 



3074  35 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO. 6 
 

 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: 2100 West Highway 60 
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 207-04-153A, 154 

Sale Date: February, 2005 
Sale Price: $240,000 

Price Per SF: $4.55/SF 
Instrument: Warranty Deed (05-005501) 

Grantor: Lawrence L. Healy et ux 

Grantee: Wall Osman Properties, LLC 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 52,710 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 1.21 acres 

Zoning: C-2, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Generally level 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Commercial site, across from Fry’s Center, with about 250 feet of 
frontage on Highway 60.  Reportedly was improved with an old 
commercial structure (restaurant building) of nominal value, 
which was razed to make way for the construction of a Dollar 
Tree store, which itself was subsequently sold.   

 



3074  36 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO. 7 
 

 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: Adj NW of 2117 West Highway 60 
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 207-01-015D 

Sale Date: December, 2007 
Sale Price: $265,000 

Price Per SF: $1.73/SF 
Instrument: Special Warranty Deed (07-020433) 

Grantor: The Globe Land Trust 

Grantee: Copper Crest Development, LLC 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller 

Site Area (SF): 153,331 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 3.52 acres 

Zoning: C-2, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Generally level 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Site is a pad adjacent west of the Fry’s Center in Globe, and cate-
corner behind and to the northeast of the Sonic restaurant (Sale 5), 
also behind the Travelodge Motel.  Site includes an access 
easement between the motel and Sonic properties.  Though a 
commercial site, it was bought by developer for future 
construction as a condominium/retirement center; however, site 
remains vacant what with the subsequent real estate slowdown.  
Also, visibility is limited to the site as the site is behind the 
Travelodge Motel, and utilities are to the motel and Sonic sites 
(thus nearby), but not to this site per the broker.   Site also to 
require some site work prior to development.   

 



3074  37 

VACANT LAND COMPARABLE NO. 8 
 

 
Property Type: Vacant Commercial 

Location: 1770 East Ash Street  
City: Globe 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 205-17-007  

Sale Date: February, 2010 
Sale Price: $150,000 

Price Per SF: $2.69/SF 
Instrument: Warranty Deed (10-001479) 

Grantor: Nowlin  

Grantee: Picacho Valley Group LLC 
Terms of Sale: Cash to Seller  

Site Area (SF): 55,757 SF 
Site Area (Acres): 1.28 acres 

Zoning: C-2, Commercial, Globe 

Topography: Generally level 
Confirmation: Public Records, Realtor 

Comments: Sale of a 1.28 acre site in east part of Globe, just east of the 
intersection of Highways 60 and 70.  Site was improved with an 
older building of limited utility, added onto, and not in use, and 
per the broker the site was purchased for land value.  Site is back 
on the market for $300,000.  Seller was a new widow and was 
motivated per broker.   
 
  

 



3074  38 

MAP OF COMPARABLES 

 



3074  39 

MAP OF COMPARABLES 

 



3074  40 



3074  41 

 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF COMPARABLE SALES 
 
The prior noted comparables have been utilized in this valuation of the subject property, 
representing recent sales of similar properties in the subject’s market area.  The comparables have 
been summarized, photographed, and mapped for the reader’s reference.  The comparables were 
confirmed with parties to them when possible, and represent the best, most recent, and most 
appropriate data in the form of comparable sales for use in the analysis.  Additional closed sales 
and current listings were considered by the appraiser, which are supportive of those sales used, 
and data on them is retained in the appraiser’s files.   
 
Adjustments – First Level 
 
The comparables are then adjusted to the subject property.  The first level of adjustments is for 
property rights conveyed, financing terms, conditions of sale, and market conditions.  Property 
rights conveyed were fee simple in all cases, and no adjustments were required for this.   
 
Concerning financing terms, all of the sales were cash to the seller or were for terms undisclosed 
or considered equivalent to cash, and as such no adjustments for financing were warranted.   
 
The conditions of sale adjustment accounts for atypical conditions or motivations on the part of 
the parties to the transactions, and in the case of the comparables, based on the appraiser’s 
conversations with the confirming parties and research, no adjustments are required at this level 
to any of the sales but No. 8, which is adjusted upward as shown for this factor and based on the 
discussion in that comparable’s write-up.     
 
The final level of adjustment in the first set of adjustments is for changed market conditions over 
the period from when the sales took place to the date of valuation of the subject.  Sales used 
included the commercial land sales in Globe/Miami over the past 8 year period, due to the limited 
amount of data available.  The commercial real estate market, including the commercial land 
market, reached its peak in about 2007 as it did elsewhere throughout the state of Arizona, with 
the commercial real estate market generally peaking after the residential market, which reached 
its high in 2005/2006.  Since late 2007 the market has slowed considerably and values have 
dropped sharply.  The market had risen from 2002-2007, though not in as pronounced a fashion 
as in some of the larger cities in Arizona, and values have declined in some instances back to the 
levels they were at in 2002-2004.  There has been very limited data and even in 2006-2007 
though activity was greater in Globe the activity has still been generally small.  Value declines 
also picked up in late 2008/early 2009, and in some cases values have dropped 50% or more 
depending on the property type and location and other factors.  The sales used were the best and 
most appropriate available, and in conversations with local brokers there are no current escrows 
to consider.  There are some indications that the market may be stabilizing or hitting bottom but 
it’s anybody’s guess as to how far this all might go.  Due to the preceding, the appraiser has 
imputed the noted adjustments for changed market conditions to the comparables, where 
appropriate, as shown on the attached adjustment grid.   
 
Adjustments – Second Level 
 
The second level of adjustments concern the physical and locational features of the comparables 
as they compare to the subject property.   
 



3074  42 

Concerning location, this adjustment takes into account such locational features as the overall 
character and desirability of the area, surrounding uses to the subject, amount of buildout in the 
area, demographics, and general access and visibility characteristics.  Based on these differences 
between the subject and comparables, the indicated adjustments have been made.  Comparable 
No. 4 is adjusted upward to the subject for its location in an inferior commercial area, in Miami.  
The other comparables are adjusted, when warranted, to the subject for their varying locational 
characteristics.  Comparable Nos. 3, 5, and 6 are from the main commercial area in Globe and 
adjusted downward, while Nos. 1, 2, and 8 are from similar areas as the subject and not adjusted.  
Comparable No. 7 is located near Nos. 3, 5, and 6, but suffers from its location behind the 
Travelodge Motel, and is adjusted upward.   
 
Size adjustments relate to economies of scale, with smaller properties tending to sell for more on 
a price per unit basis.  The comparables as such have been adjusted to the subject when 
appropriate for this factor, as shown on the adjustment grid.   
 
Adjustments are also considered for zoning, but as all of the comparables are zoned commercial 
like the subject, even though the commercial zoning designations vary, in the opinion of the 
appraiser no adjustments are warranted for this factor.   
 
Next, adjustments are considered for utilities (water/sewer/electric/gas), however, in that the 
subject and all comparables but No. 7 are similar with respect to such, no adjustments are 
warranted for this factor to those comparables; only No. 7 is adjusted for this factor, as discussed 
in that comparable’s write-up, and as shown.     
 
The next adjustment considered is for topography and site characteristics.  As noted, some of the 
comparables required site work in order to bring the sites to developability, and other 
comparables included buildings which were of no or nominal value and which were razed or to be 
razed to make way for development.  Such comparables are adjusted upward, when warranted, 
for this factor.   
 
The comparables are also adjusted for use, or the uses to which the sites were put subsequent to 
purchase.  Comparable No. 3, which was developed with apartments, and No. 7, which was 
projected for similar development, are adjusted upward to the subject for this factor, while none 
of the balance of the comparables are adjusted.   
 
Finally, the comparables are adjusted, if appropriate, for other or miscellaneous characteristics 
not covered in the additional categories, such as amenities, site improvements, and the like.    
 
After adjustments to each of the comparables, their adjusted sale prices are derived, and displayed 
on the adjustment grid.  The adjusted unit value is then reconciled into a final value indication for 
the subject property via this approach.  The reader’s attention is directed to the adjustment grid 
forthcoming.   
 
Final Estimate of Value Via Sales Comparison Approach 
 
As noted, the comparables provided a pre-adjusted price range of from $1.51 to $6.00/SF.  After 
the noted adjustments were made, the adjusted range in prices was from $1.92 to $5.27/SF.  The 
average adjusted price was $3.82/SF.  When considering the subject’s locational and physical 
characteristics, as well as the strength of the data and market conditions, the appraiser has 
estimated the value of the subject entire site , via the Sales Comparison Approach, to be as shown 
below.  In addition to the sales utilized, with most weight given to Sale Nos. 2, 6, and 8, as they 



3074  43 

were considered the most similar sales to the subject and were also more recent, the appraiser also 
considered current listings and broker interviews conducted in the course of the investigation.  In 
light of the preceding, the appraiser has estimated the value of the subject entire or overall site to 
be as follows:   
 

 44,313 SF  x  $4.50/SF  =  $199,409; rd. $199,000 
 

(ONE HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THOUSAND DOLLARS) 
 



3074  44 

 



3074  45 

THE ACQUISITION 
 
The proposed acquisition area, as noted earlier in the report, consists of two Strips, Strips A and 
B, which contain a total of 4,052 SF between them.  Whereas, the entire site contains 44,313 SF 
and is improved with the Jack-in-the-Box restaurant.  The proposed acquisition will not impact 
the Jack-in-the-Box concern, for as noted the County will at their cost be reconfiguring the sewer 
lines under Strip A, and as such only the Taking’s site area of 4,052 SF needs to be addressed 
herewith.   
 
Value of the Acquisition, as Part of the Whole  
 
As previously discussed, it has been concluded that the value of the Whole, Before the 
Acquisition, is estimated at $4.50/SF of site area.  Recognizing that the area (Strips A and B) to 
be acquired has no unique or special characteristics, said area is considered to have the same unit 
value as the balance of the property.  Therefore, the Acquisition area is also concluded to have a 
unit value of $4.50/SF of site area.  The value of the Acquisition is thus calculated as follows:   
 

4,052 SF  x  $4.50/SF  =  $18,234; rd. $18,000 
 
Value of the Remainder, as Part of the Whole  
 
 Value Before Acquisition:     $199,000 
 Value of the Part Taken, as Part of the Whole:   $  18,000 
 Value of the Remainder, as Part of the Whole:   $181,000 
 
Effects of the Acquisition 
 
The acquisition of this 4,052 SF will reduce the total land area of the subject site by that amount.  
The two strips are located at rear portions of the site.  Equivalent to 9% of the original parcel size, 
this reduction in overall land area is not considered significant, nor will it materially alter the 
shape, access, or utility of the remainder.  Moreover, the County will at their own costs be 
reconfiguring the Jack-in-the-Box site’s sewer set-up, so there are no damages to consider.   
 
Because the subject site will not be significantly altered nor will it materially suffer, after 
considering all aspects of the acquisition, the overall affects are relatively minor and are not 
believed to have any negative impact on the remainder.   
 
Highest and Best Use, Remaining Property 
 
In the After situation, the subject site will only be changed in size, and slightly at that.  Its overall 
shape, access, visibility, and general utility will remain essentially the same.  Therefore, after 
analyzing the effects of the acquisition upon the remaining site, it is my opinion that the subject 
site will retain its same highest and best use as in its Before state.   
 
Site Valuation, Remaining Land After the Acquisition 
 
Other than a change in size, there is no difference in the subject site in the Before and After 
states.  Therefore, as a result of the preceding analysis and investigation, it is my opinion that a 
comparison of the subject Remaining Land to those sales utilized in the Before valuation would 
result in a similar indication of value.  Thus, there is no need for a meaningless repetition by sale 



3074  46 

comparison with the subject Remainder property.  It is therefore my conclusion that the larger 
parcel’s remaining site area would have the same value, on a per square foot basis, as found in the 
Before condition.   
 
In the After condition, the subject site will contain a total land area of 40,261 SF.  As such, the 
value of the larger parcel’s Remaining Land area may be calculated as follows:  
 

40,261 SF  x  $4.50/SF  =  $181,175; rd. $181,000 
 
Moreover, there will be no damages suffered by the subject site’s owner, the Jack-in-the-Box 
concern.   
 
Severance Damages (Cost to Cure) 
 
Severance damages are defined as the loss in value to the Remaining property caused by the 
Acquisition or construction of the proposed public improvements, in this case, the better 
configured Monroe Avenue which is accessing the Gila County site.  These damages are 
generally measured by subtracting the value of the Remainder property, after the Acquisition, 
from the value of the same property, Before the Acquisition.  In the case of the subject property, 
however, no loss in value is found.  Therefore, there is no finding of severance damages in this 
appraisal report.   
 
Special Benefits 
 
Special Benefits are defined as those which accrue to the subject and are not shared with other 
sites in the same general area.  Recognizing that this Acquisition is for a better configured 
Monroe Avenue as it accesses the County facilitie s, which all properties in the area should benefit 
from, any such benefit and value change to the subject property itself as a result of this is not 
believed to be measurable in this assignment.   
 
 



3074  47 

RECONCILIATION AND FINAL VALUE ESTIMATE 
 
In the Reconciliation section of the appraisal, the value indications from the approaches utilized 
are summarized, and from them the final reconciled value estimate for the subject property is then 
derived.  In the case of the subject, which is a vacant site, only the Sales Comparison Approach 
was utilized, as discussed earlier in the report.  The Income Capitalization and Cost Approaches 
were dismissed for the reasons discussed.   
 
This appraisal assignment involved a partial taking on the part of the client, as noted.  In this 
report, after analyzing the effects of the proposed partial taking, the appraiser has estimated the 
value of the subject site, both Before and After the Acquisition, via the Sales Comparison 
Approach to Value.  The appraiser further estimated the value of the Acquisition, including all 
relative components.  Finally, the appraiser also considered the possibility of severance damages 
and special benefits, but found that these were either not present or measurable.  
 
Based on the preceding investigation and analysis and considering all the various factors 
involved, plus recognizing the economics and market acceptance prevalent as of the effective date 
of the appraisal, the appraiser estimates the following:   
 

Component      Value 
 

Value, Before:      $199,000 
Value, After:      $181,000 
Value of the Part Taken:    $  18,000 
Severance Damages/Cost to Cure:   None 
Special Benefits:     None 
Total Estimated Compensation:    $  18,000 
 

 
 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COMPENSATION DUE TO THE OWNER OF THE SUBJECT 
 

($18,000) 
 

EIGHTEEN TOUSAND DOLLARS 
 
SPECIAL NOTE: 
 
The scenario for the partial taking of the subject has been discussed, consisting of the two 
separate Strips.  However, according to the client, an alternative scenario or taking situation 
exists.  The alternative scenario, herewith referred to as Scenario 2 (with Scenario 1 being as 
discussed), is whereby the County would still take Strip A, but instead of also taking Strip B 
outright, it would take Strip B but would give (trade) to Jack-in-the-Box a third Strip, herein 
referred to as Strip C.  That is, the County would get Strip B from Jack-in-the-Box and Jack-in-
the-Box would get Strip C from the County.  Strips B and C are identical in size.   As shown on 
the prior Survey, Strip C is a triangular shaped property located at the northwest corner of Parcel 
205-14-035F.  This strip is referred to on the Survey as “Proposed Land Exchange – Gila County 
to Jack-in-the-Box.”  This strip fronts Ash Street and is currently part of the Gila County property 
and is landscaped and has no other use.  In that Strips B and C are identical in size and similar in 
other ways, and neither currently being in use by Jack-in-the-Box, it is the opinion of the 



3074  48 

appraiser that for valuation purposes the two strips are in essence considered “equals” and the 
would-be trade in essence a “wash.”     
 
Therefore, should this alternative taking be agreed to by the two parties, the total compensation 
due Jack-in-the-Box would be less as it would be reflective of Strip A’s square footage only, 
rather than the combined square footage of Strips A and B.  The preceding is summarized on the 
following table:   
 
  
 
Scenario  Scenario 1   Scenario 2 
 
Description:  Strip A & B to Gila Co  Strip A & B to Gila, Strip C to J-B 
Site Before:  44,313 SF   44,313 SF 
Value of Site Before: $199,000   $199,000 
Taking:    4,052 SF    2,945 SF 
Value of Taking: $  18,000   $  13,000 
Site After:  40,261 SF   41,368 SF 
Value of Site After: $181,000   $186,000 
 
Summary: 
Compensation Due: $ 18,000   $ 13,000 
 
 
 
 



3074  49 

UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 
 
This appraisal report has been made in conformity with and is subject to the requirements of the 
Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Conduct of the Appraisal Institute and the 
guidelines and recommendations set forth in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice by the Appraisal Foundation. 
 
This appraiser is not responsible for any costs incurred to discover or correct any deficiencies of any 
type present in the property; whether physical, financial, and/or legal. In the case of limited 
partnerships, or syndication offerings, or stock offerings in real estate, the client agrees that in case of 
a lawsuit (brought by lender, partner or part owner in any form of ownership, tenant, or any other 
party), any and all awards or settlements of any type in such suit, regardless of the outcome, the 
client and all parties will completely hold harmless the appraiser.   
 
The liability of the appraiser and the firm with which he is connected is limited to the client in this 
assignment only and to the fee collected for the assignment.   
 
The validity of legal, engineering, or auditing opinions is assumed to be good, and no responsibility 
is assumed therefore. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, the appraiser assumes and believes that information furnished by others is 
reliable, but assumes no responsibility for its accuracy. 
 
Should this valuation opinion be ascribed in regard to proposed public or private improvements, then 
in that event, this appraisal is subject to the completion thereof in the manner proposed.  
 
The appraiser reserves the right to alter statements, analyses, conclusions, or any value estimate in 
the appraisal if there becomes known to me facts pertinent to the appraisal process which were 
unknown when the report was finished. Appraisal report and value estimate are subject to change if 
physical or legal entity or financing is different than that envisioned in this report. 
 
The title to the property being appraised is assumed to be marketable and competent management 
and/or ownership is assumed. Consideration has been given to the existing or potential financing 
associated with the subject and the impact of such financing on value. 
 
All mechanical components are assumed to be in operable condition and status standard for 
properties of the subject age and type. Conditions of heating, cooling, ventilating, electrical and 
plumbing equipment are considered to be commensurate with the condition of the balance of the 
improvements unless otherwise stated.  
 
The appraiser has inspected as far as possible, by observation, the land and the improvements; 
however, it was not possible to personally observe conditions beneath the soil, or hidden structural, 
mechanical, or other components, and the appraiser shall not be responsible for defects in the 
property related thereto. Appraiser assumes that there are no conditions that are not apparent, relating 
to the real estate, sub-soil conditions, or structures located on the real estate which would affect the 
analyses, opinions, or conclusions with respect to the real estate. 
 
If the appraiser has not been supplied with a termite inspection, survey, or occupancy permit, no 
responsibility or representation is assumed or made for any costs associated with obtaining same or 



3074  50 

for any deficiencies discovered before or after they are obtained. No representation or warranties are 
made concerning obtaining the above mentioned items. 
 
The appraiser has noted in the appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as needed repairs, 
depreciation, the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic substances, etc.) observed during the inspection 
of the subject property or that he became aware of during the normal research involved in performing 
the appraisal.  Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report, the appraiser has no knowledge of any 
hidden or unapparent conditions of the property or adverse environmental conditions (including the 
presence of hazardous wastes, toxic substances, etc.) that would make the property more or less 
valuable, and has assumed that there are no such conditions and makes no guarantees or warranties, 
express or implied, regarding the condition of the property.  The appraiser will not be responsible for 
any such conditions that do exist or for any engineering or testing that might be required to discover 
whether such conditions exist.  Because the appraiser is not an expert in the field of environmental 
hazards, the appraisal report must not be considered as an environmental assessment of the property.  
 
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) became effective in 1992. Appraiser has not 
made a specific compliance survey and analysis of this property to determine whether or not it is in 
conformity with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible  that a compliance 
survey of the property, together with a detailed analysis of the requirements of the ADA, could reveal 
that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of the Act. If so, this fact 
could have a negative effect on the value of the property. Since the appraiser has no direct evidence 
relating to this issue, appraiser did not consider possible noncompliance with the requirements of 
ADA in estimating the value of the property.  
 
Maps, drawings, or sketches have been made a part of the report to aid the reader in visualizing the 
property, neighborhood, and region. The appraiser has made no survey of the property and assumes 
no responsibility in connection with such matters. 
 
The distribution of the total valuation between land and any improvements applies only under the 
program of utilization and any additional conditions stated in this report, and are invalidated under 
other programs of utilization, or conditions, if used in making a summation appraisal. 
 
The appraiser is not required, because of this appraisal report, to appear or to testify at a public 
hearing, committee, or corporate meeting, deposition, or legal proceeding of any kind unless 
satisfactory arrangements have been made in advance for said appearance. 
 
The appraiser has examined the available flood maps that are provided by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (or other data sources) and, if it has been possible to make such determination 
from said sources, has noted in the appraisal report whether the  subject site is located in an identified 
Flood Hazard Area.  Because the appraiser is not a surveyor, the appraiser makes no guarantee, 
express or implied, regarding this determination.  It is up to the client to make or confirm their own 
determination regarding the subject’s flood zone status and to take responsibility therefore.  
 
The appraiser must provide his written consent before the lender/client specified in the appraisal can 
distribute the appraisal report (including conclusions about the property value, the appraiser’s 
identity or firm with which he is connected or any professional designations he may or may not have, 
and any references to any appraisal organizations with which he may or may not be associated) to 
anyone other than the borrower; the mortgagee or its successors and assigns; the mortgage insurer; 
consultants; professional appraisal organizations; any state or federally approved financial 
institutional or any department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States or any state or the 
District of Columbia; except that the lender/client may distribute the property description section of 



3074  51 

the report only to data collection or reporting services without having to obtain the appraiser’s prior 
written consent.  The appraiser’s written consent and approval must also be obtained before the 
appraisal can be conveyed by anyone to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, 
or other media.   
 
Moreover, this report or any portion thereof is for the exclusive use of the client for the stated 
purpose and function and is not intended to be used, given, sold, transferred, or relied on by any 
person other than the client without the prior, express written permission of the author. Use of or 
reliance upon this report by third parties is specifically prohibited. The appraiser assumes no 
responsibility for potential claims arising from unauthorized use of this report, or any portion thereof. 
The client will forever indemnify and hold the appraiser harmless from any claims by third parties 
related in any way to the appraisal or study which is the subject thereof. 
 
The appraisal report, including all addendums, is meant to be used only in its entirety; no part may be 
used without the full or entire report. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, the present purchasing power of the dollar is the basis for the values 
ascribed. 
 
The client authorizes disclosure of all or any portion of this appraisal report and the related appraisal 
data to appropriate representatives of the Appraisal Institute if such disclosure is required to enable 
the appraiser to comply with the bylaws and regulations of said Institute hereafter in effect.  
 
Acceptance of, and/or use of, this appraisal report by the client constitutes acceptance of the above 
general underlying assumptions and limiting conditions, as well as any additional hypothetical or 
extraordinary assumptions included herewith.   
 
 



3074  52 

APPRAISER’S CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 
 

- The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 
 
- The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 

assumptions and limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased 
professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

 
- I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this 

report and no personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 
 
- I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the 

parties involved with the assignment. 
 
- My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 

predetermined results. 
 
- My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the 

development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors 
the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated 
result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of 
this appraisal. 

 
- The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has 

been prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional 
Ethics & Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute, 
which include the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. 

 
- The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating 

to review by its duly authorized representatives. 
 

- I have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 
 

- No one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person signing 
this certification. 

 
______________________________   
Kurt Peer 
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser 
 
Date:  
June 28, 2010 



3074  53 

 
 



3074  54 

 



3074  55 

 



3074  56 

 



3074  57 

 





















    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director

Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 9/30/2010-9/30/2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information

Request/Subject

2011 annual Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO1103-1200-010 with USDA, Forest Service, Tonto

National Forest, for road maintenance.

Background Information

The Board of Supervisors approved the Forest Development Road Cooperative Master Agreement on

September 30, 2009, which allows the Gila County Public Works Division the ability to continue

providing maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads until September 30, 2014. 

This attached U.S. Forest Service Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010 is the FY11 Annual

Maintenance Plan for the provision of routine maintenance on these Tonto National Forest Service roads.

Evaluation

This Agreement is done annually to provide for the routine maintenance on Forest Service roads.

Conclusion

This Agreement is necessary to provide routine maintenance on Forest Service roads.  It is also requested

that the Board of Supervisors provide Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, the authority to

sign any required modifications, under the amount of $50,000 for the FY11 Annual Maintenance Plan on

Tonto National Forest Service roads.

Recommendation

The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors sign U.S. Forest

Service Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010 for the FY11 Annual Maintenance Plan for routine

maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads, with approval for the Public Works Division

Director to sign modifications under $50,000.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010 between

the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest, and Gila County for

FY11 annual maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads in the amount of $72,114 through

September 30, 2011, and with approval for Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, to sign

modifications under $50,000.  (Steve Stratton)



Attachments

Link: FS Agreement





























    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 or after  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: contract begins FEMA award letter date & ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: Yes  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-January 2010 Buy-Out Project

Background Information

As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division

of Emergency Management. The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the

effects of natural hazards and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals. Funding

is provided to eligible applicants competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25% Applicant.

Applicants may use soft, or in-kind, costs to meet the 25% match.

Evaluation

January 2010 winter storms resulted in severe flood damages for Gila County residents.  Since the event,

Emergency Management personnel have been in contact with at least 9 homeowners that specifically

expressed interest in a property buy out program.  As of December 15, 2010, four (4) homeowners have

returned an original signed copy of the "Homeowner Interest Sign-up Sheet and Voluntary Notice"

necessary to begin a FEMA HMGP application for acquisition of property for open-space purposes.  The

"Homeowner Interest Sign-up Sheet and Voluntary Notice" signifies a homeowners

VOLUNTARY participation in the application process and is not an obligation on the homeowner or the

county.

The intent of open-space acquisition from willing sellers is to maintain the property in perpetuity for

uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices consistent with

conservation of natural floodplain functions by recording deed restrictions consistent with the FEMA

Model Deed Restriction. Therefore, acquisition of these four (4) properties will result in reduced and/or

elimination of future flood risk to homeowner life and property, safety risk to emergency responders

during flood events and reduced cost of community recovery.

Conclusion

The likelihood of future damage from flood events is rated by the location of a property in the flood



The likelihood of future damage from flood events is rated by the location of a property in the flood

zone. Three (3) out of four (4) properties are located in the AE zone-areas subject to inundation by

1-percent-annual-chance flood event; one (1) property is in a location currently rated as D

zone-undetermined but possible flood hazard. However, this property has a documented history of

significant flooding at least twice in the past 7 years and is located adjacent to 3 properties that were

acquired by Gila County after a 2003 monsoon event caused severe flood damage to a Roosevelt

neighborhood.

The estimated total cost of this project is based on FEMA approval of four (4) property acquisitions

and the estimated Current Market Value of acquisitions plus the estimated of site demolition, restoration

and stabilization: $464,492.00 (75% Federal Share = $348369.00; County Share = $116,123.00).

Project funding is available from the date of a FEMA award letter. Projects must be completed within 3

years. Matching funds may not be expended prior to the date of a FEMA award letter.

Recommendation

The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize

Emergency Management to submit an application for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding

for FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project in the amount of $464,492.  The mitigation grant

will begin on the date of the FEMA award letter and end 3 years from that date.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to

submit a FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project Grant Application to the Arizona Division of

Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funds in the amount of

$464,492.   (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments

Link: Project Estimates

Link: Project Solicitation

Link: Grant Application for parcel 201-06-156F

Link: Grant Application for parcel 204-03-051B

Link: Grant Application for parcel 201-14-018D

Link: Grant Application for parcel 201-10-090



Gila County
FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy Out Project

 Voluntary Notice of Participation 
Submitted to Gila County Emergency 
Management 

 Cash Value 
Assessor 2010  Plus 25%  

 Estimated 
Acquisition Cost 

 Estimated 
Average Cost of 
Demolition, Site 

Restoration/ 
Stabilization  

 Flood Zone 
Designation 

204-03-051B 33,690.00$         8,422.50$         42,112.50$        25,000.00$       D 
202 Ash St, Roosevelt
Site build 1035 - frame 2 story modified A 
frame
Flooded 2003, 2009, 2010
FEMA Insurance: yes

201-14-018D 39,274.00$         9,818.50$         49,092.50$        25,000.00$       AE 
197 Reno Dr
FEMA Insurance: no

201-06-156F 126,821.00$       31,705.25$       158,526.25$      25,000.00$       AE 
160 E El Vagumundo Ln  
site built
FEMA Insurance: no

201-10-090 58,027.00$         14,506.75$       72,533.75$        25,000.00$       AE 
155 W Christopher

257,812.00$       64,453.00$       322,265.00$      100,000.00$     $ 422,265.00 
 $   42,226.50 

257,812.00$       64,453.00$       322,265.00$      100,000.00$     $ 464,491.50 

193,359.00$       48,339.75$       241,698.75$      75,000.00$       $ 348,368.63 
64,453.00$         16,113.25$       80,566.25$        25,000.00$       $ 116,122.88 

* Even though this address is rated in an undetermined but possible flood hazard zone, there is documented history of repetitive flood damages due to previous flooding events. 

25% County Match

 Estimated Buy Out-Current Market Value 12/2010
Plus 10% Adminitrative Costs

Estimated cost for Buy Out Project

75% Federal Match



Gila County
FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy Out Project

* Even though this address is rated in an undetermined but possible flood hazard zone, there is documented history of repetitive flood damages due to previous flooding events. 

* Zone D An area of undetermined but 
possible flood hazards.

** Zone AE An area inundated by 100-
year flooding, for which BFEs have
been determined.



dwilliams
Text Box
Gila County Emergency Management will buyout 6 properties that experienced significant flood damage in January 2010 and are located in high risk flood plain areas.   The intent to is return these properties to their natural state and mitigate future flood insurance payouts.The estimated cost of buyout includes home value, appraisal, closing costs, and demolition.This project is in line with flood mitigation recommendations provided by the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers after the January 2010 Winter Storms.

dwilliams
Text Box
January 2010 Flood BuyOuts

dwilliams
Text Box
Matt Bolinger, M.D.

dwilliams
Text Box
Gila County Emergency Management

dwilliams
Text Box
mbolinger@co.gila.az.us

dwilliams
Text Box
928-402-8764

dwilliams
Text Box
Globe                                  Gila                                            85501

dwilliams
Text Box
5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 400

dwilliams
Text Box
Three (3) years

dwilliams
Text Box
$ 600,000.00



 

Application 
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111888888888   ---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 464-6349 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
Aug 2010 

Return form to: allen.howard@azdema.gov,  
Phone: (602) 464-6349  Fax: (602) 464-6538 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

January 2010 Buy Out: 201-06-156F 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Matt Bolinger 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8764 
Phone Number 

 
 

mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Debra L. Williams 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8763 
Phone Number 

 
 

dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Local Government
  
 
 

 
 

160 E. El Vagamundo Ln. 
Project Address

 
 

Tonto Basin, Gila, AZ 85553 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

33.819639 ° W  111.286278° N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community? Yes 
 
 
County Code  00000  H1 

 
 

FIPS Code  007 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 

Gila County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

When was the plan approved? 
 

April 2006 
 

Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 
 

Multi-Jurisdictional  

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

N/A 
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
Goal 5: Reduce the potential level of damage and losses 
to people, existing and future critical 
facilities/infrastructure and other community assets due 
to floods. 
Objective 5.B Decrease vulnerability of community 
assets, especially critical facilities located in the 100 year 
flood plain. 
Objective 5.D Maintain compliance with the National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) requirements. 
Action: Mitigate risk of loss of life and property in the 
most flood prone zones. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

N/A 
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

7/17/2008 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

No      CRS Classification   N/A 
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        Yes 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                No 

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde De Roulhac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila County 
Address:  608 E Hwy 260 
City, State, Zip: Payson, Arizona, 85541 
Phone:  928-474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Flooding/Flash 
Flooding       

                                  

                                  

If other, specify: 
            

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

04007C1208D 12/04/2007 AE 
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
See attached Standard Flood Hazard Determination document 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People 2 

Buildings 2-Assessor 2010 Full Cash Value $126,821.00 

Infrastructure       

Land       

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

01/2010 Flash Flood 

Runoff from the January 2010 storms again caused flash 
flooding.  Approximately 2 feet of mud and water flowed through 
the property and structures.  The house had to be completely 
renovated. The drywall taken out 2 feet up the wall and 
replaced, the carpet replaced and the entire house repainted. 
The barn and bunkhouse had to be cleaned to remove the 
water and mud.  

Info Pending 

                        

Total Events 1 Total Cost       

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

8

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.) 1.0 

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

Detailed report pending.  BCA estimated to be at or greater than 1.0.  

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$201,878.88       $151,409.16 $50,469.72 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

General Funds Gila County In-Kind $50,469.72 07/01/2011 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total        

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 

      

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

10

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

This property is located in FEMA Flood Zone AE and is adjacent to properties that experienced 7 feet of flood waters 
during the January 2010 Winter Storms.  This area is a documented repetitive flood area. 
 
Gila County Emergency Management proposes to purchase this property, demolish existing structures and return the land 
to open-space use.  The intent of open-space acquisition from willing sellers is to maintain the property in perpetuity for 
uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices consistent with conservation of natural 
floodplain functions by recording deed restrictions consistent with the FEMA Model Deed Restriction.  
 
The benefits of this mitigation action will be to prevent further risk to life and property in a natural, uncontrolled watershed 
 
 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 6 months 
Property Documentation: Site assessment, appraisal, consultation 
regarding ongoing federal activities  $5,000.00 

2 12 months Purchase offer, closing costs, legal fees $171,879.00 

3 3 months Demolition plan, permitting and contracting $5,000.00 

4 3 months Site Preparation $5,000.00 

5 6 months Demolition, site restoration and stabilization $15,000.00 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total       Total Estimated Cost $201,879.00 
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  Yes           If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  Yes 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

(1) Site built home, (1) 20 X 40 metal barn with a cement foundation and (1) 10 x 10 bunkhouse with cement foundation 
and wood frame that will be demolished and debris removed from site.  Grading of the site consistent with open-space 
use will be performed.   

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

There are no other projects in the Sleepy Hallow subdivision in Tonto Basin; However there are 2 other acquisition 
projects along the Tonto Creek Area and 1 in the Roosevelt Estates area. 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   No  If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   NO       If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

 

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?  YES       If yes, attach the document of record, and 
provide point of contact information below.  Document of Record pending Gila County Board of Supervisors 
approval to submit application. 

Name:   Matt Bolinger 
 
Title:      Director 
 
Agency: Gila County Emergency Management 
 
Phone:   928-402-8764 

E-mail:     mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
 
Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
 
City, Zip:  Globe, 85501 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

Maintenance of open space property will be conducted in consideration of reducing wildfire/hazardous fuels for the 
protection of life and property adjacent to the project.  Condition of the property will be monitored at least bi-annually, and 
maintenance coordinated by Gila County Emergency Management personnel as needed. 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1 See Justification

Title  Elevation 
Description 
 

Alternative 2 See Justification

Title  Relocation 
Description 
 

Alternative 3 See Justification

Title  No Action 
Description 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

This area of this property location has experienced repetitive flooding due to changes in the natural watershed.  Flash flood 
events deposit debris and soil that cause changes to the stream bed elevation.  With each event the risk of flooding increases.   
Federal restrictions regarding removal of debris from waterways in order to maintain the stream bed elevation ensures future 
flood events.   
 
Elevation in this area of the natural watershed could create risks related to isolation of the property and possible emergency 
rescue of residents due to complications of isolation. 
 
Relocation is cost prohibitive due to the 25% matching burden on the homeowner, including the requirement to maintain flood 
insurance on properties benefiting from federal funding. 
 
This project proposes to acquire this property and dedicate the land to open space use as part of the county’s ongoing flood 
mitigation efforts, thereby reducing the risk to life and property. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

17

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 



 

Application 
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111888888888   ---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 464-6349 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
Aug 2010 

Return form to: allen.howard@azdema.gov,  
Phone: (602) 464-6349  Fax: (602) 464-6538 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

January 2010 Buy Out: 204-03-051B 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Matt Bolinger 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8764 
Phone Number 

 
 

mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Debra L. Williams 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8763 
Phone Number 

 
 

dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Local Government
  
 
 

 
 

202 Ash St., Lot 77B 
Project Address

 
 

Roosevelt, Gila, AZ 85545 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

33.623833 ° W  111.002194 ° N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community?          
 
 
County Code  00000  H1 

 
 

FIPS Code  007 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 

Gila County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

When was the plan approved? 
 

April 2006 
 

Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 
 

Multi-Jurisdictional 

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

      
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
Goal 5: Reduce the potential level of damage and losses 
to people, existing and future critical 
facilities/infrastructure and other community assets due 
to floods. 
Objective 5.B Decrease vulnerability of community 
assets, especially critical facilities located in the 100 year 
flood plain. 
Objective 5.D Maintain compliance with the National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) requirements. 
Action 5.B.18 Roosevelt Estates Buyout-Buyout 
remaining homes between Ash Street and Campaign 
Creek at Roosevelt Lake Estates.



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

      
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

07/17/2008 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

No      CRS Classification                
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        Yes 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                No 

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde DeRoulhac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila Co Community Development 
Address:  608 E. Hwy 260 
City, State, Zip: Payson, AZ  85541 
Phone:  928-474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Flooding/Flash 
Flooding       

                                  

                                  

If other, specify: 
            

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

004007C1832D 12/04/2007 D 
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
See attached Standard Flood Hazard Determination document (4 pages) 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People 2 

Buildings 4 – Assessor 2010 Full Cash Value $58,027 

Infrastructure       

Land       

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

09/2003 Flash Flood 

Approximately 9.5 inches of rain fell during a 12 hour period 
over the Tonto National Forest Foothills, causing torrential 
flooding at the confluence of Pinto Creek, Campaign Creek, 
Spring Creek and Wildcat Wash, flooding approximately 5 
homes, including Etheridge.  4’ of mud and water flowed 
through their property.   

Info pending 

2009 Flash Flood  Info pending 

01/2010 Flash Flood 

Runoff from the January 2010 storms again caused flash 
flooding.  Approximately 2 feet of mud and water flowed through 
the property and structures.  At this time the structures are 
adjacent to property that is owned by the county as open-space 
acquisition so there is nothing between this property and the 
confluence. 

Info pending 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

8

Total Events 3 Total Cost       

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.) 1.0 

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

Detailed report pending.  BCA estimated to be at or greater than 1.0.  

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

10

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$73,824       $55,368 $18,456 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

General Funds Gila County In-Kind $18,456 07/01/2011 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total        

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 

 

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

This property has a demonstrated repetitive flood risk due to its location adjacent to the confluence of Pinto Creek, 
Campaign Creek, Spring Creek and Wildcat Wash.  The property owners have provided a statement of voluntary 
participation in a property acquisition project.  
 
Gila County Emergency Management proposes to purchase this property, demolish existing structures and return the land 
to open-space use.  The intent of open-space acquisition from willing sellers is to maintain the property in perpetuity for 
uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices consistent with conservation of natural 
floodplain functions by recording deed restrictions consistent with the FEMA Model Deed Restriction.  
 
The benefit of this mitigation action will be to prevent further risk to life and property in a natural, uncontrolled watershed.   
  

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 6 months 
Property Documentation: site assessment, appraisal, consultation regarding 
ongoing federal activities $5,000.00 

2 12 months Purchase offer, closing costs, legal fees $43,824.00 

3 3 months Demolition plan, permitting and contracting $5,000.00 

4 3 months Site Preparation $5,000.00 

5 6 months Demolition, site restoration and stabilization $15,000.00 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total 960 Days Total Estimated Cost $73,824.00 
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  Yes           If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  Yes 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

2 structures will demolished and debris removed from site.  Grading of the site consistent with open-space use will be 
performed.   

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

There are no other projects in this Roosevelt sub-division, however there are 3 other acquisition projects pending in the 
Tonto Basin-Tonto Creek area. 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   NO  If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   NO       If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

DSR-2003 Roosevelt Estates (attached) 

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?  YES       If yes, attach the document of record, and 
provide point of contact information below.  Document of Record pending Gila County Board of Supervisors 
approval to submit application. 

Name:   Matt Bolinger 
 
Title:      Director 
 
Agency: Gila County Emergency Management 
 
Phone:   928-402-8764 

E-mail:     mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
 
Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
 
City, Zip:  Globe, 85501 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

Maintenance of open space property will be conducted in consideration of reducing wildfire/hazardous fuels for the 
protection of life and property adjacent to the project.  Condition of the property will be monitored at least bi-annually, and 
maintenance coordinated by Gila County Emergency Management personnel as needed. 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1 See Justification

Title  Elevation 
Description 
  

Alternative 2 See Justification

Title  Relocation 
Description 
 

Alternative 3 See Justification

Title  No Action 
Description 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

17

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

This property has experienced repetitive flooding due to changes in the natural watershed.  Flash flood events deposit debris 
and soil that cause changes to the stream bed elevation.  With each event the risk of flooding increases.   
Federal restrictions regarding removal of debris from waterways in order to maintain the stream bed elevation ensures future 
flood events.   
 
Elevation in this area of the natural watershed could create risks related to isolation of the property and possible emergency 
rescue of residents due to complications of isolation. 
 
Relocation is cost prohibitive due to the 25% matching burden on the homeowner, including the requirement to maintain flood 
insurance on properties benefiting from federal funding. 
 
This project proposes to acquire this property and dedicate the land to open space use as part of the county’s ongoing flood 
mitigation efforts, thereby reducing the risk to life and property. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

18

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 



 

Application 
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111888888888   ---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 464-6349 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
Aug 2010 

Return form to: allen.howard@azdema.gov,  
Phone: (602) 464-6349  Fax: (602) 464-6538 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

January 2010 Buy Out: 201-14-018D 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Matt Bolinger 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8764 
Phone Number 

 
 

mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Debra L. Williams 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8763 
Phone Number 

 
 

dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Local Government
  
 
 

 
 

197 W. Reno Dr.  
Project Address

 
 

Tonto Basin, Gila, AZ 85553 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

33°51’54.5W  111°18’5.8 N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community?          
 
 
County Code  00000  H1 

 
 

FIPS Code  007 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 

Gila County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

When was the plan approved? 
 

April 2006 
 

Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 
 

Multi-Jurisdictional 

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

      
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
Goal 5: Reduce the potential level of damage and losses 
to people, existing and future critical 
facilities/infrastructure and other community assets due 
to floods. 
Objective 5.B Decrease vulnerability of community 
assets, especially critical facilities located in the 100 year 
flood plain. 
Objective 5.D Maintain compliance with the National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) requirements. 
Action: Mitigate risk of loss of life and property in the 
most flood prone zones. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

      
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

07/17/2008 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

No      CRS Classification                
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        Yes 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                         

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde DeRoulhac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila Co Community Development 
Address:  608 E. Hwy 260 
City, State, Zip: Payson, AZ  85541 
Phone:  928-474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Flooding/Flash 
Flooding       

                                  

                                  

If other, specify: 
            

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

004007C1832D 12/04/2007 D 
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
See attached Standard Flood Hazard Determination document (15 pages) 

  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People 2 

Buildings 2 – Assessor 2010 Full Cash Value $39,274 

Infrastructure       

Land       

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

01/2010 Flash Flood 

Runoff from the January 2010 storms caused flash flooding.  
Approximately 4 feet of mud and water flowed through the 
property and structures.  The 2 structures were left with 4 
inches of silt and mud inside. All of the fencing on the property 
was washed away by debris. Large amounts of driftwood were 
deposited on the property as well as 3-4 ft piles of silt.  

Pending 

         

Total Events 1 Total Cost       

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

8

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.) 1.0 

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

Detailed report pending.  BCA estimated to be at or greater than 1.0. 

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$81,501.75       $61,126.31 $20,375.44 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

General Funds Gila County In-Kind $20,375.44 07/01/2011 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total        

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 

      

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

10

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

Gila County Emergency Management proposes to purchase this property, demolish existing structures and return the land 
to open-space use.  The intent of open-space acquisition from willing sellers is to maintain the property in perpetuity for 
uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices consistent with conservation of natural 
floodplain functions by recording deed restrictions consistent with the FEMA Model Deed Restriction.  
 
The benefit of this mitigation action will be to prevent further risk to life and property in a natural, uncontrolled watershed.   
 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 6 months 
Property Documentation: site assessment, appraisal, consultation regarding 
ongoing federal activities $5000.00 

2 12 months Purchase offer, closing costs, legal fees $51,502.00 

3 3 months Demolition plan, permitting and contracting $5,000.00 

4 3 months Site Preparation $5,000.00 

5 6 months Demolition, site restoration and stabilization $15,000.00 

                        

                        

                         

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total       Total Estimated Cost $81,502.00 
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  Yes           If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  Yes 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

2 structures will be demolished and debris removed from site.  Grading of the site consistent with open-space use will be 
performed.   

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

There are 2 other acquisition projects along the Tonto Creek. 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   NO  If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   NO       If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

 

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?  YES       If yes, attach the document of record, and 
provide point of contact information below.  Document of Record pending Gila County Board of Supervisors 
approval to submit application. 

Name:   Matt Bolinger 
 
Title:      Director 
 
Agency: Gila County Emergency Management 
 
Phone:   928-402-8764 

E-mail:     mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
 
Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
 
City, Zip:  Globe, 85501 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

Maintenance of open space property will be conducted in consideration of reducing wildfire/hazardous fuels for the 
protection of life and property adjacent to the project.  Condition of the property will be monitored at least bi-annually, and 
maintenance coordinated by Gila County Emergency Management personnel as needed. 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1 See Justification

Title  Elevation 
Description 
 

Alternative 2 See Justification

Title  Relocation 
Description 
 

Alternative 3 See Justification

Title  No Action 
Description 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

This property has experienced repetitive flooding due to changes in the natural watershed.  Flash flood events deposit debris 
and soil that cause changes to the stream bed elevation.  With each event the path of flash flood flow changes, increasing the 
risk of flood damages.  
Federal restrictions regarding removal of debris from waterways in order to maintain the stream bed elevation ensures future 
flood events.   
 
Elevation in this area of the natural watershed could create risks related to isolation of the property and possible emergency 
rescue of residents due to complications of isolation. 
 
Relocation is cost prohibitive due to the 25% matching burden on the homeowner, including the requirement to maintain flood 
insurance on properties benefiting from federal funding. 
 
This project proposes to acquire this property and dedicate the land to open space use as part of the county’s ongoing flood 
mitigation efforts, thereby reducing the risk to life and property. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

17

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 



 

Application 
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111888888888   ---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 464-6349 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
Aug 2010 

Return form to: allen.howard@azdema.gov,  
Phone: (602) 464-6349  Fax: (602) 464-6538 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

January 2010 Buy Out: 201-10-090 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Matt Bolinger 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8764 
Phone Number 

 
 

mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Debra L. Williams 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8763 
Phone Number 

 
 

dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Local Government
  
 
 

 
 

155 W. Christopher Ln., Lot 41 
Project Address

 
 

Tonto Basin, AZ  85553 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

33.623833 ° W  111.002194 ° N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community?          
 
 
County Code  00000  H1 

 
 

FIPS Code  007 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 

Gila County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

When was the plan approved? 
 

April 2006 
 

Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 
 

Multi-Jurisdictional 

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

      
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
Goal 5: Reduce the potential level of damage and losses 
to people, existing and future critical 
facilities/infrastructure and other community assets due 
to floods. 
Objective 5.B Decrease vulnerability of community 
assets, especially critical facilities located in the 100 year 
flood plain. 
Objective 5.D Maintain compliance with the National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) requirements. 
Action: Mitigate risk of loss of life and property in the 
most flood prone zones. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

      
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

07/17/2008 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

No      CRS Classification                
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        Yes 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                         

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde DeRoulhac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila Co Community Development 
Address:  608 E. Hwy 260 
City, State, Zip: Payson, AZ  85541 
Phone:  928-474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Flooding/Flash 
Flooding       

                                  

                                  

If other, specify: 
            

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

04007C1209D 12/4/2007 AE 
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
See attached Standard Flood Hazard Determination document  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People 2 

Buildings 2 – Assessor 2010 Full Cash Value $58,027.00 

Infrastructure       

Land       

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

01/2008 Flash Flood Information pending from homeowner       

01/2010 Flash Flood 

Runoff from the January 2010 storms again caused flash 
flooding.  Approximately 2 feet of mud and water flowed through 
the property and structures.  A claim was paid in the amount of 
$8,800.00, to repair the skirting around the house, air 
conditioner and duct work, broken main water line, tipped over 
propane tank, and remove water and mud from well.   

      

Total Events 2 Total Cost Info pending 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

8

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.) 1.0 

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

Detailed report pending.  BCA estimated to be at or greater than 1.0.  

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$107,287.13       $80,465.34 $26,821.78 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

General Funds Gila County In-Kind $26,821.78 07/01/2011 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total        

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 

      

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

10

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

This property is located in FEMA Flood Zone AE and has experienced repetitive flood damages.  The property owners 
have provided a statement of voluntary participation in a property acquisition project.  
 
Gila County Emergency Management proposes to purchase this property, demolish existing structures and return the land 
to open-space use.  The intent of open-space acquisition from willing sellers is to maintain the property in perpetuity for 
uses compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices consistent with conservation of natural 
floodplain functions by recording deed restrictions consistent with the FEMA Model Deed Restriction.  
 
The benefits of this mitigation action will be to prevent further risk to life and property in a natural, uncontrolled watershed.  
  

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 6 months 
Property Documentation: site assessment, appraisal, consultation regarding 
ongoing federal activities $5,000.00 

2 12 months Purchase offer, closing costs, legal fees $77,287.00 

3 3 months Demolition plan, permitting and contracting $5,000.00 

4 3 months Site Preparation $5,000.00 

5 6 months Demolition, site restoration and stabilization $15,000.00 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total       Total Estimated Cost $107,287.00 
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  Yes           If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  Yes 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

(1) Manufactured home, (1) 10 x 20 workshop block foundation wood frame, (1) 10 x 20 pantry block foundation wood 
frame, and (1) storage shed cement foundation wood frame that will be demolished and debris removed from site.  
Grading of the site consistent with open-space use will be performed.   

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

There are no other projects in Lake Roosevelt Gardens subdivision; however there is 1 other acquisition project in 
Roosevelt Estates and 2 other acquisition projects along the Tonto Creek Area. 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   NO  If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   NO       If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

 

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?  YES       If yes, attach the document of record, and 
provide point of contact information below.  Document of Record pending Gila County Board of Supervisors 
approval to submit application. 

Name:   Matt Bolinger 
 
Title:      Director 
 
Agency: Gila County Emergency Management 
 
Phone:   928-402-8764 

E-mail:     mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
 
Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
 
City, Zip:  Globe, 85501 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

Maintenance of open space property will be conducted in consideration of reducing wildfire/hazardous fuels for the 
protection of life and property adjacent to the project.  Condition of the property will be monitored at least bi-annually, and 
maintenance coordinated by Gila County Emergency Management personnel as needed. 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1 See Justification

Title  Elevation 
Description 
 

Alternative 2 See Justification

Title  Relocation 
Description 
 

Alternative 3       

Title  No Action 
Description 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

This property has experienced repetitive flooding due to changes in the natural watershed.  Flash flood events deposit debris 
and soil that cause changes to the stream bed elevation.  With each event the risk of flooding increases.   
Federal restrictions regarding removal of debris from waterways in order to maintain the stream bed elevation ensures future 
flood events.   
 
Elevation in this area of the natural watershed could create risks related to isolation of the property and possible emergency 
rescue of residents due to complications of isolation. 
 
Relocation is cost prohibitive due to the 25% matching burden on the homeowner, including the requirement to maintain flood 
insurance on properties benefiting from federal funding. 
 
This project proposes to acquire this property and dedicate the land to open space use as part of the county’s ongoing flood 
mitigation efforts, thereby reducing the risk to life and property. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

17

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 or after  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Begins on date of FEMA award ltr & ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: Yes  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Matt Bolinger 

Information

Request/Subject

FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project

Background Information

As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division

of Emergency Management.  The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the

effects of natural hazards and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals.  Funding

is provided to eligible applicants competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25% Applicant. 

Applicants may use soft, or in-kind, costs to meet the 25% match.

Evaluation

During a heavy rainfall event in January 2010, a portion of County-maintained gravel surface road,

Vertical Heights in Globe, Arizona, was subjected to extensive erosion of the existing roadway fill zone

(north of the roadway centerline).  This erosive condition resulted in slope and/or toe failure of the

roadway embankment and a full land width portion of the roadway was lost.  The previous two-lane

gravel surface roadway is now reduced to a single lane that serves a portion of the area known as

Vertical Heights, leaving no secondary access into the area.  Unless a proper mitigation measure is

installed, future damage to the roadway will result in limited or permanent loss of access.  Traffic safety

under the current condition should be considered hazardous.

Based on Gila County Public Works-Engineering conceptual analysis, two mitigation repair measures

are currently being considered.  Additional analyses including topographic survey and geotechnical

study will be required to assist in determination of the final mitigation project. 

Conclusion

A Project Solicitation form for this project was forwarded to the Arizona Division of Emergency

Management for an estimated amount of $350,000.00 and an HMGP application was recommended. 

Should the final project reach the full $350,000.00 estimate, the 75% Federal share will be $262,500.00

and the 25% County share will be $87,500.00.

Project funding is available from the date of a FEMA award letter. Projects must be completed within 3

years. Matching funds may not be expended prior to the date of a FEMA award letter.

Recommendation



The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends the Board of Supervisors authorize

Emergency Management to submit an application in the amount of $350,000.00 for FEMA Hazard

Mitigation Grant Program funding for the repair of Vertical Heights Road.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department

approval to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project to the

Arizona Division of Emergency Management for a grant request totalling $350,000. (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments

Link: HMGP Application

Link: Funding Availability

Link: Location Map

Link: Picture1

Link: Picture2

Link: Picture3



 

AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn   
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 244-0504 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
June 20087  

Return form to:HMGP Program Manager  
Phone: (602) 231-6349  Fax: (602) 392-7538 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Vertical Heights Road Flood Erosion Repair 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Steve Sanders 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Public Works Division 
Agency 

 
 

1400 East Ash Street 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8531 
Phone Number 

 
 

ssanders@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Steve Stratton. 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Public Works Divisiont 
Agency 

 
 

1400 East Ash Street 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8530 
Phone Number 

 
 

sstratton@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Government 
  
 
 

 
 

Vertical Heights Roadway 
Project Address

 
 

Unincorporated Area, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

110.8183 ° W  33.4258 ° N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

WGS 84 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community? No 
 
 
County Code  007  Gila 

 
 

FIPS Code  04     DUNS Number  147259191 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 

Gila County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

When was the plan approved? 
 

April 1, 2006 
 

Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 
 

Multi-jurisdictional 

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

NA 
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
This project relates to Goal 2, Objective2.B "Promote 
partnerships among the federal, state, counties, local and 
tribal governments to identify, prioritize, and implement 
mitigation actions." Also Goal 10, Obj. 10.B "Protect life, 
improved property, and natural resources with 
vulnerability to the effects of other natural hazards." As 
identified in the summary of Mitigation strategies "Staff 
resources are available for the identification, 
development and implementation of mitigation measures 
with some overlap of expertise in the various categories. 
Financially, the County has the ability…to levy taxes for 
specific purposes."  



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

      
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

Jul-10 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

No      CRS Classification                
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        Yes 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                No 

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde de Rouhlac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila County Public Works 
Address:  1400 East Ash 
City, State, Zip: Globe, AZ 85501 
Phone:  (928) 474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Slope Stability       

Other       

                                  

If other, specify: 
Traffic Safety       

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

                  
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
The mitigation area is on Vertical Heights Road approximately 1,700 feet westerly from the intersection of Pinaleno Pass 
Road in the unincorporated area of Gila County. The mitigation area is approximately 400 feet north of the Globe City 
Boundary. See Part II above for GPS Coordinates.See the attached Location Map. 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People If the remaing roadway fails during an event then it is possible that a driver could be 
killed. The value of a human life per FHWA is currently $1.6 million.  

Buildings NA 

Infrastructure Remaining roadway at risk, valued at $200,000. The current traffic safety condition is 
hazardous. 

Land NA 

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

12/2010 Heavy rainfall 
The width of the slope failure envelope is approximately 150 
feet longitudinal with the roadway alignment and nearly 30 feet 
to the north of the edge of the previous roadway.  

$400,000.00 

Unknown Heavy rainfall The slope failed previously at some unknown point in time as 
there is evidence of attempted reapairs. $20,000.00 

                        

                        

Total Events 2 Total Cost $420,000.00 

 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

8

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.)       

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

If the slope stability issue is not adequately addressed the road will remain as a one-lane road with the failed slope still 
exposed. As such traffic safety is considered potentially hazardous and another heavy rainfall event may cause the 
remaing roadway to be lost. Therefore mitigation of this problem will result in benefits of avoiding future loss of roadway 
as well as improving traffic safety by removing a potentially hazardous condition. 

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$350,000.00 $500.00 $262,500.00 $87,500.00 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

Applicant Gila County HURF $87,500.00 Jan-10 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total $87,500.00  

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 

      

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

10

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

 
During a heavy rainfall event in January of 2010, a portion of a County maintained gravel surface road; Vertical Heights, 
was subjected to extensive erosion of the existing roadway fill zone (to the north of the roadway centerline). This erosive 
condition resulted in slope and/or toe failure of the roadway embankment and a full lane width portion of the roadway was 
lost. The previous two-lane gravel surface roadway is now reduced to a single lane that serves a portion of the area north 
of Globe, Arizona with no secondary access into the area available. The width of the failure envelope is approximately 150 
feet longitudinal with the roadway alignment and nearly 30 feet to the north of the edge of the previous roadway.  
 
  
 
Unless a proper mitigation measure is installed future damage to the roadway, resulting in limited and/or permanent loss 
of access will result. Traffic safety under the current condition should be considered hazardous. 
 
Based on a conceptual analysis of the mitigation measures applicable to repair the damage two likely candidates exist: 
concrete retaining wall or mechanically stabilized earth (MSE) type system. 
 
 
An initial examination of the concrete retaining wall option would employ a typical ADOT Concrete Retaining Wall per 
ADOT Standard Detail B-18.10 using a Case III approach (2:1 sloping backfill). The estimated height of this wall is 16 feet 
with a minimum wall thickness of 10 inches and an overall wall footing width of 12 feet. Additional analyses including a 
detailed topographic survey and geotechnical study will be required to evaluate all earthwork parameters before final 
design of the retaining wall or optional MSE system can be completed. The initial estimate of earthwork: 7,300 cubic yards 
of roadway excavation and 11,000 cubic yards of final roadway embankment.  Reestablishment of the roadway  drainage 
system will be required for this project to ensure roadway safety.  

 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 15 days 
Complete topographic Survey 

$4,000.00 

2 30 days Complete Preliminary Engineering and Alternatives Analysis $18,000.00 

3 45 days Complete 100% Engineering Design $13,000.00 

4 15 days Complete Bid Documents $2,000.00 

5 45 days Advertise for Construction bids and award $1,000.00 

6 90 days Construction Activities Occur $310,000.00 

7 15 days Project As-builts and Close-out $2,000.00 

                        

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total       Total Estimated Cost $350,000.00 
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  Yes           If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  Yes 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

The failed slope,roadway and ditches will be re-established using fill and soil stabilization techniques. 

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

None 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   No  If yes, describe below. 

      

 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   No       If yes, describe below. 

      

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

None 

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?   No       If yes, attach the document of record, and provide 
point of contact information below. 

Name:         
 
Title:            
 
Agency:       
 
Phone:         

E-mail:           
 
Address:        
 
City, Zip:        



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

Monitoring of the roadway,ditch and slope repairs will be done by manual site inspection quarterly and/or after significant 
rainfall events. The inspection will be completed by Gila County Public Works Roadway Maintenance employees and if 
problems are observed then the Engineering Division will immediately be informed. If no problems are encountered then 
maintenance of the roadway will be performed by the Road crew via grading on a quarterly basis and/or after significant 
rainfall events. Maintenance of the Slope stability measures is not expected unles problems are observed via inspection. 

 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1 $1,750,000.00 

Title  Property Buyout 
Description 
Purchase all private property served by the roadway therefore negating the 
need for the roadway.Approximately 8 residences and 60 acres of land would 
need to be acquired. 

Alternative 2 $750,000.00 

Title  New Roadway Alignment 
Description 
A new roadway alignment of approximately 2,000 linear feet involving new right 
of way acquisition, engineering and construction would be needed. 

Alternative 3 $2,500,000.00 

Title  No Action 
Description 
The failed slope would continue to erode and the remaining one lane would be 
lost preventing any use of the road. Ultimately there would be no access to the 
properties north and east of the roadway causing abandonment or acquisition of 
them and/or the need for a new roadway alignment . 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

Regarding Alternative 1 above the proposed slope stabilization repairs the roadway without acquisition of significant 
amounts private property which would take the properties off of the tax rolls as well requiring purchase funding. Thus the 
slope stabilty repair it is much cheaper and reasonable than forced relocation. 
 
Regarding Alternative 2 above a new roadway would most likely require condemnation of right-of-way which is a lengthier 
process than making repairs within the existing right-of-way.A new alignment would also alter existing traffic patterns and 
redirect traffic into residential neighborhoods potentially creating increased traffic safety hazard levels within. The 
proposed slope stability solution is also cheaper. 
 
Regarding Alternative 3 above the potential for loss of life is much higher than by implementing the slope stability 
repair.The loss of access issue would still have to be adressed via either property acquisition or a new roadway alignment 
therefore the proposed slope stability solution not only improves public safety but is much cheaper. 



HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm                                       AAAppppppllliiicccaaatttiiiooonnn                                                                              FFFEEEMMMAAA---111666666000---
DDDRRR---AAAZZZ   

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  June 2008  
 

17

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 





 

©2010 Google - Map data ©2010 Google -

Page 1 of 1Google Maps

12/29/2010http://maps.google.com/maps?ll=33.426749,-110.8148&spn=0.01164,0.024719&t=h&z=...

jmalwin
Rectangle

jmalwin
Typewritten Text

jmalwin
Typewritten Text
Project Location









    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 or after  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Begins on date of FEMA award ltr & ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: Yes  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Matthew Bolinger 

Information

Request/Subject

FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach Project

Background Information

As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division

of Emergency Management. The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the

effects of natural hazards and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals. Funding

is provided to eligible applicants competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25%

Applicant. Applicants may use soft, or in-kind, costs to meet the 25% match.

Evaluation

Gila County Emergency Management proposes to initiate an education program that will provide

information to residents living in identified flood risk areas. The scope of this project will include

individual contact with residents living in the most flood prone areas of the County to provide

information about the National Flood Insurance Program and possible flood mitigation projects related to

their specific property. To accomplish this project we will submit an HMGP application to hire a Flood

Mitigation Analyst for a period of 18 months.  The standard application form is attached, however is not

complete due to its educational nature. 

Conclusion

The hire of personnel specifically dedicated to one-on-one public interface and outreach is anticipated to

generate an increase in public knowledge, awareness and personal investment on how to best prepare for

and reduce the risk of flood related damage on their property. 

An HMGP award for this position would provide 75% federal match of $52,218.75 over an

18-month period. The 25% county match would be $17,406.25.

Project funding is available from the date of a FEMA award letter. Projects must be completed within 3

years. Matching funds may not be expended prior to the date of a FEMA award letter.

Recommendation

The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends the Board of Supervisors authorize



The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends the Board of Supervisors authorize

Emergency Management to submit an application for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding

for the hire of a Flood Mitigation Analyst for total wages of $69,625.00 over an 18-month period.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to

submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach

Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

funding in the amount of $69,625 for the hire of a Flood Mitigation Analyst for an 18-month

period.  (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments

Link: HMGP Application



 

Application 
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111888888888   ---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 464-6349 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
Aug 2010 

Return form to: allen.howard@azdema.gov,  
Phone: (602) 464-6349  Fax: (602) 464-6538 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Matt Bolinger 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8764 
Phone Number 

 
 

mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Debra L. Williams 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8763 
Phone Number 

 
 

dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Local Government 
  
 
 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Project Address

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

      ° W        ° N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

                  
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community?          
 
 
County Code  000000  H1 

 
 

FIPS Code  007 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 
Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 
When was the plan approved? 

 
April 2006 

 
Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 

 
Multi-Jurisdictional 

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

      
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
Goal 2: Promote public understanding, support and 
involvement for hazard mitigation. 
Objective 2.A: Educate the public to increase awareness 
of hazards and opportunities for mitigation actions. 
Objective 2.C: Promote hazard mitigation in the business, 
residential and agricultural community. 
Objective 2.D: Monitor and publicize the effectiveness of 
mitigation actions implemented community wide. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

      
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

07/17/2008 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

NO     CRS Classification                
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        YES 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                No 

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde DeRoulhac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila Co Community Development 
Address:  608 E. Hwy 260 
City, State, Zip: Payson, AZ  85541 
Phone:  928-474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Flooding/Flash 
Flooding       

                                  

                                  

If other, specify: 
            

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

                  
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
This project will encompass Gila County as a whole with concentration on homes located in FEMA AE flood zones. 
Attached: FEMA FIRM Gila County, Arizona and Incorporated Areas. 
   



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People       

Buildings       

Infrastructure       

Land       

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

                        

                        

                        

                        

Total Events       Total Cost       

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

8

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.)       

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

      

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$69,625 0 $52,218.75  $17,406.25 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

General Funds Gila County Cash $17,406.25 07/01/2011 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total        

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 

      

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

10

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

An estimated 2/3 of Gila County residents live on or near a FEMA mapped floodplain.  Approximately 99% of those 
residents do not participate in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  Many do not think they qualify for or cannot 
purchase flood insurance.  Each year winter storms and monsoon rain causes erosion of washes, streams and drainages, 
sediment from runoff and floodwaters gets redistributed and water flow continuously finds new pathways. 
 
In order to effectively educate the public about the potentially serious consequences of natural water flow events, Gila 
County Emergency Management will hire 1 employee who will analyze structure locations in relation to FEMA mapped 
floodplains, determine what mitigation measures may be beneficial for individuals and communities and develop ways to 
disseminate that information either directly or through public information channels. 
 
The desired results of this type of specific analysis and information dissemination will be for county residents to 
understand the purpose of the NFIP, realize a significant increase in NFIP participants, especially in the highest risk flood 
zones, and to identify relevant flood mitigation projects for pre-disaster development. 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 21 months Performance of Scope of Work $69,625.00 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total       Total Estimated Cost       
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  NO            If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  N/A 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

N/A 

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

N/A 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   NO    If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   N/A       If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

      

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?   Yes      If yes, attach the document of record, and provide 
point of contact information below. 

Name:   Debra L. Williams 
 
Title:      Deputy Director 
 
Agency: Gila County Emergency Management 
 
Phone:   928-402-8763 

E-mail:     dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
 
Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
 
City, Zip:  Globe, AZ 85501 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1       

Title  No Action 
Description 
      

Alternative 2       

Title        
Description 
      

Alternative 3       

Title        
Description 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

      
 
      
 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

17

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 and after  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Begins on date of FEMA award ltr; ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: Yes  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Matthew Bolinger 

Information

Request/Subject

FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project

Background Information

As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division

of Emergency Management. The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the

effects of natural hazards and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals, which

can include private properties.

Funding is provided to eligible applicants competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25%

Applicant. Applicants may use soft or in-kind costs to meet the 25% match.

Evaluation

Mr. & Mrs. Roy Goodwin of Tonto Basin acquired a 24' x 60' manufactured home and placed the home

on their existing property.  The Goodwin property is currently located in FEMA Flood Zone AE-areas

subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual-chance flood event.  The home in question currently does not

meet FEMA or Gila County Floodplain management codes.  

To date, estimates for work needed to elevate the home to code compliance are approximately

$50,000.00.  The Goodwins have reported their sole income to be Social Security Disability and

payment to accomplish code compliance represents a severe financial burden.

The cost share for this project will be Federal 75% (estimated $37,500.00) and non-Federal 25%

(estimated $12,500.00). Due to the nature of this mitigation project, the owners, as beneficiaries of

federal mitigation funds, must provide the non-Federal 25% match requirement. Proof of Funding for the

match will be required prior to any recommendation to the Board of Supervisors to accept a mitigation

grant awarded as a result of this application. Due to the complexities of the application process the

homeowners could have several years to establish the matching funds prior an award.

Additionally, the property is subject to the following deed restrictions: Owners of a structure elevated

with funding from the HMGP must maintain an NFIP policy for the life of the structure; use of the

structure’s ground floor must be maintained as open space, and any ground flood structure must be NFIP

compliant. A sample model deed restriction is attached.



 

Conclusion

Emergency Management is develping an application on behalf of the Goodwins for assistance under the

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for several reasons. An HMGP is only available after a

federally declared disaster and the program can provide funds for homeowners who did not have a

National Flood Insurance Program policy in place at the time of the declared disaster.  There is no other

federal mitigation program that provides this opportunity.  The last federally declared disaster that

triggered a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program that included Gila County was in 2005.

Recommendation

The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize

Emergency Management to submit an application for FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation

Project funding in the amount of $50,000. 

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to

submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency

Management for Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $50,000.  (Matthew

Bolinger)

Attachments

Link: HMGP 1888 Fact Sheet

Link: AE Zone Firmette

Link: Standard Flood Hazard Determination

Link: Sample Deed Restriction

Link: Goodwin Elevation Project Grant Application



FACT SHEET 
HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
 
As a result of Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888, the State of Arizona will be administering the Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP).  Section 404 of Public Law 93-288 authorizes this program, as amended by the 
Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act.  It is one part of a package of federal disaster 
assistance made available to eligible applicants and is separate from the Public Assistance repair and 
restoration program. 
 
PURPOSE OF THE PROGRAM: 
HMGP is a program that funds projects that will reduce the effects of natural hazards and/or vulnerability to future 
disaster damage.  Unlike the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA’s) more familiar disaster assistance 
programs that help pay for the permanent repair and restoration of existing facilities, the HMGP goes beyond simply 
fixing the damage.  The HMGP will, within the limits of state and federal guidelines, help fund a wide range of new 
projects that reduce hazard vulnerability and the potential of damage from natural hazards. 
 
ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS: 
 
Entities listed below are eligible to apply for HMGP funding directly through the State (tribes apply through FEMA): 
 
State Government  Registered Nonprofit Organizations  Indian Tribes   
Local Governments  Publicly Owned Special Districts  
 
Priority is given to counties in the declared area. Individuals must be sponsored by a local government. 
(Applicants must be jurisdictions that are participating in, and in good standing with, the National Flood Insurance 
Program [NFIP] or located in an NFIP community.) 
 
FUNDING CONSTRAINTS: 
The grants will be made available to eligible applicants on a competitive basis and will be on the following cost share: 
75% - Federal; 25% - Applicant.  Applicants may use a soft match. The total amount for the HMGP is limited and 
based on the cost of the disaster.  All proposals will be evaluated against state and federal program criteria.  Some of 
the general criteria are listed below. 
 
PROJECT ELIGIBILITY: 
To be eligible to receive funds, projects must: 
• Be cost-effective and substantially reduce the risk of future damages caused by natural disasters. 
• Be the most practical, effective, and environmentally sound alternative after you have considered a range of 

options. 
• Solve a problem independently or be a part of a larger project that solves a problem.  You must be able to 

demonstrate the entire project will be completed. 
• Projects that merely identify or analyze hazards or problems are not eligible, such as flood mapping and studies. 
• A FEMA approved all hazards mitigation plan under the rules of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 
 
STATE MITIGATION GOALS: 
• Save Lives and Reduce Public Exposure to Risk. 
• Reduce or Prevent Damage to Public and Private Property. 
• Reduce Adverse Environmental or Natural Resource Impacts. 
• Reduce the Financial Impact on Public Agencies and Society. 
 
DUE DATES 
 Project Solicitations: June 30, 2010 Notice of Intent: November 1, 2010 Application:  January 1, 2011 
 Applications will be mailed out to projects that pass the initial eligibility criteria outlined on the Notice of Intent. 

 
Allen Howard-Stidham, MGP Manager 

AZ Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E. McDowell Rd,  Phoenix, AZ 85008-3495 
Phone: (602) 464-6349 Fax: (602) 464-6538 

Email: allen.howard@azdema.gov 

mailto:allen.howard@azdema.gov






Model Acknowledgement of Conditions For 
Mitigation of Property in a Special Flood 
Hazard Area With FEMA Grant Funds 
Property Owner _______________________________________________________ 

Street Address ________________________________________________________ 

City , State Zip Code _________________________________ 

Deed dated _________________________, Recorded ________________________ 

Tax map ________________, block ________________, parcel ________________ 

Base Flood Elevation at the site is ______________ feet (NGVD). 

Map Panel Number ______________________, effective date _________________ 

As a recipient of Federally-funded hazard mitigation assistance under the Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program, as authorized by 42 U.S.C. §5170c, the Property Owner accepts the following 
conditions: 

1. That the Property Owner has insured all structures that will not be demolished or relocated out 
of the SFHA for the above-mentioned property to an amount at least equal to the project cost or 
to the maximum limit of coverage made available with respect to the particular property, 
whichever is less, through the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), as authorized by 42 
U.S.C. §4001 et seq., as long as the Property Owner holds title to the property as required by 42 
U.S.C. §4012a. 

2. That the Property Owner will maintain all structures on the above-mentioned property in 
accordance with the flood plain management criteria set forth in Title 44 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 60.3 and City/County Ordinance as long as the Property Owner holds 
title to the property. These criteria include, but are not limited to, the following measures: 

i. Enclosed areas below the Base Flood Elevation will only be used for parking of vehicles, 
limited storage, or access to the building; 

ii. All interior walls and floors below the Base Flood Elevation will be unfinished or constructed 
of flood resistant materials; 

iii. No mechanical, electrical, or plumbing devices will be installed below the Base Flood 
Elevation; and 



iv. All enclosed areas below Base Flood Elevation must be equipped with vents permitting the 
automatic entry and exit of flood water. 

For a complete, detailed list of these criteria, see City/County Ordinance attached to this 
document. 

3. The above conditions are binding for the life of the property. To provide notice to subsequent 
purchasers of these conditions, the Property Owner agrees that the City/County will legally 
record with the county or appropriate jurisdiction’s land records a notice that includes the name 
of the current property owner (including book/page reference to record of current title, if readily 
available), a legal description of the property, and the following notice of flood insurance 
requirements: 

"This property has received Federal hazard mitigation assistance. Federal law requires that flood 
insurance coverage on this property must be maintained during the life of the property regardless 
of transfer of ownership of such property. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §5154a, failure to maintain 
flood insurance on this property may prohibit the owner from receiving Federal disaster 
assistance with respect to this property in the event of a flood disaster. The Property Owner is 
also required to maintain this property in accordance with the flood plain management criteria of 
Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 60.3 and City/County Ordinance." 

4. Failure to abide by the above conditions may prohibit the Property Owner and/or any 
subsequent purchasers from receiving Federal disaster assistance with respect to this property in 
the event of any future flood disasters. If the above conditions are not met, FEMA may recoup 
the amount of the grant award with respect to the subject property, and the Property Owner may 
be liable to repay such amounts. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the respective parties’ heirs, successors, personal 
representatives, and assignees. 

THE CITY/COUNTY OF ________________________________ 

A ________________ municipal corporation 

By: __________________________________________________ 

[Name, Title] 

of the City/County of _________________________ 

& 

_____________________________________________________ 

[Name of Property Owner] 



WITNESSED BY: 

_______________________________________________________ 

[Name of Witness] 

[SEAL] 

Notary Public 

 



 

Application 
   

HHHaaazzzaaarrrddd   MMMiiitttiiigggaaatttiiiooonnn   GGGrrraaannnttt   PPPrrrooogggrrraaammm   
   

FFFEEEMMMAAA---111888888888   ---DDDRRR---AAAZZZ  
 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008-3495 

(602) 464-6349 | 1-800-411-2336 | www.dem.azdema.gov 
Aug 2010 

Return form to: allen.howard@azdema.gov,  
Phone: (602) 464-6349  Fax: (602) 464-6538 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Elevation/Goodwin 
Project Name 

 
 
 

Gila County 
Sponsoring Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 

For State Use Only 
Date Received Application Type Application Number 

                                   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

2

Part I:  Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

Matt Bolinger 
Primary Contact 

 
 

Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8764 
Phone Number 

 
 

mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 

 
 
 
 

Debra L. Williams 
Secondary Contact 

 
 

Deputy Director 
Title 

 
 

Gila County Emergency Management 
Agency 

 
 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
Address 

 
 

Globe, Gila, AZ 85501 
City, County, State, Zip Code 

 
 

928-402-8763 
Phone Number 

 
 

dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 
E-mail 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

3

Part II:  Community Information 
 

 
 
 

Applicant Type:   Local Government
  
 
 

 
 

202 Ash St., Lot 77B 
Project Address

 
 

Roosevelt, Gila, AZ 85545 
City, County, State, Zip Code

 
 

33.623833 ° W  111.002194 ° N  
GPS Coordinates (Decimal Degrees)

 
Datum (coordinates must be in either WGS 84, NAD 
83, or NAD 27) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Is this a small and impoverished community?          
 
 
County Code  00000  H1 

 
 

FIPS Code  007 
 
 

US Congressional District  1 
 
 
 

State Legislative District(s)  5 
 
 
 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

4

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Mitigation Plan Information 
 

 
Does your state have a FEMA-approved multi-
hazard mitigation plan?   
 

Yes 
 
Is your agency and/or project location covered by a 
FEMA-approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? (An 
approved mitigation plan is required in order to receive 
funding through this grant program.) 
 

Yes 
 

What is the name of the plan? 
 

Gila County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

When was the plan approved? 
 

April 2006 
 

Is the plan a single or multi-jurisdictional plan? 
 

Multi-Jurisdictional 

 
 
If the plan is not yet approved, when do you expect 
approval? 
 

      
 
 

Use the space below to identify the goal(s), 
objective(s), and action(s) this project relates to in 
the plan. 
 
Goal 5: Reduce the potential level of damage and losses 
to people, existing and future critical 
facilities/infrastructure and other community assets due 
to floods. 
Objective 5. B Decrease vulnerability of community 
assets, especially critical facilities located in the 100 year 
flood plain. 
Objective 5.D Maintain compliance with the National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) requirements. 
Acton: mitigate risk of loss of life and property in the most 
flood prone zones. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

5

Part II:  Community Information, Continued 
 

Other Mitigation Efforts 
 

Is the project area in a Firewise Community? 
  

No 
 

If yes, provide the Firewise Community Number. 
 

      
 

Does the community/agency participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)? 
 

Yes 
 
             If so, when was the last Community  
             Assistance Visit (CAV)? (month/year) 
 

07/17/2008 
 
Does the community participate in the Community 
Rating System (CRS)? 
 

No      CRS Classification                
 
 

 
 
Has the community adopted building codes 
consistent with the International Building Code 
(IBC)?                                                                        Yes 
 
Has the community’s building codes been assessed 
on the Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS)?                                                No 

 
 

            If yes, what is the rating?                          
 
 
Use the space below to enter the contact information 
for the Floodplain Administrator for the community. 
 
Name:  Darde DeRoulhac 
Title:   Floodplain Administrator 
Agency:  Gila Co Community Development 
Address:  608 E. Hwy 260 
City, State, Zip: Payson, AZ  85541 
Phone:  928-474-1076 
E-mail:   dderoulhac@co.gila.az.us



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

6

Part III:  Hazard Information 
 

What hazard(s) will this project mitigate? Indicate the frequency and severity of each. 

Hazard Frequency Severity 

 Low Medium High Low Medium High 

Flooding/Flash 
Flooding       

                                  

                                  

If other, specify: 
            

 
For flood mitigation projects, enter the following information below: 

FIRM Panel Number Date of FIRM Flood Zone Designation 

04007C 1206D 12/04/2007 AE 
FIRM: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 
 
Describe the area where the mitigation project will be implemented (be sure to attach original maps, photos, 
and/or diagrams that clearly depict the project location). 
 
See attached: 
Standard Flood Hazard Determination document  
AE Zone Firmette for this property



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

7

Part III:  Hazard Information, Continued 
 

Risk Assessment 
Describe the values at risk by number and/or type, including dollar figures (if available). 

People 2 

Buildings 2 – Assessor 2010 Full Cash Value $51,674.00 

Infrastructure       

Land       

 
Historical Damages 

Date 
(month/year) Event Brief Damage Description Cost 

09/2003 Flash Flood Homeowner information pending       

01/2010 Flash Flood Homeowner information pending       

Total Events 2 Total Cost       

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

8

Part IV:  Financial 
 

Cost Effectiveness 
What is the benefit-cost ratio? 
(Attach the supporting BCA documentation.) 1.0 

What is the net project cost? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages Before Mitigation? 
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of Damages After Mitigation?  
(See BCA.)       

What is the dollar amount of potential future damage if the hazard is not 
mitigated? (Include any future costs not listed in the BCA.)       

Give details of any benefits not considered in the BCA (e.g., avoided future losses). 

Detailed report pending.  BCA estimated to be at or greater than 1.0.  

BCA: Benefit-Cost Analysis 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

9

Part IV:  Financial, Continued 
 

Funding 

Project Cost Annual Maintenance 
Cost 

Proposed Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

Proposed Non-Federal 
Share ($ and %) 

$50,000.00       $37,500.00 $12,500.00 

  75 % 25 % 
 

Matching Non-Federal Funds 
Match Share 

Source 
Source Agency 

Name Funding Type Amount Date Available 

Property Owner Goodwin Cash $12,500.00 Date of FEMA 
award 

                                         

                                                     

                                         

  Total        

Use the space below to add any pertinent details not accounted for above. 
The cost share for this project will be Federal 75% (est. $37,500.00) and applicant 25% (est. $12,500.00). Because this is 
a private property and the Goodwin’s will be directly gaining benefit from the project the homeowner will have to provide 
proof of funds by the date of a FEMA grant award and prior to acceptance of the award by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

10

 
Be sure to include a letter that indicates the date the funds are available to be committed. 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

11

Part V:  Project Information 
 

Scope of Work 
Describe the project, including what it entails and how it will address the problem being mitigated and how 
people and property at stake will be protected. (It may be useful to use a problem, tools, results format.) 

This property is located in a FEMA AE Flood Zone along the Tonto Creek.  During the past 15 years, changes to the path 
of flood waters has encroached on the property and now represent imminent danger to loss of life and property during 
annual winter storm events.  The property owners have expressed a desire to maintain ownership of their home and 
property, however the home must be elevated to become compliant with FEMA and Gila County Flood Plain management 
code.   
   
Elevation will be completed according to Gila County Building Codes and NFIP codes and standards so that the first floor 
elevation is one foot above the base flood elevation.  The final elevation and technique will be determined by a qualified 
engineer.   
 
Maintenance of this project will include deed restrictions regarding structure compliance with NFIP and mandatory NFIP 
policy coverage.   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

12

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Estimated Project Timeline and Budget 
Break down each action so that each separate cost can be documented. 

Contingency and administrative costs not allowed. 
Phase Duration Itemized Action List Cost 

1 3 months 
Elevation plan development 

      

2 6 months Surveys and permitting       

3 3 months Legal documents and fees       

4 6 months Temporary tenant relocation       

5 6 months Elevation       

6 1 month Inspection       

                        

                        

                        

                        

Admin 60 Days The Arizona Division of Emergency Management Mitigation Office reserves 
this time to perform the duties associated with administering the grant. $0.00 

Total 27 months Total Estimated Cost $50,000.00 
 

Be sure to attach all relevant estimates, studies, drawings, blueprints, and preliminary engineering data, 
including hydrologic information, footprint, and elevations.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

13

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions 
Does the project involve ground disturbance?  Yes           If yes, is it previously disturbed ground?  Yes 

Use the space below to describe any potential ground disturbance involved in this project. 

Ground disturbance will include construction of elevation structure.  Previous disturbance performed during structure 
installation. 

Use the space below to describe any other projects in or near the project area that are related to this project. 

One (1) HMGP project for open space acquisition is proposed on the property directly west of this property. 

Is this project being funded in any part by other federal funding sources (e.g., Public Assistance (PA), Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)?   NO  If yes, describe below. 

N/A 

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

14

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Additional Questions, Continued 

Is there a deed restriction or permanent conservation easement on the property at the project site that would 
prohibit federal disaster funding?   NO       If yes, describe below. 

A deed restriction will be added stating this project was improved with federal funds and must be NFIP insured. 
Pending flood plain compliance. 

List any Public Assistance (PA) project worksheets (PW) or disaster survey reports (DSR) that were completed at 
the project’s location during disasters in the last ten (10) years. 

 

 
Public Notice 

Are you required to give public notice for this project?  YES       If yes, attach the document of record, and 
provide point of contact information below.  Document of Record pending Gila County Board of Supervisors 
approval to submit application. 

Name:   Matt Bolinger 
 
Title:      Director 
 
Agency: Gila County Emergency Management 
 
Phone:   928-402-8764 

E-mail:     mbolinger@co.gila.az.us 
 
Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400 
 
City, Zip:  Globe, 85501 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

15

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Maintenance Plan 
Use the space below to describe the maintenance plan, making sure to address the following questions: 
• What type of maintenance will be necessary? 
• How often will the maintenance be necessary? 
• Who will be responsible for performing the maintenance? 

Acquisition and maintenance of NFIP policy for the life of the property.  County Flood Plain compliance inspection will 
occur annually.   

 



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

16

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Alternative Solutions 

Describe three (3) alternative solutions to the proposed mitigation project, including a cost 
estimate. One alternative may be “no action.” Alternatives must be reasonable and feasible from 
a technical and economic standpoint, using common sense. 

 Cost Estimate Solution 

Alternative 1 See Justification

Title  Acquisition 
Description 
  

Alternative 2 See Justification

Title  Relocation 
Description 
 

Alternative 3 See Justification

Title  No Action 
Description 
      



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

17

Part V:  Project Information, Continued 
 

Project Justification 

Use the space below to explain the reasoning behind choosing the proposed mitigation project 
over the alternative solutions listed on the previous page. 

The benefits of elevation for this property include compliance with FEMA and Gila County Floodplain Management Code 
by reducing the flood risk to life and property.  It also allows this homeowner to maintain a quality of life that could not be 
duplicated by relocation or due to financial restrictions.  



Hazard Mitigation Grant Program             Application                  FEMA-1880 -DR-AZ 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management                                                                       Mitigation Office                  March 2010  
 

18

Part VI:  Signatory and Attachments 
 

Signatures 
By signing below, I am agreeing that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application and 
supporting documents are true and correct, and that willful misrepresentation may cause the application to be 
denied. 

 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Signature of Applicant or Designee Date 
 

Attachments 
 

Check the box next to each article that has been included with this application: 
 

   Designation of Applicant Agent     Assurances (FF 2016)     Benefit-Cost Analysis 
 

   Environmental Questionnaire     Maps, Photos, Blueprints     Engineering/hydrology 
 

   Property Inventory Spreadsheet(s)    Funds Commitment Letter     DSRs, PWs 



       Item #:  3- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information

Request/Subject

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest Policy annual reminder.

Background Information

On December 13, 2005, the Board of Supervisors adopted policy number BOS-4-2005 - DISCLOSURE

OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  This policy applies to all public officers and employees of Gila

County.  This policy was adopted in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes 38-501 and

38-511.  Arizona law requires that any Gila County officer or employee who has, or whose relative has,

a substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase, service or decision of Gila County to make the

interest known in the County's official records; and to refrain from any participation in an official

capacity in the contract, sale, purchase, service or decision.  (A.R.S. § 38-501 et seq.). Employee

includes all persons employed on a full-time, part-time and contract basis.

The object of conflict of interest statutes is to remove or limit the possibility of personal influence which

might bear upon an official’s decision.

Evaluation

Section III-Elected Official or Departmental Responsibility states "Note:  Each year during the first

regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors will remind each elected official and division director to communicate this policy to their

employees."

Conclusion

It is appropriate at this time for the Chief Deputy Clerk to issue this reminder to all elected officials and

division heads to remind their employees of this countywide policy.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (BOS) recommends that this reminder be provided

during the first regularly scheduled BOS meeting of 2011 in accordance with Gila County policy number

BOS-4-2005..

Suggested Motion

Presentation of information related to Gila County Policy No. BOS-4-2005, Disclosure of Conflicts of

Interest, with a reminder to each elected official and division/department director to communicate said

policy to their employees.   (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments

Link: Policy BOS-4-2005



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA  
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS POLICY 
 
 

Subject:  
Policy for Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 

Policy Number Page 
BOS-4-2005 1 of 4 

 
 
I. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure compliance with A.R.S. § 38-501 and 38-511.  It 
is designed to preserve and promote the integrity of the workplace through individual 
departmental procedures.  This policy applies to all public officers and employees of Gila 
County. 

 
II. Conflicts of Interest 
 
 A.  General Requirements and Objective 
 

Arizona law requires that any Gila County officer or employee who has, or whose 
relative has, a substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase, service or decision 
of Gila County to make the interest known in the County’s official records; and to 
refrain from any participation in an official capacity in the contract, sale, purchase, 
service or decision.  (A.R.S. § 38-501 et seq.).  Employee includes all persons 
employed on a full-time, part-time and contract basis. 

 
The object of conflict of interest statutes is to remove or limit the possibility of 
personal influence which might bear upon an official’s decision. 

 
B.  Relative 

 
Relative includes spouse, child, child’s child, parents, grandparents, brother or sister 
of the whole or half blood and their spouses and the parent, brother, sister or child of 
a spouse.  A substantial interest of a relative is considered a substantial interest of the 
employee. 

 
C.  Substantial Interest 

 
A substantial interest is any interest that confers a pecuniary (monetary) or proprietary 
(ownership) interest, either direct or indirect, which is not a remote interest.  Any 
substantial interest of an employee or an employee’s relative must be disclosed by the 
employee, who must also refrain from participating in any manner in the relevant 
contract, purchase, or decision. 



 
 

Subject:  
Policy for Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 

Policy Number Page 
BOS-4-2005 2 of 4 

 
 

D.  Remote Interest Defined 
 

Remote interests do not need to be disclosed and do not prevent participation in an 
official capacity because they are not considered significant enough to influence a 
public decision maker.  Remote interests are: 

 
1. employee or employee’s relative is a non-salaried officer of a non-profit 

corporation 
 

2. employee or employee’s relative is a landlord or tenant of a contracting party 
 

3. employee or employee’s relative is an attorney of a contracting party 
 

4. employee or employee’s relative is a member of a non-profit cooperative 
marketing association 

 
5. employee or employee’s relative owns less than 3 percent of the shares for a for-

profit corporation, provided the total annual income from dividends, including the 
value of stock dividends, from the corporation does not exceed 5 percent of the 
total family income of the official or employee, and other payments from the 
corporation to the person do not exceed an additional 5 percent of his/her total 
family income 

 
6. employee or employee’s relative is reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses 

incurred in the performance of official business 
 

7. employee or employee’s relative is a recipient of public services generally 
available to the public 

 
8. employee or employee’s relative is a public officer or employee of another public 

agency unless the action of that agency would confer a direct economic benefit or 
detriment upon the employee or employee’s family 

 
9. employee or employee’s relative is a member of a trade, business, occupation or 

professional association or class of persons consisting of at least 10 members 
whose interest is no greater than the interest of any other members of that or 
similar groups 



 
 

Subject:  
Policy for Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 

Policy Number Page 
BOS-4-2005 3 of 4 

 
 

E. Responsibilities of Employees 
 

Any employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial interest in any contract, 
sale, purchase, service or decision of Gila County shall promptly do two things: 
 

1. make known that interest in the files maintained by the Chief Deputy Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors; and 

 
2. refrain from voting or participating in the employee’s official capacity in any 

manner in the contract, sale, purchase, service or decision. 
 
F. Appearance of Impropriety and the Gila County Standards of  
      Conduct Policy  

 
It is important to recognize that the appearance of a conflict of interest may also 
damage public trust and confidence in local government and may impair Gila 
County’s ability to conduct its legitimate operations.  For this reason, employees are 
required to scrutinize their actions to avoid situations where their official acts appear 
to affect their own or their relatives’ private or business interests.  All County 
employees must adhere to Gila County’s Merit System Rules and Policies – Rule 6 – 
Standards of Conduct. 

 
III. Elected Official or Departmental Responsibility  
   

Each elected official or department shall develop and implement a departmental 
procedure requiring employees to give notice of potential conflicts of interest.  The 
departmental procedure shall delineate the means of giving notice and department-
specific criteria or requirements.  The attached Notice of a Substantial Interest in a Gila 
County Contract, Sale, Purchase, Service, or Decision form shall be used.  (See 
Attachment A)   
 
Note:  Each year during the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors, the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors will remind each elected 
official and division director to communicate this policy to their employees. 



 
 

Subject:  
Policy for Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 

Policy Number Page 
BOS-4-2005 4 of 4 

 
 
IV. Violations 
 

Violations of A.R.S. §38-501 et. seq., this policy or departmental procedures shall be 
handled in accordance with the Gila County Merit System Rules and Policies.  
Employees who violate A.R.S. §38-501 et. seq., may also be subject to criminal 
prosecution and forfeiture of employment, as provided by law.   

 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Gila County Board of Supervisors on the 13th day of December 2005. 



Attachment A        

 
 

NOTICE OF A SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST IN A GILA COUNTY CONTRACT, 
SALE, PURCHASE, SERVICE, OR DECISION 

 
 

Date _____________________________________________ 
 
Department _______________________________________ 
 
Employee/Officer __________________________________ 
 
Title _____________________________________________ 
 
Pursuant to ARS § 38-503,_____________________________________________________________________, hereinafter 
Employee/officer hereby makes known a substantial interest in a contract, sale, purchase, service or decision of Gila County.  The 
substantial interest is described below.  
 
(Attach additional documentation if necessary.) 
 

□ Employee/officer has pecuniary or propriety interest in a County contract, sale, purchase, service or decision as follows: 
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

□ Employee/officer’s relative, _____________________, who is the employee/officer’s 
 
  
 ______child    ______grandparent 
 ______child’s spouse   ______spouse of grandparent 
 ______grandchild    ______spouse 
 ______spouse of grandchild   ______brother-in-law or sister-in-law 
 ______parent    ______mother-in-law or father-in-law 
 ______spouse of parent   ______brother or sister or half-brother or half-sister 
 ______child of a spouse    
 
 
 has a pecuniary or propriety interest in a County contract, sale, purchase, service or decision 
 as follows: 
 
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Signed the _________day of __________20__                 Received by: 
 
________________________________________  _______________________________________________ 
Employee/Officer     Name and Title 
 
      
      __________________________________________ 
      Signature   Date 
 

Dated:  December 13, 2005/Revised January 11, 2006 



 

Attachment A Instructions 

 
 

 
 INSTRUCTIONS FOR NOTICE OF A SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST IN A GILA COUNTY 
  CONTRACT, SALE, PURCHASE, SERVICE, OR DECISION FORM 
 
 
 
Employees interested in filing a notice of substantial interest in a contract, sale, purchase, service or decision of 
Gila County should be asked the following three questions: 
 
(1) Will the decision have an impact, either positive or negative, on an interest of the County employee or 

relative? 
 
(2) Is the interest pecuniary (monetary) or proprietary (ownership)?  Philosophical or political interest or 

beliefs, even though affected by a decision do not bring the conflict of interest into play. 
  

(3) Is the interest other than one statutorily defined as a remote interest?  
  

Statutory remote interests are: 
 

  ► Non-salaried officer of a non-profit corporation 
  ► Landlord or tenant of a contracting party 
  ► Attorney of a contracting party 
  ► Member of a non-profit cooperative marketing association 
  ► Insignificant stock ownership 
  ► Reimbursement of expenses incurred on duty  
  ► Recipient of public services available to all  
  ► Employee or relative of another public agency unless there is a direct benefit on  
    the employee or relative 
  ► Class interest where there are more than 10 members of the class and all  
    members have equal interest  
 

Refer to Clerk of the Board Policy – DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST for a more complete 
description of these remote interests. 

 
If the answer to all three questions is yes then the employee must complete the Notice of a Substantial 
Interest Form.  
 
The form is to be filed in the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors’ conflict of interest file and 
maintained as a public record. 
 

Dated:  December 13, 2005 

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Dec. 18, 2010, to Dec. 17, 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 Chips and ABC for the Copper Region to extend the

contract for one year.

Background Information

Effective August 17, 2009 Gila County and CEMEX entered into a contract whereby CEMEX provides

3/8" chips and ABC to various locations in the Copper Region of Gila County.  The contract expires on

December 17, 2010.  Amendment No. 1 will extend that date to December 17, 2011.

Evaluation

Per Section 2.2 of Contract 050709-1, the County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the

contract for chips and ABC for two additional one-year periods.  This would be the first of the two

years.  All terms, conditions and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply

during the renewal period.

Conclusion

The Consolidated Roads Department requires chips and ABC in order to maintain roads in Gila County. 

Extending Contract 050709-1 with CEMEX would provide these products for the Copper Region for one

more year.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the extension of contract

050709-1 chips and ABC Copper Region to December 17, 2011.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 between Gila

County and CEMEX to extend the Contract, per Section 2.2, from the period December 18, 2010, to

December 17, 2011; and to provide for the purchase of 3/8" chips and ABC, all of which are used in the

Copper Region of Gila County.

Attachments

Link: Amendment #1 050709-1

Link: Contract 050709-1













































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 1-5-2011 to 1-4-2012 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 6500.505/01-2010 with Sheldon

Miller.

Background Information

Effective January 5, 2010, Gila County and Sheldon Miller entered into a contract whereby Mr. Miller

agreed to assist the County concerning coordination of various highway projects in the State of Arizona

with the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) and all eligible cities and towns. The contract

expires January 5, 2011.  Amendment No. 1 will extend that date to January 4, 2012.

Evaluation

Per Article I, Acitivity 5, of the Contract, the County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the

contract period with mutual agreement of both parties for two more additional one year periods.  All

terms, conditions and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the

renewal period.

Conclusion

With extension approval of the contract the Consultant will assist the County by providing consulting

services for various highway projects in Arizona and with the Arizona Department of Transportation

(ADOT) for a period of one more year.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to

Contract 6500.505/01-2010 Sheldon Miller Professional Consulting Services to extend the contract for a

one year period.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting Services

Contract No. 6500.505/01-2010 between Gila County and Sheldon Miller to extend the Contract,

per Article I, Activity 5, from the period January 5, 2011, to January 4, 2012, to provide consulting

services for various highway projects in Arizona and with the Arizona Department of Transportation. 

Attachments

Link: Amendment #1



Link: Contract 6500.505/01-2010

















    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Jan 12, 2011 to Jan 11, 2012 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R Automated Vending Machine Services with Swire

Coca-Cola.

Background Information

Effective January 12, 2010, Gila County and Swire Coca-Cola entered into a contract whereby Swire

Coca-Cola agreed to provide automated vending machine services to Gila County facilites in Globe and

Payson.  The contract expires on January 12, 2011.  Amendment No. 1 will extend the contract through

January 11, 2012.

Evaluation

Per Article III of Contract No. 100109-01R, the contract may be renewed by mutual agreement of both

parties for four additional one-year periods.  This would be the first of those four year periods.  All terms,

conditions, and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal

period.

Conclusion

The continuation of this contract will allow the vendor to provide automated vending machine service to

several County facilities located in Globe and Payson.

Recommendation

The Gila County Facilities and Land Managment Department recommends the Board of Supervisors

approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R to extend automated vending machine services

to Gila County facilities for one additional year.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R between

Gila County and Swire Coca-Cola to extend the Contract, per Article III, from January 12, 2011, to

January 11, 2012, to provide automated vending machine services to Gila County facilities.

Attachments

Link: Amendment #1 Contract 100109-01R

Link: Contract 100109-01R











































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Nov 3, 2009 to Nov 3, 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D for New Bridge Over Tonto Creek Engineering Services

to move forward with Phase II of the project and add new Scope of Services, Design and Cost Summary.

Background Information

Effective November 3, 2009, Gila County and Kimley-Horn and Associates entered into a contract

whereby Kimley-Horn agreed to provide Professional Engineering Services for the Tonto Creek Bridge

Project.  The project consisted of two Phases.  Phase I of the project is nearing completion and the

County has authorized the Engineer to move forward with Phase II per Article IX of the contract.

Evaluation

Per Article IX, Phase II , scope and fee may be renegotiated and additional or deleted work, as agreed

upon and authorized by the County, will be performed per a mutually agreed upon scope and fee between

the County and Engineer.  Engineer will proceed only as individual tasks are authorized by the County

Public Works Director.  Federal funds, which are the primary source of funding the project, will allow

geotechnical investigations to proceed prior to issuance of the Enviornmental Analysis (EA), but will not

allow the other tasks to move forward until the EA is approved.  The attached scope of Work and Cost

Proposal Summary by reference are made a part of the amendment as to the same extent as set forth in

full.

Conclusion

The original cost of Phase II had an authorized budget of $747,309.  After completion of Phase I it was

necessary to modify the design and scope of work resulting in a cost increase to complete Phase II.  Per

the existing Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), the

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) will fund 94% ($895,842) and the County will fund 5.7%

($54,150).  There is sufficient FHWA funding available in the existing agreement for Phase II and the

County also has sufficient funds available for its share.  

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D will allow for an increase of $202,683 with a Phase II

completed authorized budget of $949,992.

Changes in project from original assumptions:

Kimley-Horn: $527,309 to $682,730

• Tonto Creek Bridge went from 1620-ft to 1980-ft length

• Modified Store (the Recommended Alternative)includes re-profiling of Old Hwy 188 and



reconstruction of Tonto National Forest Reno Admin site driveway

• Added a necessary drainage structure (Bridge) at Oak Creek for transsportation system connectivity

• Added roadway improvements to Cline Blvd (near Oak Creek)for transsportation system connectivity

• Added drainage analysis and plans for Oak Creek for transsportation system connectivity

AMEC: $200,000 to $227,262

• Added 5 additional borings at Oak Creek

Survey (AZTEC): $10,000 to $30,000

• Added full right-of-way plans/mapping

• Added pot holing for utilities along Old Hwy 188

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to

Contract No. SS71803D with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Professional Engineering Services of

Phase II on the New Bridge over Tonto Creek.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D between

Gila County and Kimely-Horn and Associates in the amount of $949,992 to approve Phase II scope,

design, and cost proposal per Article IX of the contract for Professional Engineering Services on the

New Bridge Over Tonto Creek project for the period November 3, 2009, through November 3, 2011.

Attachments

Link: Amendment #1 to Contract SS71803D

Link: Original Contract # SS71803D



































































































































































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Health Programs Coordinator

Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Division: Health Department

Fiscal Year: 01-01-11 through 12-31-11  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 01-01-11 through 12-31-11 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 with Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information

Intergovenmental Agreement contract #HG861265 Amendment 3 with Arizona Department of Health Services is

an amendment to extend current Teen Pregnancy Prevention program.  Gila County has provided these services

since 2008.  The amendment will extend the services from January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 in the

amount of 135,003.00.

Evaluation

Gila County ranks in the top three for teen pregnancy in the State of Arizona.  Without this funding provided by

the Arizona Department of Helath Services we would be unable to address this issue.  Gila County currently has

one program manager, one accounting clerk and two community health assistant seniors working on this program. 

With the funding the Division of Health and Emergency Services are able to provide a multi-facited program.

Conclusion

This funding is neccessary to continue to provide the teen pregnancy prevention services.

Recommendation

Approval of the Intergovenmental Agreement contract #HG861265 Amendment 3 with Arizona Department of

Health Services from 01-01-11 through 12-31-11 in the amount of 135,003.00.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 between Gila County and the

Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $135,003 to extend the Teen Pregnancy Prevention

program for the period of January 1, 2011, 

through December 31, 2011.

Attachments

Link: Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. HG861265

Link: Original Grant Contract No. HG861265



 1 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No:   HG861265 Amendment No. 3 Procurement Specialist 
Christine Ruth   

Teen Pregnancy Prevention 

Amendment Date: November 30, 2010 
 
It is mutually agreed that the Intergovernmental Agreement referenced is amended, effective upon final signature unless 
specified otherwise, as follows:  
 
1.  Pursuant to Page Twelve (12), Special Terms and Conditions, Provision Two (2), Contract  Extension (4) Years, the  
     Contract is hereby extended through December 31, 2011. 
 
2.  Effective January 1, 2011, Replace the Scope of Work, pages Fourteen (14) through Sixteen (16) of the Agreement and Provision 

Number Three (3), Page Two (2) of Amendment Two (2)  with the Scope of Work, Pages Two (2) through Five (5) of this Amendment 
Three (3). 

    
3. Effective January 1, 2011, replace Price Sheet in Amendment One (1), Page Three (3), with revised Price Sheet in Amendment Three 

(3), Page Six (6).  The total remains the same with the following line item changes: 
 

a. Personnel increased $460.68 due to PT-Program Manager and 2 FTE Health Workers. 
b. ERE increase $227.94 due to salary increase. 
c. Travel decreased $688.62 due to budget never being fully used so funds transferred to salary and ERE 
d. Operating Expense increase $2,500.00 for previously uncovered costs 
e. Other Expense decreased $2,500.00 to move funds to Operating Expense. 

All other provisions shall remain unchanged. 
 

 
 
 
Gila County Health Department 

 CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE 
In accordance with A.R.S. 35-391.06 and A.R.S. 35-393.06, the Contractor 
hereby certifies that the Contractor does not have scrutinized business 
operations in Sudan or Iran. 
 

 

 

Contractor Name 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Contractor Authorized Signature 

 
Michael A. Pastor 

Address 

Globe,                                      AZ                   85501 
 
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

City                                                       State                             Zip Title 

CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney 
has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper 
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of 
the State of Arizona.  
 
 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be effective the 
date indicated. The Public Agency is hereby cautioned not to commence 
any billable work or provide any material, service or construction under 
this IGA until the IGA has been executed by an authorized ADHS 
signatory. 
State of Arizona 

 

Signed this ______ day of _______________________ 2009 

 

Signature                                                          Date 

Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy 
 

Printed Name Procurement Officer 

Attorney General Contract No. PIGA2011000344, which is an 
Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney General, who 
has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and 
authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.   
 
 

  
Under House Bill 2011, § A.R.S. 11-952 was amended to 
remove the requirement that Intergovernmental Agreements 
be filed with the Secretary of State. 

Signature                                                                             Date 
Assistant Attorney General 
 
Printed Name: Ronald E. Johnson 



 2 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No:   HG861265 Amendment No. 3 Procurement Specialist 
Christine Ruth   

 
1.  Background 

 
Arizona continues to have high teen pregnancy and teen birth rates even though there have been significant 
decreases since 1998, following the national trend. In 2004, Arizona had the 5th highest teen birth rate in the United 
States for females aged fifteen (15) to nineteen (19).  (Source:  National Vital Statistics Reports, Vol. 55, 2006). The 
Arizona rate was 60.1 per 1,000 females aged fifteen (15) to nineteen (19) compared to the United States rate of 41.1 
per 1,000 for 2004. In 2006, the birth rate among all females fifteen (15) to nineteen (19) years old was 59.6 per 1,000 
females for Arizona.  The highest rates were in Yuma (71.8) Mohave (69.1) and Gila (66.0) counties. In 2006, 40 
teens became pregnant every day in Arizona. (Source: Arizona Vital Statistics).  

 
Teens pregnant with their second or later pregnancy have represented approximately 20%-30% of all teen 
pregnancies for the last nine (9) years. In 2005 approximately 61% of teen births in Arizona were to Latinos. Further, 
the substantial reduction in teen pregnancy and birth rates in recent years can be attributed, in part, to shifts in the 
sexual behavior of teen boys.  Also recent research from the National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy indicates 
that parents have the most influence on their teens’ decisions about sexual behavior. Most teens agree that it would 
be much easier for them to postpone sexual activity and avoid teen pregnancy if they were able to have more open, 
honest conversations about sexual issues with their parents. Additional health status statistics can be obtained by 
accessing the ADHS website at www.azdhs.gov/plan/index.htm.  
 
In an effort to reduce teen pregnancy in the State, ADHS has proposed the following goals: 

 
 Goals 1: Annually reduce the number of pregnancies by 1.5 per 1,000 teenage girls age fifteen (15) to nineteen (19). 
 
 Goals 2: Annually reduce the number of repeat pregnancies by .5 per 1000 teen girls age fifteen (15) to nineteen (19). 
 
2.  Objective 
 
 Provide funding to County Health Departments to implement programs that: 
 

2.1 Reduce second pregnancies among teens; 
 
2.2 Develop and implement culturally sensitive programs to reduce teen pregnancy in the Latino community; 
 
2.3 Develop and implement programs that involve boys and young men in teen pregnancy prevention; 

 
2.4 Develop and implement programs to provide education and training to parents/caregivers on effective 

communication regarding sexual health issues and other risk behaviors; and/or 
 

 2.5. Develop and implement programs addressing youth in care. 
 
3. Scope of Work 
 

Teen pregnancy prevention programs and programs designed to reduce the incidence of Sexually Transmitted 
Infections (STI’s) among youth must employ research based strategies that have been demonstrated to be effective 
or those that have been shown to have promise in reducing the incidence of STI among youth and reducing the rate 
of teen pregnancy.  These programs should be consistent with findings on programs to reduce teen pregnancy such 
as those stated in Emerging Answers, by Douglas Kirby, 2001, and the characteristics of effective programs as stated 
in a working paper entitled “The Impact of Sex and HIV Education Programs of Youth in Developing and Developed 
Countries”, by Douglas Kirby, 2005. Programs shall also incorporate a youth development approach.  Refer to 
www.teenpregnancy.org for information on Emerging Answers, a copy of the working paper may be downloaded from 
www.fhi.org/en/youth/youthnet/publications/youthresearchworkingpapers.   

http://www.azdhs.gov/plan/index.htm
http://www.teenpregnancy.org/
http://www.fhi.org/en/youth/youthnet/publications/youthresearchworkingpapers


 3 

 
Programs designed to provide education to parents/caregivers shall have demonstrated to be effective or been 
shown to have promise and be consistent with research findings on strategies to involve parents in education 
programs.  Programs as provided by the National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy and the Annie B. Casey 
Foundation are recommended.    

 
3.1 Parent education should include the following topic areas: 
 

3.1.1 Development and practical application of parent/child communication skills;  
 

3.1.2  Risk and protective factors;  
 

 3.1.3.  Consequences of unhealthy risk behaviors;  
 

3.1.4.  Benefits of healthy behaviors;  
 

3.1.5.  Information on prevention of teen pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections;  
 

3.1.6. Growth and development of children and adolescents; and  
 

3.1.7.  Exploration and discussion of parental views regarding sex, love and healthy relationships with 
others. 

 
3.2  All programs shall be medically and scientifically accurate. 

. 
 

3.3  Target Populations include: 
 

3.3.1. Male and female high risk youth age twelve (12) to eighteen (18); 
 
3.3.2 Youth in Care; 
 
3.3.3. Parents/caregivers 
 
3.3.4. Teens at risk of a second birth 
 
3.3.5. Latinos; and 
 
3.3.6. Boys and young men. 

 
Counties may utilize methods that are appropriate for their demographics and particular characteristics of their 
community to achieve program standards and outcomes.  Counties will have the flexibility to implement the program 
in a manner that “fits” their neighborhood or community.  The program shall assure that differences in culture, family 
structure, personal and family values, and resources are respected among communities throughout the county. 
 
Curricula and other educational materials provided in a school based setting  must follow Arizona Department of 
Education (ADE) guidelines regarding sex education and be recommended for use by ADE and approved by ADHS 
(see www.ade.state.az.us/health-safety for a list of recommended curricula).   
 
The County shall be required to conduct a process and a short term outcome evaluation of the project. At a minimum, 
a post survey shall be required to measure skills, knowledge, attitudes, values, intentions and satisfaction with the 
project and project educators.  An example of a pre/post survey is provided. 

 
4. Tasks 
 

4.1 Provide a detailed description of the project that the County shall implement; 
 

http://www.ade.state.az.us/health-safety


 4 

4.2. Submit an outline of selected strategy (s) and an Implementation Plan to ADHS for approval. Use of the BDI 
Logic Model is recommended. http://www.etr.org/recapp/bdilogicmodel20030924.pdf, the State of Arizona 
logic model is an approved alternative; 

 
4.3 Develop and submit a proposed budget for the upcoming year; 

 
4.4 Develop an evaluation plan that shall include goals and objectives for the project including numbers of 

youth/parents to be served over a one year period, include expected outcomes; 
 

4.5 Implement approved strategies; and 
 

4.6  Analyze program evaluation data. 
 
5. Reference Documents 
 

5.1 Healthy Arizona 2010: Collaborating For a Healthier Future (http://azdhs.gov/phs/healthyaz2010/); 
 
5.2 National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy, What Works   
 http://www.teenpregnancy.org/resources/reading/pdf/what_works.pdg; 

 
5.3 National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy, Science Says: Adolescent Boys’ Use of Health   
 Services http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/Science_Says_26_boys_health.pdf; 

 
5.4 National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy, Science Says, Effective and Promising Teen 
 Pregnancy Prevention Programs for Latino Youth  
 http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/Science_Says_32_latino_programs.pdf;  
 
5.5 National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy, Science Says, Characteristics of Effective Curricula Based 

Programs http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/sciencesaysEffectiveCurricula.pdf; 
 
5.6 National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy, Science Says. Another Chance: Preventing   
 Additional Births to Teen Mothers http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/AnotherChance.pdf; 
 
5.7 Regulations on sexuality education: www.ade.state.az.us/health-safety; and    
 
5.8 Health status data: www.azdhs.gov/plan/menu/for/births.htm.  
 

6. State Provided Items 
 
Attached hereto and incorporated herein: 

 
6.1 ADHS Implementation Plan (Forms E-G); 
 

 6.2 Data Sheets (Attachment B); 
 
 6.3 Attendance sheets (Attachment C); 
 
 6.4 Monthly Report (Attachment D); and 
 
 6.5 Survey Forms (Forms E-G). 
 
7. Deliverables  
 
 The Contractor shall submit to ADHS: 
 

7.1  A detailed description of the overall project, due within sixty (60) days of contract award; 
 
7.2  An outline of selected strategies including an Implementation plan, due within sixty (60) days of Contract 

award; 
 

http://www.etr.org/recapp/bdilogicmodel20030924.pdf
http://azdhs.gov/phs/healthyaz2010/
http://www.teenpregnancy.org/resources/reading/pdf/what_works.pdg
http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/Science_Says_26_boys_health.pdf
http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/Science_Says_32_latino_programs.pdf
http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/sciencesaysEffectiveCurricula.pdf
http://www.teenpregnancy.org/works/pdf/AnotherChance.pdf
http://www.ade.state.az.us/health-safety
http://www.azdhs.gov/plan/menu/for/births.htm


 5 

7.3  An evaluation plan, due within sixty (60) days of Contract award; 
 
7.4  Evaluation results, due within forty-five (45) days of the end of Contract year; 
 
7.5  A proposed budget for the next year, due by the first day of the 8th month of the Contract year; 
 
7.6  A monthly progress report to include how you implemented approved strategy(s), due the 15th of the month 

following service provision; 
 
7.7 Participant data sheets, Form A, B and attendance sheets due the 15th of the following month class/session 

ended; and 
 
7.8  Contractors Expenditure Reports, due by the 15th of the month following expenditure. The CER can be found 

on http://azdhs.gov/hsd/primary_care.htm.  
 
7.9  Attendance in quarterly ADHS Teen Pregnancy Prevention Contractor meetings.  
 

 
8. Notices, Correspondence and Reports 
 
 Notices, correspondence, reports and invoices from the contractor to ADHS shall be sent to: 
 
 Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program Manager 
 Bureau of Women’s and Children’s Health 
 150 N. 18th Avenue, Suite 320 
 Phoenix, Arizona  85007-3242 
 (602) -364-1400 
 
 Notices, Correspondence, Reports from the ADHS to the Contractor shall be sent to: 
 
 Chief Health Officer 
 Gila County Public Health Department 

1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
Phone: 928-425-3231 
Fax: 928-425-0794 
Email: dfletcher@co.gila.az.us 

http://azdhs.gov/hsd/primary_care.htm


 6 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No:   HG861265 Amendment No. 3 Procurement Specialist 
Christine Ruth   

 
PRICE SHEET 

CY 2011 

 
Cost Reimbursement Line Item Budget 

ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT 

Personnel $ 76,975.16 

ERE $ 24,712.57 

Professional & Outside Services $ 250.00 

Travel Expense $ 7,416.38 

Out-of-State Travel Expense $ 10.00 

Operating Expense $ 13,365.89 

Other $ 0 

Indirect (if authorized) $ 12,273.00 

  

TOTAL $ 135,003.00 

 

 
With prior written approval from the Program manager, the Contractor is authorized to transfer up to a maximum of Ten 
Percent (10%) of the total budget amount between line items. Transfers of funds are only allowed between funded line 
items. Transfers exceeding Ten Percent (10%) or to a non-funded line item shall require a Contract Amendment. 

 





































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Department: Clerk of the Superior Court

Fiscal Year: July 2010 - June 2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: October 1, 2010 - September 30, 2015 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE11117001 between Gila County and the Arizona

Department of Economic Security to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner for the period

October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2015.

Background Information

The Clerk of the Superior Court contracts with the Arizona Department of

Economic Security for partial reimbursement of the Family Law Commissioner, partial court

staff, and other indirect costs. 

Evaluation

The Intergovernmental Agreement contract allows the Clerk of the Superior Court to file

for reimbursement of 66% of all monies disbursed through the Family Law Commissioner program.  The

State also awards the indirect costs on salaries which make up for the 66% reimbursement and

this results in the County earning revenue.

Conclusion

The State mandates, Statute 25.5-10, that the Clerk of the Superior Court shall have Child Support

Enforcement.

Recommendation

The Clerk of the Superior Court recommends approval of this Intergovernmental Agreement in order to

continue the services to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner. 

Suggested Motion

Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE111170001 between Gila County and the Arizona

Department of Economic Security to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner for the period

October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2015. 

Attachments

Link: IGA FOR FAMILY LAW































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Submitted For: Linda Rodriguez, Administrative Manager

Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, Emergency Management

Department: County Manager

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Approval of a request for a waiver of fees by Lani Hall to use the Fairground’s Exhibit Hall or other

areas at the Fairgrounds for 2011 4-H activities.

Background Information

The U of A Cooperative Extension Office has, for many years, provided a variety of 4-H Programs to

the youth of Southern Gila County.  In the past, the Board of Supervisors has authorized this waiver of

fees for all 4-H activities because there is no funding available to pay facility rental fees for the 4-H

organization to use the rodeo arena, barn, and exhibit hall, and other Fairground areas.  There is no

conflict with scheduled events and arrangements for any additional  or canceled events will be

coordinated through Linda Rodriguez, Administrative Manager, in order to avoid double booking of

events.  Insurance Certificate has been submitted for all 4-H activities up through March 1, 2014.

Evaluation

The use of the Fairground’s facility will give the Southern Gila County 4-H Program a place for the

youth of our community to emerge as leaders through hands-on learning and adult mentorship.

Conclusion

This waiver of fees would greatly assist the U of A Cooperative Extension Office financially so that the

youth could continue to receive 4-H Programs services in Southern Gila County.

Recommendation

The recommendation is to approve the waiver of fees for the use of the Fairground for all 4-H activities

in 2011.

Suggested Motion

Approval of a request for a waiver of fees submitted by Lani Hall, on behalf of the U of A Gila County

Cooperative Extension Office - 4-H Program, for the use of the Fairground’s Exhibit Hall  and/or other

areas at the Fairgrounds for all Gila County 4-H activities in 2011.

Attachments

Link: 4-H Application

Link: 4-H Waiver Request

Link: 4-H Event Schedule













Schedule of events for Southern Gila County 4‐H 2011 
 
 

 

Event                     Date 
 
Banquet:  Fairgrounds 5:30pm                January 7th 
 
Community Club Meetings: Tuesdays, every other month, 6:00pm Fairgrounds      February 15th 
                      April 19th 
                      June 14th 
                      October 4th 
 
Rabbit Show: Contact Jenni Steveson              March 12th 

 
 
Ear Tagging for Steers: Fair Livestock Committee 4‐7pm Fairgrounds        April 26th 
   
 
Horse Show Globe: Contact Judy Mann or Shelley Arthur          June 18th 
 
Demonstration and Public Speaking Day:    Mandatory  Fairgrounds        July 16th 
 
Ear Tagging for Swine, Lamb and Goats: Mandatory Fairgrounds         August 3rd 
 
Judging Day and Prefair:  Fairgrounds              August 13th 
 

Fair Weigh‐in for all livestock projects: 4‐7pm             September 21st 
 

Southern Gila County Fair:                September 21st – 25th  
 
Lamb Showmanship Clinics: Contact Lynn Heimer            July 27th 
                      August 3rd 
                      August 10th 
                      August 24th 
                      August 31st   
 

Steer Practices: Contact Janet Cline              May 4th  
– Every Wednesday till fair 
 
Steer Practices:  Contact Regina Wagner              May 7th  
– Every other Saturday till further notice 
                       
 



    Item #:  4- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: BOS Meeting Minutes for July 6, 2010

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy

Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Clerk of

the Board of Supervisors

Information

Subject

BOS Meeting Minutes for July 6, 2010.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the July 6, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments

Link: BOS Meeting Minutes for 07/06/10



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  July 6, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk, Marian 
Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County 
Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Regular Session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Steve Stratton led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Dan Morton of the First Christian Church in 
Globe delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Presentation by Sheriff’s Office employee and Army National 
Guard Sergeant First Class Rodney Cronk to Sheriff John Armer of award 
by the National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and 
Reserve as “Patriotic Employer” for the support of Sergeant Cronk during 
his recent deployment to the Middle East.   
 
Tom Melcher, Chief Deputy Sheriff, requested that Sergeant First Class Rodney 
Cronk and Sheriff Armer come forward.  Sergeant First Class Cronk stated that 
he had nominated Sheriff Armer for the “Employer Support Award” through the 
military.  He then read aloud the award and stated laughingly that he had also 
given Sheriff Armer a DVD about managing your military employees effectively.  
Sheriff Armer stated, “This is not Sergeant Cronk’s first deployment to 
Afghanistan.  We’re glad to have him back.  The fact that he has achieved the 
rank that he has is a testament to his abilities and the ability that Gila County 
has to offer its citizens.”  Chairman Pastor congratulated Sergeant Cronk on 
his successful deployment and return.  He stated, “It’s always good to see our 
soldiers come home.”  Vice-Chairman Martin also thanked Sergeant Cronk for 
his service.  



2 

 
Item 3 - Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter Award to Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office Detective Emmett Dickison.   
 
Daisy Flores, County Attorney, presented Sheriff’s Office Detective Emmett 
Dickison with the Officer of the Quarter award and gave a brief summary of his 
background and the reasons he was nominated for the award.  Detective 
Emmett thanked the Board for the award and gave a few brief comments.  
Each Board member thanked Detective Dickison for his dedicated service to 
the community. 
 
Item 4 – Recognition of 3 employees for June’s “Spotlight on Employees” 
Program.   
 
Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Personnel Director, presented gift cards as 
recognition awards to 3 employees for June’s “Spotlight on Employees” 
program.  They were as follows:  Anthony Puskaric of the Health and 
Community Services Division; David Kell of the Sheriff’s Office; and Lee 
Alexander also of the Sheriff’s Office.  Each Board member thanked the 
employees for their dedicated work.   
 
Item 5 – Motion to convene as the Gila County Flood Control District 
Board of Directors.  Public Hearing – Information/Discussion/Action to 
approve an Amendment to the Gila County Floodplain Management 
Ordinance. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board convened as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.  
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director, provided a written 
summary to the Board of the changes made in the Amendment to the Gila 
County Floodplain Management Ordinance.  He stated that the Gila County 
Floodplain Department participates with the other counties in the National 
Flood Insurance program and because it is administered by FEMA (Federal 
Emergency Management Agency), a federal agency, FEMA also audits and 
oversees the County’s Floodplain Management program and Ordinance.  Some 
of the changes being proposed are based on FEMA recommendations while 
others are just improvements in the terminology.  He emphasized that the 
importance of some of these changes are because it will make it easier for the 
citizens to get variances and approvals to do work in the floodplain and in the 
floodway on some of the disposal systems.  Mr. Sanders stated that 45 days 
after approval by the Board, these changes will become law and part of the 
Ordinance.  Mr. Sanders noted that Darde de Roulhac, Chief Engineer of the 
Flood Control District, was present to answer any specific questions of the 
Board and he felt Mr. de Roulhac had done a very good job in putting this 
together and updating the Ordinance.  Chairman Pastor opened the public 
hearing and called for public comments; none were received.  Chairman Pastor 



3 

called on Mr. de Roulhac to provide any additional comments.  Mr. de Roulhac 
stated that in making these changes there obviously needs to be some 
compliance with these rules that are designed to protect the health, safety and 
lives of our citizens.  He stated, “We are trying to make it less burdensome to 
the extent possible and some are less expensive as far as compliance and with 
some of the requirements for engineering, etc.”  Some of the changes are just 
correcting grammatical errors and some clarify the intent to eliminate 
confusion.  He cited 4 of the significant changes, which included an increase in 
the square footage for accessory structures before requiring a variance; 
specifically clarified the definition of waste disposal systems in a floodway; 
establishment of a flood elevation when one is not provided on the map without 
having to pay for a lot of engineering; and a provision to bring together the area 
of jurisdiction for flooding and for erosion control from creek banks.  These 
recommendations have been reviewed and approved by both FEMA and the 
State of Arizona and will make it less expensive to comply.  He stated, “We are 
also pleased to provide some alternative solutions to the citizens of Gila 
County.  We believe it still accomplishes the goal of protecting the life and 
safety of our citizens.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that the ADWR (Arizona 
Department of Water Resources) had been talking about making its 
requirements less confusing and less expensive and inquired if ADWR had 
been asking the County to make these changes.  Mr. de Roulhac replied, “To 
the contrary.  ADWR has been pushing provisions in the Ordinance that would 
in some cases be harder to comply with and more costly.”  He stated that there 
were confrontations between ADWR and County staff in which County staff 
pointed out the requirements that were not a part of the code of federal 
regulations or state statutes and provided recommendations that would make 
it easier to comply and still stay within the law.  He stated that some of the 
problems that the County has to deal with are when the requirements are too 
difficult to comply, so people don’t comply and then it becomes a non-
compliant structure that puts people at risk.  The people then blow off a lot of 
the requirements and it becomes an enforcement issue, so the County is 
attempting to make it easier for people to follow the regulations and protect life 
and property while not being too burdensome.  Vice-Chairman Martin thanked 
Mr. de Roulhac for trying to simplify what ADWR is trying to make more 
complex.  Discussion ensued about the differences in costs for septic systems 
versus the new alternative wastewater treatment systems in floodway areas 
where state regulations prohibit septic systems.  Discussion was also held on 
the changes allowing for some Christopher Creek area residents to be able to 
construct wastewater treatment systems and if the area is not in a FEMA map 
floodway, then the regulations against septic systems would not apply.   Upon 
inquiry by Chairman Pastor as to how often FEMA updates its maps, Mr. de 
Roulhac replied that the original maps were done in the early 1980s and 
became effective in 1985.  A re-study was done of the Globe-Miami areas and 
Tonto Basin in 2004 and went into effect with the 2007 map updates that were 
done for the entire County.  In all other areas the maps from the 1980s are still 
being used.  The maps have been updated to digital format; however, the 



4 

studies they are based on still need updating badly in most of the County.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that perhaps it’s time for the Board to take a 
hard look at this in a work session to better understand the issues because it 
is frustrating to her that there is such disparity across the County on what can 
and cannot be done.  Chairman Pastor stated that a work session could be set 
up for the near future.  Supervisor Dawson agreed that a work session was 
necessary because she believes that what the County is trying to do with all 
these regulations is to protect the citizens, but in the meantime there are a lot 
of unintentional consequences of these ordinances.  Chairman Pastor then 
closed the public hearing and entertained a motion.   Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously 
tabled approval of the Amendment to the Gila County Floodplain Management 
Ordinance to a future work session or series of work sessions.   Chairman 
Pastor requested that Don McDaniel, County Manager, set a date for the work 
session.  The Board thanked Mr. de Roulhac for his work on this Ordinance. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   
 
Item 6 - Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt 
Resolution No. 10-07-01 to revoke a non-exclusive license for cable 
communication services issued to Eagle West Communications, Inc.   
 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, stated that in 2001, the Board of 
Supervisors adopted a resolution establishing guidelines and regulations for 
cable franchise licenses.  Section 11 of the resolution provides procedures to 
terminate a license prior to expiration and part of the process is to have a 
public hearing and notice the hearing in the newspaper in the service area and 
also notice the owners by certified mail, which was done.  Notice was published 
in the Payson Roundup as well as the Arizona Silver Belt newspapers.  Ms. 
Sheppard stated that the reason she was requesting revocation of this license 
was because franchise fees had not been paid back to the period of July 
through December 2008.  In April 2009, Ms. Sheppard received an inquiry 
from a customer because he didn’t have cable service.  She began making some 
phone calls and learned that on February 25, 2009, the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation had raided the offices of Eagle West Communications, Inc. and at 
that time the business was shut down.  Service was never resumed to the 
customers in Gila County, but at present Eagle West still provides services to 
customers in Mesa.  Ms. Sheppard advised that the reason it has taken her so 
long to bring this before the Board is because she was assured by the President 
and Vice-President that they would pay the past due franchise fees, which 
amount to $250.  Ms. Sheppard has received no other public comments and 
requested that the Board adopt this resolution to terminate the license 
immediately.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and called for 
comments from the public; none were received.  Chairman Pastor closed the 
public hearing and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 



5 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 10-7-01 revoking a non-exclusive license for cable 
communication services issued to Eagle West Communications, Inc.  (A copy 
of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 
 
Item 7 - Information/Discussion/Action regarding Gila County Planning 
and Zoning Case No. LURPP 2010 Amendment; submittal of the “draft’ for 
the Land Use Resource Policy Plan and proposed timelines, and to 
authorize the Planning and Zoning Commission approval to release this 
document for public input.   
 
Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director, stated that a year 
ago the Planning and Zoning Commission was directed to review the 1997 Land 
Use Resource Policy Plan (LURPP) and look for ways to improve it.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission appointed a 4-member subcommittee that 
consisted of Jay Spehar, Don Ascoli, Ron Christensen and Mickie Nye and 
several meetings were held to review and revise the LURPP.  On June 17, 2010, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the draft in a rather lengthy 
discussion and has made a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors to 
release the draft for public input.  Mr. Gould emphasized that at this time he 
was not requesting that the Board adopt the draft, but rather just approve the 
release of the draft for public input during the public review process.  He stated 
that several changes had been made and that the purpose was to facilitate 
better communications between the County and the federal and state land 
managers in regard to how their policies and actions were going to affect Gila 
County residents.  He stated that this particular draft has a “much stronger 
tone in it and we actually mandate that the federal government coordinate with 
the County and there is a huge difference between the words ‘cooperate’ and 
‘coordinate’.”  He stated that the County is requesting to be placed at the table 
in order to have input in all discussions prior to decisions being made at the 
state and federal levels.  Mr. Gould stated that this document is meant to tell 
all of the land managers that these are the County’s policies and issues that 
are critically important and these are the actions that the County would like to 
be seeing.  Mr. Gould stated that he would not go through all of the policies at 
this time; however, when they began the study there were 11 policies that have 
now been increased to 14.  Two of the policies that will probably get the most 
attention, comments and suggestions, are new and they are about water rights 
and the PILT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) program.  Another policy that was 
added includes environmentally sensitive sites.  He clarified that although this 
draft refers to appendices, there were none at the present time.  He requested 
that the LURPP draft be taken to a meeting with Chairman Pastor at Tonto 
Basin this evening for discussion with the residents; however, if the Board did 
not wish to release the draft at this time, then they would just discuss the 
document and take comments at the meeting without the draft.  Mr. Gould 
advised that a citizens’ participation process had been established and 4 public 



6 

hearings will be held.  The first one will be tonight in Tonto Basin, the second 
one next week in Globe, followed by a third meeting in Payson and a final 
meeting on July 31, 2010, in Young - all to solicit public input.  After the 
completion of those public meetings, a staff report will be prepared and he will 
ensure that every comment is recorded for the Board.  The Planning and 
Zoning (P & Z) Commission is planning to hold its hearing and make its 
recommendations to the Board the latter part of August and the completed 
draft will then be presented to the Board on September 21, 2010, for the Board 
to approve, deny or take no action.  Supervisor Dawson thanked Mr. Gould and 
the committee members as she knows this was a lot of work and she will be 
interested to hear about the public comments.  She stated, “I think this is an 
excellent piece of work.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she, too, wanted to 
thank the committee for their work; however, she did not want to go public 
with the LURPP draft before the Board could discuss it with the P & Z 
Commission at a work session and also because she had not had the time to 
completely review it.  She would like the Board to discuss what it wants to do 
with the LURPP and determine whether this would be the Board’s approach.  
She wants to determine whether or not the language needs to be stronger and 
also ensure that everything has been reviewed.  Mr. Gould stated that he 
thought the committee did “a yeoman’s job on putting this together…I would 
hope that we could release it, however, I understand Vice-Chairman Martin’s 
concerns.”  Supervisor Dawson stated she had gone through the report and she 
did not see a problem in letting the public see the draft and get their 
comments.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I believe this is a good working 
instrument and the Board is not adopting it at this time, but just allowing the 
draft to be released in order to get some input from the public and that would 
also allow time for the Board to review it as well.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated 
that she would like the Board to work on it first before it is released and be 
able to understand it and obtain input from the P & Z Commission in a work 
session.  Chairman Pastor stated that this document was presented to the 
Board over a year ago and the P & Z Commission was instructed by the Board 
to review it and come up with some improvements.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated that it was her understanding that the draft would first come to the 
Board before it was released to the public.  Chairman Pastor stated that he felt 
it was just being launched publicly to get a feel from community comments and 
not for the Board to make any final decisions at this time.  He stated, “I don’t 
have a problem presenting it to the public and making sure we emphasize that 
it is just a draft document, not the final one.”  Chairman Pastor stated that he 
also felt that after the Board had finalized the document that an additional 
public hearing should be held to allow the public to review the final document.  
Mr. Gould stated that what was being discussed was not the normal process.  
He stated that the normal process for a plan like this is to solicit input and 
then put the draft together; however, because the committee members had 
spent so much time and work on drafting this plan, they got ahead of the 
game.  He stated that when the committee completed the document, they 
realized that specifically with Policies 13 and 15, the PILT payments and the 



7 

water rights and the tone—the tone had so drastically changed that he 
recommended it first be brought to the Board to ensure that the Board was 
familiar with the document and understood it before it was released for public 
comment.  Normally, the public participation would have been completed 
before this time.  He emphasized that much is going on in the western states 
right now with public land rights and the fact that the federal and state 
governments tend to make rules and regulations without consulting the local 
governments.  He noted that the recent House Bill 1398 “mandated that we get 
ourselves situated at the table and prior to any decisions being made,” 
however, whatever the Board decided would be fine.  Supervisor Dawson 
reiterated her desire to know what the public’s input would be to see if there 
were any better ideas because 5 years ago the public had a lot of other ideas.  
Mr. McDaniel stated that Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, had 
just pointed out to him that the draft is now a public document and as such 
will be available to the people as they go to the public forums regardless.  He 
felt there was still adequate time in the process to allow the P & Z Commission 
and ultimately the Board to make any changes as the process goes forward and 
he believes these public forums have been set up in a good way to get public 
input.  Supervisor Dawson made the motion that the Board approve Gila 
County Planning and Zoning Case No. LURPP 2010 Amendment; submittal of 
the “draft’ for the Land Use Resource Policy Plan and proposed timelines, and 
authorize the Planning and Zoning Commission approval to release this 
document for public input.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she would 
second the motion only if the Board also scheduled a work session to review 
the LURPP draft.  She stated, “I feel like we have abdicated some of our 
responsibility in this and I really don’t like that.”  Supervisor Dawson asked if 
Vice-Chairman Martin would like to amend the motion.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
seconded the motion with the stipulation that at the same time the Board 
schedule a work session for review of the LURPP.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Chairman Pastor inquired of Mr. Gould whether the meeting to 
be held at Tonto Basin this evening had been publicly noticed.  Mr. Gould 
advised that a public meeting notice was published in the newspaper for the 
meeting, which will be held tonight at 6:00 p.m. at the Tonto Basin elementary 
school.   
 
Item 8 - Motion to convene as the Gila County Library District Board of        
Directors.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Library Services 
and Technology Act (LSTA) Grant in the amount of $40,000 to enhance 
the electronic resource portal (web interface) for the Library District and 
the eight public libraries, and authorize the Chairman to sign the 
Certifications and Assurances for the Arizona State Library, Archives and 
Public Records.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.  Jacque 
Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that the Library District 



8 

had received an LSTA Grant for full funding in the amount of $40,000, which 
will allow a year for the development of a new web interface portal for the 
Library District and the 8 public libraries that want to do so.  Three of the 
libraries already have a website or web page and 2 of those are happy with 
their present site. Ongoing discussions will be held to see if the libraries want 
to migrate to this new website, which will have a content management system 
for managing their own content.  Training will be given on providing better 
information electronically to the residents.  She stated that the big goal is to 
have Gila County residents come to the Gila County Library website for their 
electronic resource information in the same way that they walk into the 
libraries for their print needs.  She stated that a complete electronic reference 
collection was bought and paid for in part by the residents of Gila County and 
is available online; however, it has been difficult in teaching people how to 
access it.  This will make it a simpler process.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously accepted a 
Technology Act (LSTA) Grant in the amount of $40,000 to enhance the 
electronic resource portal (web interface) for the Library District and the eight 
public libraries, and authorized the Chairman to sign the Certifications and 
Assurances for the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   
 
Item 9 – Information/Discussion/Action to review and approve a proposed 
letter to provide official public comments from the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors on the proposed action regarding the Tonto National Forest 
“Environmental Assessment for Mazatzal Substation Project.” 
 
Ms. Griffin stated that this process relates back to the LURPP because if the 
LURPP is adopted with some changes, the Board will be included much earlier 
in the process for items such as this request for public comment on the draft 
Mazatzal environmental assessment for a proposed substation to provide 
electricity for central Gila County.  When this came to the County, the whole 
process of scoping it and providing alternatives and planning was already 
completed.  Now it is in the process of the environmental assessment part and 
this does by no means mean it is going to happen.  It’s just a place in the 
process, and as part of the environmental assessment, the U.S. Forest Service 
is asking for public comment.  The proposal is the U.S. Forest Service’s portion 
of approval for Arizona Public Service to put in a substation north of Deer 
Creek and south of Rye Creek where the two places come together and east of 
Beeline Highway 87.  Arizona Public Service is proposing to construct a new 
substation and establish approximately 1 mile of transmission lines off of the 
large power lines that go through Gila County.  An online copy of the 
environmental assessment is posted on the Tonto National Forest website.  
Comments may be mailed to the address as noted.  She stated that this is an 
offering for the Board to officially adopt its public comments.  Ms. Griffin 



9 

advised that a draft letter was included in the Board’s packet and Chairman 
Pastor has indicated that the letter was suitable to him as the property is 
located in his supervisorial district.  She stated that the draft letter can be 
changed; however, the original is available for signature if approved by the 
Board.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that although this is in Chairman 
Pastor’s supervisorial district, part of what it’s going to do is make a loop so 
that Payson is not on the end of the line and Arizona Public Service has had 
this in process for a long time.  Chairman Pastor stated that the new Forest 
Ranger at Tonto Basin called and provided him with this information and the 
link personally, which he thought was interesting that they actually called to 
let us know to be looking for it.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the proposed letter 
to provide official public comments from the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
on the proposed action regarding the Tonto National Forest “Environmental 
Assessment for Mazatzal Substation Project.” 
 
Item 10 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
Chairman Pastor stated that a request was made to move Consent Agenda item 
10L--Approval of personnel reports/actions for the weeks of June 29, 2010, 
and July 6, 2010—to the regular agenda for discussion.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously moved Consent Agenda Item L to the regular agenda.  Chairman 
Pastor stated that the portion of item L for discussion would be the June 29, 
2010, personnel report.  He reminded the Board that it would be discussing 
personnel issues and rules and regulations should be abided by, and he also 
cautioned Board members not to mention any employee names and requested 
that Mr. Chambers make sure the Board stayed within the guidelines.  
Supervisor Dawson stated, “As we approach adopting a budget and have 
submitted a proposal that would include a tax hike, I had expressed at the time 
my concerns over if we’ve done everything in our power to make certain that 
this is the only alternative that we have.  I missed when this Board approved 
posting a position that is listed on the June 29, 2010, personnel report.  An 
elected official requested that a position be filled that I am not certain is 
necessary and as we face the fact that we’re going to be asking for more 
taxpayer dollars and we’ve asked for every department head to carefully 
evaluate their budgets and we’ve mentioned the fact that almost every 
department has had openings and chose that there are ways they could help 
the County by not filling certain positions.  I appreciate the people who have 
taken that move.  I understand that elected officials can make their requests 
and do.  I wish I had carefully caught this before.  I didn’t mean to catch any 
elected official off guard, but I don’t feel that position should be filled.  I’ve 
talked about our responsibilities as elected officials to carefully consider every 
person who is an employee of this County.  I will be voting no on the June 29, 
2010, personnel agenda.”  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Chairman Pastor, the Board approved Consent Agenda item 10L for both the 



10 

June 29, 2010, and the July 6, 2010, personnel reports by a 2-1 vote.  
Supervisor Dawson voted “nay.”   
 
A. Authorization of the Chairman’s signature on a Maintenance 

Agreement between Thomas Reprographics, Inc. and Gila County for 
the Océ Plotwave 300 Configuration System (serial # 330200694) for 
the period September 1, 2010, to August 31, 2011. 
 

B. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. HG060003) between the Arizona Department of Health 
Services/Bureau of Tobacco and Chronic Disease and Gila County 
Division of Health and Community Services/Tobacco-Free 
Environments Program. 
 

C. Approval for the renewal of existing Victim Assistance Grant for FY 
2010-2011 through the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC 
#VA-11-020); approval to continue with the 50% grant match paid from 
the General Fund which is assigned to 50% Salary and ERE for a Victim 
Services Advocate; and requested signature of the Chairman on the 
Grant Agreement. 
 

D. Approval of a Professional Services Agreement between the Gila County  
Division of Health and Community Services and Christine McCown, 
R.N. for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, to provide 
home visit to those NICU children being provided service through the 
Community Health Nursing Grant.     
 

E. Approval of a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual 
Agreement between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce 
Energy Office and Gila County Community Action/Housing Services 
(Commerce #G043-10-02) for LIHEAP weatherization in the amount of 
$153,304 of which funding must be encumbered no later than June 30, 
2011. 
 

F. Approval of Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual 
Agreement between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce 
Energy Office and Gila County Community Action/Housing Services 
(Commerce #G044-10-02) for the Southwest Gas Corporation Low-
Income Conservation Program in the amount of $28,434 of which 
funding must be encumbered no later than June 30, 2011. 
 

G. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract #DE111073-
001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila 
County Division of Health and Community Services in the amount of 
$595,831 to provide services through Community Action/Housing 



11 

Services.  Said funding must be encumbered no later than June 30, 
2011. 
 

H. Approval for renewal of a Grant Application/Contract Award (Contract 
Award #FTF-RC004-10-0129-01/Renewal Award #FTF-RC004-10-0129-
01-Y2) between the Early Childhood Development and Health Board 
(First Things First) and the Gila County Division of Health and 
Community Services in the amount of $56,650 for the period July 1, 
2010, through June 30, 2011. 
 

I. Approval to ratify the Chairman’s signature on Amendment No. 8 to 
Contract No. E534551 between the Arizona Department of Economic 
Security and Gila County Division of Health and Community Services 
(GEST Program) to extend the term of the Contract for the period July 
1, 2010, through December 31, 2010. 
 

J. Approval of the April 27, 2010, May 4, 2010, May 18, 2010, May 24, 
2010 (Special Meeting), May 25, 2010 (Special Meeting), and May 25, 
2010, BOS meeting minutes. 
 

K. Approval of the May 2010 monthly departmental activity reports 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court, Payson Regional Justice 
of of the Peace and Recorder.  (These reports are available for viewing 
in the Clerk of the Board Department.) 
 

L. Approval of personnel reports/actions for the weeks of June 29, 2010, 
and July 6, 2010.  
 
June 29, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Kenneth Clark – Public Works Consolidated Roads – Temporary Road 

Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 06/17/10 – Public Works Fund – 
DOH 06/04/07 – Will not be renewing CDL 

2. John Franklin – Globe Regional JP Court – Justice of the Peace Pro 
Tempore – 12/14/07 - General Fund – DOH 07/01/07 – Resigned 

3. Shannon Mostashari - Health and Community Services – Environmental 
Health Specialist – 06/30/10 – Proposition 201 Smoke Free AZ Act Fund 
– DOH 09/04/07 – Lack of funding 

Hires to County Service: 
4. Ray Tarango – Globe Constable #321 – Deputy Constable – 07/06/10 - 

General Fund – Replacing Dawn VanHassel  
5. Linda Shirley – Globe Regional JP Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate 

– 07/01/10 - General Fund 
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
6. Christopher Powell – BOS – Temporary Laborer – 06/28/10- Constituent 

Services II Fund 



12 

7. Zachary Salcido - BOS – Temporary Laborer – 06/28/10- Constituent 
Services II Fund 

Departmental Transfers: 
8. Kevin Moran – Public Works/Automotive Equipment Maintenance – From 

Automotive Service Worker – To Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 
06/21/10 – Public Works Fund 

Position Review: 
9. Shane Stuler - Health and Community Services – Environmental Health 

Manager – 07/01/10 – From Per Capita Grant Fund – To Proposition 201 
Smoke Free AZ Act Grant 

10. Catherine Levario - Health and Community Services – Community 
 Services Worker Senior – 06/21/10 – From GEST Fund – To WIA Fund 
 

July 6, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Lex Sheppard – Public Works Engineering – Construction Project 

Manager – 03/05/10 – Public Works Fund – DOH 12/12/05 - Found 
other employment  

2. Joshua Wampole – BOS – Temporary Laborer – 06/28/10 – Constituent 
Services II Fund – DOH 06/07/10 – Job Abandonment  

Temporary Hires to County Service: 
3. Joy Riddle – County Attorney – Temporary Attorney – 07/06/10 – 

General Fund  
End Probationary Period: 
4. Kendall Rhyne – Probation – Chief Probation Officer – 07/05/10 – 90% 

General Fund – 10% State Aid Enhancement Fund 
Position Review: 
5. Carolyn Borcherding – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior 

– 07/05/10 – Cost of Prosecution Reimbursement Fund – From 35 hours 
-  To 30 hours 

Request Permission to Post: 
6. Board of Supervisors – Executive Administrative Assistant – Vacated by 

Linda Rodriguez 
 

M. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 
29, 2010, and July 6, 2010.  (separate handout) 

 
June 29, 2010 
 
$2,105,903.49 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 
228169 through 228423. 

 
July 6, 2010 
 



13 

$660,980.43 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 228424 
through 228562.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Items 10A-10M, with the 
exception of 10L, which was discussed and approved as a regular agenda item 
above. 
 
Item 11 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 12 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
31.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented.   
 
Each Board member and Mr. McDaniel presented information on current 
events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:32 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



    Item #:  4- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: Clerk of the Superior Court's Report for the Month of October 2010

Submitted For: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Information

Subject

Clerk of Court Monthly Report for October 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court.

Attachments

Link: Clerk of Court Monthly Report Oct. 2010



















    Item #:  4- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for October 2010

Submitted For: Kimberly Rust,

Constable Clerk

Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,

Constable - Globe

Information

Subject

Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for October 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe Regional

Constable.

Attachments

Link: Globe Constable Report 10/10



































    Item #:  4- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010

Submitted For: Kimberly Rust,

Constable Clerk

Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,

Constable - Globe

Information

Subject

Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe Regional

Constable

Attachments

Link: Globe Regional Constable Report for 11/10

































    Item #:  4- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010

Submitted For: Samuel Brewer, Payson Regional Constable

Submitted By: Cheryle Wood, Constable - Payson

Information

Subject

Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson Regional

Constable.

Attachments

Link: Payson Regional Constable November 2010 Monthly Report



























































    Item #:  4- M     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: Recorder's Office Monthly Report for November 2010

Submitted For: Dawn Caldera, Chief

Deputy Recorder

Submitted By: Dawn Caldera,

Recorder's Office

Information

Subject

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for November 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments

Link: Recorder's November 2010 Monthly Report























    Item #:  4- N     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period:
Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Reports for October &

November 2010

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr

Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Superior Court

Information

Subject

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Reports for October and November 2010.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the October and November 2010 monthly departmental activity reports submitted by the

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.

Attachments

Link: Globe Regional JP October 2010 Monthly Report

Link: Globe Regional JP November 2010 Monthly Report











    Item #:  4- O     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 01/04/2011  

Reporting Period: Personnel Report for the weeks of 12/21/10, 12/28/10 and 01/04/11

Submitted For: Erica Raymond,

Personnel Assistant

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy

County Manager

Information

Subject

Personnel Report for the weeks of 12/21/10, 12/28/10 and 01/04/11

Suggested Motion

Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 21, 2010, December 28, 2010, and January 4,

2011.

Attachments

Link: 12/21/10 Personnel Agenda

Link: 12/28/10 Personnel Agenda

Link: 01/04/10 Personnel Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
DECEMBER 21, 2010 

REVISED 
 

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Linda Shirley – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 
12/10/10 – General Fund – DOH 04/13/09 – Resigned 

2. Anthony M. Waddell – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 12/10/10 – General Fund – DOH 05/24/10 - Resigned 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Denise M. Barajas – Board of Supervisors – Laborer – 12/20/10 – Constituent 
Services II Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Gina Seymour – Board of Supervisors – Supervisor’s Staff Specialist – 12/06/10 – 
General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Gaylynn Quintana – County Attorney – From Legal Secretary – To Legal 
Secretary Senior – 11/06/10 – Deferred Prosecution Program Fund – 
Reclassification 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

6. Kathleen Lord Joerns – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 12/06/10 – 
Change in fund code 

7. Lynn Dee Trimble – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 12/06/10 –  
Change in fund code 

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

8. Brian Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff SGT. LEBSF – 12/06/10 – 
BLESF Fund – Change in fund code and position control number 

9. David Hornung – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff SGT. – 12/06/10 – General 
Fund – Change in fund code and position control number 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
DECEMBER 28, 2010 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Charles Bowling – Health Department – Administrative Clerk – 12/16/10 – TB 
and Immunization Funds – DOH 10/27/08 – Resigned 

2. Cynthia Bach – Public Fiduciary  – Fiduciary Services Specialist I – 01/14/11 – 
General Fund – DOH 08/10/09 – Resigned 

3. Jerry Farr – Public Works – Construction Projects Manager – 12/31/10 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 09/09/03 - Retirement 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

4. Renee Omstead – Health and Emergency Services Department – Accounting 
Clerk – 12/06/10 – Various Funds – Replacing Chris Phillips 

5. Jerry Farr – Public Works – Construction Projects Manager – 01/03/11 – Public 
Works Fund – returning to position on a part time basis 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Courtney Canez – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 12/27/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Debra Holmes – County Attorney – Legal Secretary Senior – 11/22/10 – General 
Fund 

8. Kevin Moran – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 12/20/10 – 
Public Works Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

9. Ramai Alvarez – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior – 12/20/10 – 
General Fund – Change in hours from 30 to 40 per week. 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

10. Finance – Accounts Clerk Specialist – New Position 
11. Health Services – Influenza Surveillance Specialist – New Position 
12. Health Services – Influenza Planner – New Position 
13. Health Services – Influenza Trainer – New Position 
14. Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Patricia 

Trevillian 
 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

15. Gabriel Lagunas – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/31/10 – General 
Fund – Resigned 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
DECEMBER 28, 2010 
PAGE 2 
 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

16. Johnie Brake – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/03/11 – General Fund – 
Replaces Jennifer Stout 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

17. Nancy Neumann – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 01/01/11 – General 
Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

18. Amber Warden – From Finance – To Sheriff’s Office – From Payroll Specialist – 
To Accounting Clerk Specialist – 12/27/10 – General Fund 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 4, 2011 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Robert Knight – Public Fiduciary – Temporary Quality Assurance – 12/24/10 – 
General Fund – DOH 10/11/10 – Termination 

2. Manuel Rodriguez – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 12/13/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/25/10 – Temporary employment 

3. Richard Ruiz – Board of Supervisors - Temporary Laborer – 12/13/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/25/10 – Temporary employment 

4. Billy Tarango – Board of Supervisors - Temporary Laborer – 12/13/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/25/10 – Temporary employment 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

5. Melvina Takala-Griffin – Community Services – 01/10/11 – WIA Fund – 
Replacing Judy Gonzales 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Robert Gamboa – County Attorney – Temporary Administration Clerk – 01/03/11 
– General Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Chris Phillips - Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant 
Senior – 12/20/10 – Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund 

 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Oath of Office for Newly Elected or Reelected Officials
	Item2.A._Att1_Oaths of Office 2011
	Item2.B.  2010 Refurbished Bike Program Presentation
	Item3.A.  Library Service Agreement with the San Carlos Public Library
	Item3.A._Att1_Library Service Agreement with San Carlos Public Library for 2010-2011
	Item3.B.  Gila County Library District Resource Access and Attainment Policy
	Item3.B._Att1_Gila County Library District Resource Access and Attainment Policy
	Item3.C.  Project Selection for Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects application for 2011
	Item3.C._Att1_Potential Projects for RAC
	Item3.C._Att2_Secure Rural Schools Program 2008-2011 Overview
	Item3.D.  Resolution Nos. 11-01-01 & 11-01-02 & Application for Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Programs to Arizona Department of Housing
	Item3.D._Att1_Application for Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Programs
	Item3.D._Att2_Resolution No. 11-01-01 to submit OOHR application
	Item3.D._Att3_Resolution No. 11-01-02 to adopt OOHR guidelines
	Item3.E.  Vacation of a Portion of Christopher Creek Loop
	Item3.E._Att1_Petition to Vacate a Roadway
	Item3.E._Att2_Map
	Item3.E._Att3_Legal Description
	Item3.F.  Purchase of Property from Jack-in-the-Box, Inc. in Globe to re-align Monroe Street at Courthouse
	Item3.F._Att1_Appraisal
	Item3.F._Att2_Letter of Intent to Purchase
	Item3.F._Att3_Record of Survey
	Item3.F._Att4_Legal Desc of Partial Parcel
	Item3.F._Att5_Legal Desc of Entire Partial
	Item3.G.  2011 Annual Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO1103-1200-010 with USDA, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest, for road maintenance
	Item3.G._Att1_FS Agreement
	Item3.H.  FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-January 2010 Buy-Out Project
	Item3.H._Att1_Project Estimates
	Item3.H._Att2_Project Solicitation
	Item3.H._Att3_Grant Application for parcel 201-06-156F
	Item3.H._Att4_Grant Application for parcel 204-03-051B
	Item3.H._Att5_Grant Application for parcel 201-14-018D
	Item3.H._Att6_Grant Application for parcel 201-10-090
	Item3.I.  FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project
	Item3.I._Att1_HMGP Application
	Item3.I._Att2_Funding Availability
	Item3.I._Att3_Location Map
	Item3.I._Att4_Picture1
	Item3.I._Att5_Picture2
	Item3.I._Att6_Picture3
	Item3.J.  FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach Project
	Item3.J._Att1_HMGP Application
	Item3.K.  FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project
	Item3.K._Att1_HMGP 1888 Fact Sheet
	Item3.K._Att2_AE Zone Firmette
	Item3.K._Att3_Standard Flood Hazard Determination
	Item3.K._Att4_Sample Deed Restriction
	Item3.K._Att5_Goodwin Elevation Project Grant Application
	Item3.L.  Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest Policy annual reminder.
	Item3.L._Att1_Policy BOS-4-2005
	Item4.A.  Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 Chips and ABC Copper Region
	Item4.A._Att1_Amendment _1 050709-1
	Item4.A._Att2_Contract 050709-1
	Item4.B.  Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 6500.505_01-2010 with Sheldon Miller
	Item4.B._Att1_Amendment _1
	Item4.B._Att2_Contract 6500.505_01-2010
	Item4.C.  Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R Automated Vending Machine Services with Swire Coca-Cola
	Item4.C._Att1_Amendment _1 Contract 100109-01R
	Item4.C._Att2_Contract 100109-01R
	Item4.D.  Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D with Kimley-Horn for Engineering Services for New Bridge Over Tonto Creek
	Item4.D._Att1_Amendment _1 to Contract SS71803D
	Item4.D._Att2_Original Contract _ SS71803D
	Item4.E.  Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 with Arizona Department of Health Services.
	Item4.E._Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. HG861265
	Item4.E._Att2_Original Grant Contract No. HG861265
	Item4.F.  Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE11117001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security for Family Law Commissioner
	Item4.F._Att1_ IGA FOR FAMILY LAW
	Item4.G.  Approval of a request for a waiver of fees by Lani Hall to use the Fairground_s Exhibit Hall or other areas at the Fairgrounds for 2011 4-H activities
	Item4.G._Att1_4-H Application
	Item4.G._Att2_4-H Waiver Request
	Item4.G._Att3_4-H Event Schedule
	Item4.H.  BOS Meeting Minutes for July 6, 2010
	Item4.H._Att1_BOS Meeting Minutes for 07_06_10
	Item4.I.  Clerk of the Superior Court's Report for the Month of October 2010
	Item4.I._Att1_Clerk of Court Monthly Report Oct. 2010
	Item4.J.  Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for October 2010
	Item4.J._Att1_Globe Constable Report 10_10
	Item4.K.  Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010
	Item4.K._Att1_Globe Regional Constable Report for 11_10
	Item4.L.  Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010
	Item4.L._Att1_Payson Regional Constable November 2010 Monthly Report
	Item4.M.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for November 2010
	Item4.M._Att1_Recorder's November 2010 Monthly Report
	Item4.N.  Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Reports for October & November 2010 
	Item4.N._Att1_Globe Regional JP October 2010 Monthly Report
	Item4.N._Att2_Globe Regional JP November 2010 Monthly Report
	Item4.O.  Personnel Report for the weeks of 12_21_10, 12_28_10 and 01_04_11
	Item4.O._Att1_12_21_10 Personnel Agenda
	Item4.O._Att2_12_28_10 Personnel Agenda
	Item4.O._Att3_01_04_10 Personnel Agenda



